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Sue Feldmann

From: Sue Feldmann

Sent: Friday, April 15, 2016 9:34 AM

To: , . Nathan Barankin

Ce " Rowena Aquino; Kelly Sloan; Victoria Sawyer

Subject: ' FW: Case No. 3:15-cv-3522 - NAF v. The Center for Medical Progress Biomax

- Procurement Services, David Daleiden, and Troy Newman .
Attachments: NAF - Letter to K. Harris re Confidential Materials,pdf

Attached is a letter dated 4-15-16 from Morrison/Foerster regarding video files seized by DOJ on April 6, 2016 from
David Daleiden. 1am forwarding this email to the CDAG office for review/handiing.

From: Bento, Christine [mailto:CBento@mofo.com]

Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2016 5:08 PM

To: Kamala Harrls

Cc: Victoria Terry; Foran, Derek F, '

Subject: Case No. 3:15-cv-3522 ~ NAF v. The Center for Medlcal Progress Blomax Procurement Services, David Daleiden,

and Troy Newman

SENT ON BEHALF OF DEREK FORAN

De_ar'M.,adam Attorney General Harris: In connection with the above referenced case please find the attached
. correspondence sent on behalf of Mr. Derek Foran. . :

Original to follow via express malil.
Respectfully submitted.

Christine Bento ‘ . ’

Legal Secretary to Derek Foran, Todd Edmister and Dustin Elllott
Morrison & Foerster LLP

425 Market St. | San Francisco, CA 94106

P: +1 (415) 268.6730

CBento@mofo.com | www.mofo.com

" This message contains information which may be confidential and privileged. Unless you are the addressee (or
authorized to receive for the addressee), you may not use, copy or disclose to anyone the message or any
information contained in the message. If you have received the message in etror, please advise the sender by

_ reply e-mail CBento@mofo.com, and delete the message.
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. Kelly Soan a - , ' , '

From: Bento, Christine <CBento@mofo.com>

Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2016 5:08 PM
- To: Kamala Harris
Ce: - ¢y~ Victoria Terty Foran, Derék F.
Subject: : l’%w%@;b"f’ Case NO. 3715-cv-3522 ~ NAF v. The Center for Medical Progress Biomax Procurement
Services, David Daleiden, and Troy Newman : ‘
Attachments: NAF - Letter to K. Harris re Confidential Materials,pdf

SENT ON BEHALF OF DEREK FORAN

Dear Madam Attorney General Harris: In connection with the above referenced case please find the attached
correspondence sent on behalf of Mr. Derek Foran. :

Original to-follow via express malil.
Res;:;ectfully submitted.

Christine Bento '
Legal Secretary to Derek Foran, Todd Edmister and Dustm Elliott
Morrison & Foerster LLP
425 Market St. | San Francisco, CA 94105
P +1 (415) 268.6730

CBento@mofo.com | www.mofo.com

This message contains information which may be confidential and privileged. Unless you are the addressee (of
authorized to receive for the addressee), you may not use, copy or disclose to anyone the message or any
information contained in the message. If you have recewed the message in error, please advise the sender by

‘reply e-mail CBento@mofo.com, and delete the message.
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members ~ that they unquestionably breached, The federal court has also found that the 702123

425 MARKET STREET MORRISON FORRSTER LLP

MORRISON FOERSTER SAN FRANCISCO BEIJING, BRRLIN, BRUSSELS, DENVER,

HONG KONG, LONDON, LOS ANGELES
CALIFORNIA 94105-2482 NEW YORK, NORTHERN VIRGINIA,
PALO ALTO, SACRAMENTO, SAN DIEGO,
TELEPHONE; 415.268,7000 SAN FRANCISGO, SHANGHAL, SINGAPORE,
FACSIMILE: 415.268,7522 TORYO, WASHINGTON, D.C,
WWW.MOFC.COM
April 15,2016 , " Writer's Direct Contact

+1 (415) 268.6323 -
DForan@mofo.com

Via Email & Express Mail

Ms. Kamala Harris

Office of the Attorney General

State of California

455 Golden Gate Ave, Suite 11000 . .

San Francisco, CA 94102-7004 . |

1

Re:  Video Files Seized from David Daleiden on April 6, 2016, Protected from Disclosure
by a Federal Preliminary Injunction and Protective Order '

Dear Ms. Harris:

I am outside litigation counsel for the National Abortion Federation (“NAF”) in the matter .
NAF'v, The Center for Medical Progress Biomax Procurement Services, David Daletden,
and Troy Newman, Case No, 3:15-cy-3522, currently pending in the Northern District of

* California. Based on published media reports, I understand that the Office of the Atforney

General seized video footage in the possession of David Daleiden during the execiition of a
search warrant of Mr, Daleiden’s premises on April 6, 2016, T further understand that among

- the material seized was video footage that Mr. Daleiden illegally, obtained by surreptitiously
‘recording NAF members and meeting attendees at NAF’s annual medical conferences,

[ am writing to inform you that the NAF video footage seized by the Office of the Attorney
General is currently protected from disclosure by a Federal Preliminary Injunction. Ihave
attached a copy of the Federal Preliminary Injunction for your convenience.

Given the high sensitivity of this material, we respectfully urge restraint in your Office’s
handling of the NAF video footage. The federal district court has already found that in
illegally recording NAF’s members, the defendants assumed false identities, created a fake
company, and entered into confidentiality agreements ~ agreements designed to protect NAF

disclosure of these materials.would cause irreparable injury to NAF and its members, @V A <82
including harassment and death threats leveled .at the individuals who were surreptitj Qly ¢ %

taped. As has been widely reported, NAF members have suffered an onslaught of g}“ Raceiverd
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MORRISON | FOERSTER

Kamala Harris
April 15,2016
Page Two

intimidation and harassment in the wake of CMP’s videotaping campalgn, culrmnatmg in the
bruta] and tragic murder of three individuals at a NAF member clinic in Colorado, a clinic
that CMP prominently featured in its early videos. The Federa] Preliminary Injunction is
designed to protect NAF’s members from any further instances of extreme harassment and
violence of the type that has been perpettated against them thus far in the wake of CMP’s -

campa1gn .

Separately, the NAF vidso footage has been demgnated confidential under the federal court’
Protective Order, a copy of whmh is also enclosed for your convenience.

Thank you for your professional courtesy and.co.operation in this matter, We have no doubt
- that you will treat this matter with the utmost sensitivity in light of the circumstances. If you
have any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out to me directly.

Sincerely,
L N
- Derek F, Foraﬁ

Enclosures

oot A
Victoria Terry (via.email)

s£-3644279
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LINDA E SHOSTAK (CA SBN 64599)
LShostak@mofo.com
DEREK F. FORAN (CA SBN 224569)

DForan@mofo.com
CHRISTOPHER L. ROBINSON (CA SBN 260778)

"ChristopherRobinson@mofo.com

MORRISON & FOERSTER LLP

425 Market Street .

San Francisco, California 94105-2482
Telephone: 415.268.7000

Facsunﬂe 415. 268.7522

Attorneys for Plaintiff -
NATIONAL ABORTION FEDERATION (NAF)

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNTA

NATIONAL ABORTION FEDERATION (NAF),
Plaintiff, . |
Y.

THE CENTER FOR MEDICAL PROGRESS,
BIOMAX PROCUREMENT SERVICES LLC,

DAVID DALEIDEN (aka “ROBERT SARKIS”), 3

and TROY NEWMAN,
Defendants.

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY
CASENO. 3:15-CV-3522-WHO '
sf-3563261

Case No. 3:15-cv-3522-WHO
Homn. Williaxm . Orrick, I

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE
ORDER FOR PURPOSES OF

- EXPEDITED PRELIMINARY

INJUNCTION DISCOVERY

Date Action Filed: July 31,2015
Trial Date:
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1. PURPOSES AND LIMI’I‘ATIONS_
1.1 Plaintiff National Abortion Federation (“NAF") and Defendants the Center

for Medical Progress, Biomax Procurement Services, LLC, David Daleiden (aka “Robert Sarkis”)
and Troy Newmah (collectively, “Defendants”) submit that dxsclosure and dlsoovery in this action
are likely to involve production of confidential, proprietary, or pmvate mformatlon for which
special proteotion frgm public disclosure and from use for any purpose other than prosecuting this
litigation js warranted, Accordingly, the Parties hereEy stipulate to and petition the court to enter
the following stipulated profeotive ord'er for the purﬁoses of expedited preliminary injunction
discovery (this “Stipulation and-Order”). The Pér’cies dcknowledge that this Stipulation and Order
does not confer blanket protecti ons on‘all disclosures orresponses to disoover'y and that the
protection it affords extends only to the information or items that are entitled under the appiicable
legal principles to treatment as confidential. |

" 12 This Protective Order shall not be construed to preclude the named parties
and client representatives from attending depositions taken in this Action. |

2. DEFINITIONS _ ,
. 2.1 “Action” means the above-capt;oned action, presently pending in the

United States District Court for the Northern District of California.

2.2 Party: Any party to this Action, including all of its officers, directors,

"employees, consultants, retained experts, and outside counse! (and their support staff).

2.3 ‘Non-Party: Any person, nota Party, who serves as a witness or provides
Disclosure or Discovery Material in this Action.

2.4  Disclosure or Discovery: Materiel: All items or information, regardless of |
the medium or the manner in which it is generated, stored or maintained (including, among other
things, testimony, transcripts, or tangible th.mgs), that is produced or generated in disclosures or
responses to discovery in this Action.

' 2.5 “CONFIDENTIAL” Information or ltems: Disclosure or Dlscovery
Material ’that is non-public and that a Party or Non—Party in good faith believes must be held

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 11,

CASENOD, 3:15-Cv-3522-WHO

§f-3563261
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Case3:15-cv-03522-WHO Document82 Filed08/26/15 Page3 of 28

confidential to protect personal privacy intérests, confidential, prbprietary, and/or comrhercially
sensitive informatlon, or otherwise has a compelling need for privacy.

26  “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL ~ ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY”
Information or Items: Disclosure or Discovery Material that is extremely confidential and/or
sensitive in nature, including highly sensitive personal privacy information , disclosure of which
to another Party or Non-Party the Producing Pérty reasonably belieyes is likely to cause a
substantial risk of serious injury that could not be avoided by less reéj:rictive means, This
includes all NAF Personal Identification Information as defined in paragraph 2.11 below.

” 2.7 ' Receiving Party: A Party that receives Disclosure or Discovery Material
provided, produced or made available for inspection by a Producing Party: ' |

2.8 Producing Party: A Party or Non-Party that provideé, praduces or makes
available for inspection Disclosure or Discovery Material in the course of this Action.

2.9 | Designating Pay_ty' : A‘Party or Non-Party that designates information or
items that it produces in disclosures or in responses to discovery as CONFIDENTIAL or
HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL — ATTORNEYS® EYES (5NLY. |

| 2.10 Protected Matei-ial: Any Disclosure or Disoévery Material that is
designated as or deemed to be CONFIDENTIAL or HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL—~
ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY. : o o
2,11 NAF Personal Identification Information: Any Disclosure or Discovery

Material that NAF produces or discloses may contain information related to NAF that teveals

private identifying information. Given the highly sensitive bature of this Action and the privacy
interests involved, such information is defined broadly to include: '

(8  Names of NAF staff, NAF members, and any attendees or other
participants of any NAF Annual Meeting;

(b)  Security code words used by NAF;

- (&) All photos, videos or audio recordings Of NAF staff, NAF

membets, and any attendees or other pérticipants of any NAF Annual Meeting;
STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY o ‘ 2

CASENO. 3:15-Cv-3522-WHO - '
5f-3563261 .
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_ , .(d) Social-security num.bers of NAF staff, NAF members, and any
attendees or participants at any NAF Annual Meetiné.,r;
(e) Taxpayer~icientiﬁcati6n numbers of NAF, NAF staff, NAF
members, and -ani,/ attendees or participants at any NAF Annual Meeting;
| ¢ . Any financial account numbers of NAF, NAF staff, NAF members,
and any attendees or participants at any NAF Annua Meeting;
(g)  Birthdates of NAF staff, NAF members, and any attendees or
partlmpants at any NAF Annual Meetmg,
* (b)) Direct telephone numbers of NAF staff, NAF members, and any
attendees or pamcxpants at any NAF Annual Meeting; ' '
()  Drivers’ Lwense numbers of NAF staff, NAF members, and any
attendees or partxmpants at any NAF Annual Meeting; ‘
()  Addresses of NAF staff NAF members, and any attendees or

| participants at any NAF Annual Meetmg, and

(k) Ema11 addresses of NAF staff, NAF members and any attendees or |
participants at any NAF Annual Meeting. '

212 Outsxde Coungel: Attorneys who dre not employses of a Party but who are
employed at law firms that appear on the pIeadin‘gé as counsel for'a Part:y in this Action and who
have been admltted to pr actlce before the United States District Court of the Northern sttrlct of
Caleorma in this Action (mcludmg by pro hac vice admission),

2,13 In-House Counsel: Attorneys who aré employees of a Party who have

signed the “General Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by
Protective Order” that is attached hereto as Exhibit A-1, |

2 14 Non-Party Counsel: Attorneys who represent a Non-Party and who have

s:gned the “Genex al Aoknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to be Bound by

Protective Order” that is attached hereto as Exhibit.A-1,

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY : . 3
.CASENO. 3:15-CV-3522-WHO .
5f-3563261
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2.15 Counsel (without qualifier): Outside Counsel and In-House Counsel (as
well as their support staffs).

2,16 Expert: a person who has been retained by a Party or its Outside Counsel
to serve as a testifying or non-testifying expert or consultant in this Action. This definition

includes any professional jury or trial consyltant retained in connection with this Action but does

| not include mock jurors.

2.17  Professional Vendors: Personé or entities that provide litigation support
services (e.g., photocopying; video_taping; translating; preparing exhibits or demon_strations;
organizing, storing, retrieving data in'any form or medium; @fc.) and their employees and
s’ubéontractors.

3. SCOPE
The protections conferred by this Stipulation and Order cover not only Protected Material

(as defined abové), but also (1) any information copied or extracted from Protected Material;.(?.)

all 'copies, excerpts; summaries or compilations of Protected Matefial' and (3) any testimony,

conversations, or presentations by Parties or their Counsel that might revéal Protected Material.
However, the protections conferred by ’chls Stipulation and Order do not cover the

following mformaﬁon. (a) any information that is in the public domain at the time of disclosure to

_a Receiving Party or becomes part of the public domain after its disclosure to a Receiving Party

as a result of publication not involving a violation of this Order, including becoming part of the -
public record through trial or otherwme and (b) any information known to the Reoewmg Party *
prior to the disclosure or obtained by the Recewmg Party after the disclosure from a source who
obtained the information lawfully and under no obligation of confidentiality to the Designating
Party. Any use of Protected Material at trial shall be governed by a separate agreement or order,

4, DURATION '

After the termination of this Action, the confidentiality obligations imposed by this
Stipulation and Protective Order shall'rémain in effect until a Designating Pérty agrees otherwise

in writing or a Court order otherwise directs.’

. STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPED]TED DISCOVERY” . 4

CASENO. 3:15-0v-3522-WHO
§f-3563261
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5, DESIGNATING PROTECTED MATERIAL
5.1 Préccdur;s for Designating Material for Protection: Any Party to this

Action, or any Non-Party who produces Disclosure or Discovery Material, shall have the right to

designate as CONFIDENTIAL or HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL — ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY

any Protected Material it produces. All Protected Material shall bear a legend on each page
stating that the material is “CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL —
ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY”» Materla!s designated as or deemed to be CONFIDENTIAL or
HIGHLY. CONFIDENTIAL — ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY ooxllsisten‘c with this Stipulatior and

Protective Order are subject to the provisions of this Stipulation and Protective Order and shiall be

protected, used, handled and' disposed of in accordance with the provisions of this Sﬁpulation and’
Protective Order. ‘ | ‘

Eachi Party or Non-Party that designates information or items for prqteo;cion under this
quer must take care to limit any §tch designation to specific material that qualifies under the‘
appropriaté standards set forth herein. A Designating Party must take care to designate for

protection only those materials, documents, items, or oral or writtén communications that so

52  Manner and Timing of Designations:. Except as otherwise provided in this

Stipulation and Protective Order (see, e.g., seéo_nd' paragraph of 5.2(a), below) or as otherwise

- stipulated or ordered, material that qualfﬁes for protection under this Stipulation and Protective

Order must bé clearly designated as such before the material is disclosed or produced.
Designation in conformity with this Stip,ulatién and Protectivé Order requires:

. (aj For Information in Dok;umentary Form (apart from transcripts of
débositio'ns or other_pretrial proceedings): That the Producing Party affix the legend
“CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONPIDENTIAL — ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY” on each
page 'thét contains Protected Material. In order to speed up the process of producing large
volumes of P‘rotected Material, multi-page documents in Which Protected Matetial is pe1va§ive
may be marked “GONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL — ATTORNEYS’® EYES.
ONLY” ﬂ'noughout Where it is not p0331ble to affix a legend to paltlcular Protected Matena]

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY ) ' 5
CASENO, 3:15-CV-3522-WHQ
8f-3563261
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the Producing Party shall take reasonable steps to give all Receiving Parties notice of the
Protected Material’s status as such, Except as othc;rwise agreed, within 45 days after receipt of
Disclosure or Discovery Material, any Receiving Party may designate the material as |
“CONFiDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL ~ ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY.”

A Party .or Non-Party that makes qriginal documep’cs or materials availab}e for inspection
neeci not designate them for proteo%ion until after the inSpecting Party .has indicate;i which
material it would like copied and produced. During the inspec;tion and before the designation, all
of the rhaterial made av_eiilat;lé for inspection shall be deemed “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL
ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY.” After the inspecting Party has identified the documents it wants
copied and produced, the Producing- Party'must c}etermine which documents Qualify for pfotéctioq ‘
under this Order. Then, before producing the'specif' ed d.ocumen’cs, the Producing Pa;u“cy must |
afﬁx the appropriate legend (“CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL ~ -
ATTORNEYS® EYES ONLY™) on each page that contains Protected Materxal except that muItx-
page documents may be designated in accordance. with the preceding paraoraph _

' " () For Testlmony Given in Deposition or in Other Pretrial
Proceedmgs Any Party or Non-Party offering or sponsoring the testimony may 1dent1fy on the
record before the close of the deposmon, hearing or other proceedmg, all protected testimony and
may further specify any portions of the testlmony that qualify as “CONFIDENTIAL” or .
“HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL — ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY.” Alternatwely, within thirty (30)
days of receipt of a transeript or recording ofa deposxtlon or other pretrial prooeedmg, the
offering or sponsoring Party or Non-Party may designate such transeript or recording or any
portion thereof as “CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL ~ATTORNEYS’ EYES
ONLY” by notifying all Parties, in wrifing, of the specific pages and lines of the transcript or
recording that should be treated aé “CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIi)ENTIAL -
ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY.” All transcripts ot recordings of deﬁositions or other pretrial
proceedings shall be treated as “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL - ATTORNEYS’ EY’ES bNLY” for
thirty (3 Oj days after receipt of the transcript or recording, or until writtgn notice of a designation
STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DIS;‘:OVERY ' ' 6

CASENO, 3:15-Cv~3522-WHO
5f-3563261
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is réceived, whichever occurs first. In the case ofa Noz.n—Partys testimony ¢an be designated aé
containing “CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL ~ ATTORNEYS’ EYES
ONLY” information by a Party, the Non-Party or upon agreement of the Parties.

Transcript pageé containing Protected Material must be separately bound by the court
reporter, who must affix to the top of each such page the legend “CONFIDENTIAL” or
“HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEYS”EYES ONLY” as mstructed by the Party or Non-
Party offering or sponsoring the witness or presenting the testimony.

In the event the deposition is videotaped, the original and all copies of the videotape shall
be marked by the video technician to indicate that the contents of the videotape are subJect to, thls
Stipulation and Protective Order, substantially along the lines of “This videotape contains
confidential tes’umony used in this case and ig'not to be viewed or the contents thereof to be .

displayed or revealed except pursuant to the terms of the dperative Stipulation and Protective

Order in this Action or bursuan’c to written stipuldtion of the parties.”.

Except as stated in Segtion 1.2. above, counsel for any Producing Party shall have thé right
to exclude from oral dep.ositf"ons, other than the deponent, deponent’s counsel, the reporter and
videographer (if any), any person who is not authorized by this Stipulation and Protective Order
to receive or access Protected Material based on the.designation of such Protected Material. Such |’

rlght of exclusion shall be applicable only during periods of examination or testimony regarding

such Protected Material,

() For Infonﬁaﬁon Produced in A Fotm Other than Documentary, and
for Any Other Tangible Items: The Prodﬁcing Party shall affix in a prominent place on the
exterior of the container or ;:ontaihers in which the information or item is stored the legend
“CONTIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEYS® EYES ONLY.” .

(d  For Inspectxon of Things or Premises: The Producing Party shall
state in writing prior to the inspection that “CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL -
ATTORNEYS® EYES ONLY” information or material will be revealed, |

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY ) 7
CASENO. 3:15-CV-3522-WHO .
5f-3563261
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5.3 'Upward Designation of Information or Items Produced by OtherlParties ot
Non-Parties. A Party may upward designate (i.e., change any documents or other material .
produced without a designation to a designation of “CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY .
CONFIDENTIAL -~ ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY,” or change any Protected Matérial produced
as “CONFIDENTIAL” to a designation of “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL ~ ATTORNEYS’ EYES |-
ONLY,”) any Disclosure or Discovery Material produced by any other Party.or Noh'—Party,

provxded that sajd Disclosure or Discovery Material contains the upwmd designating Party’s own

-CONFIDENTIAL or HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL ~ ATTORNEYS® EYES ONLY mformatlon

or otherwise is entitled to protective treatment under Fed. R. Civ.P. 26(c). Upward desi'gnation
shall be accomplished by providing written notice. to all Parties identifying (by Bates number or
other individually identifiable information) the Disclosure or Discbvery Material to be re~

designated within sixty (60) days of production by the Producing Party. .Failur'e to ﬁpward" .

 designate within siidy (60) days of production, alone, will not prevent & Parfy from obtaining the

agreement of all Parties to upward designate certain Disclosure or Discovery Material or from -
movihg the Court for such relief. Any Party may object to the upward designation of Disclosure
or Disco.very Material pursuant to the ﬁrocedur'es set forth herein regarding challenging
desiggatioﬁ,s. | .

54 Inag_ivertent Fal[ures fo Demggate and ];edesxgnatlo A Producing Party
that madvertently fails to designate Disclosure or Discovery Material as “CONFIDENTIAL” or
“HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL —~ATTORNEYS’ EYES _ONLY” pursuant to this Stzpulatlon and
Protective Orde;r at the time of its production shall be able to make a correction to its designation,
wijch the Receiving Party reserving the right to assert such re-designation is improper pursﬁant to
thé procedures set forth herein regarding challenging designations. Such failure shall be |
corrected by providing to the Receiving Party written notice of the error and substituted copies of
the inadvertently unmarked or mis-marked Disclosure or Discovery Materials, Any party
receiving such inadvertently unmarked or mis-marked Disclosure or Discovery Maferials shall,

within five (5) days of receipt of the substitute copies, destroy or return to'the law firm

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED.DISCOVERY o 8

CASENO, 3:15-cv-3522-WHO.
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representing the Producing Party all copies of such mis-designated documents. The Producing
Party shall comply_wfth Paré.graph 5.2 when redesi;gnating Disclosure or Disgovery Material as
Protected Material. Following any redesignation of Disclosure or Discovery Materia] as

Protected Material (or reciesignatioh of “CONFIDENTIAL” material as “HIGHLY

CONFIDENTIAL ~ ATTORNEYS® EYES ONLY"), the Party recefving such Protected Material |

shall take reasonable steps to comply with the redesignatidri, including, without limitation,
retrieving all copies and excerpts of aﬁ}'/ redesignﬁted Protected Matérial from persons not entitled
to receive it as re-designated.’ . '

A Receiving Party shall not be in breach of this Stipulatz"on and Protective Order for any
use of such 1nadvertent1y~non-de51gnated or madvertently-mw~desxgnated material before the

Receiving Party receives notice of the inadvertent failure to des1gnate, unless a reasonable person

'WOuId have realized that the material should have been approprxately designated with a

' confidentiality désignati on under this Stipulation and Protective Order, Once & Receiv@ng Party

has received notice of the inadvertent failure to designate pursuant to this provision, the
Receiving Party shall treat such material at the appropriately designated level pursuant to the -
terms of this Stipulaﬁon-and Protective Order, reserving all rights to assert that such re-

designation is not proper under the procedures set forth heréin regarding challenging '

1
[}

designations. , : :
6.- REDACTING NAF PERSONAL; IDENTIFiCATICN INFORMATION

_ In addition to designating Disclosure or Discovery matetial contéining NAF Personél
Identification Information as defi ned in paragraph 2,11 above as “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL ~
ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY” in accordance with th1s Stipulation and Order, NAF may redact
all NAF Personal Identification Information from all D1§closure and Discovery material it
produces'fdr the purposes of Expedited Preliminary Injunction Discovery. The redaction of NAF
Persgnal Identification Information will be done in such a way that those persons will be
anonymously identiﬁ;ed in a consistent, recognizable manner (e.g:, Person‘#l, Person #2, etc,; or
Sécurity Code), and NAF will disclose to Outside Counsel the identity of any witnesses who have
STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY o ' 9
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been noticed for deposition and whose NAF Personal Identification Information has been
redacted in accordance with this provisicn.
| 7. CHALLENGING CONFIDENTIALITY DESIGNATIONS

7.1  Timing of Challenges: The Receiving Party must challenge the
Desi'gnating Party’s designations within ninety (90) days of receipt of the challenged information.

7.2 Meqt and Confer: A Party that elects to initiate a chalienge foa
Designating Party’s cohﬁdential_ity designation must do so in good faith and must begin the
process by conferring directly (in voice-tc;-voice dialogue; other forms of communication are not
sufficient) with counsel for the Designating Party. In conferring, the challenging Party must |
identify the specific Bates (or other individually identifiable) range(s) for the challenged
document(s), explain the ba"sis for its belief thét the confidentiality designation was not proper
and must give the Designating Party a reasonable opportuniiy {notto éxaecd 3 business days) to
review the aesignated material, re¢onsider the cjrcuﬁstmces and, ifno ‘ch'ange in designation is
offered, explain the basis for the chosen designation. A challenging Party may proceed to the

next s@agé of the challenge process only if it has first engaged in this meet-and-confer process.

7.3 Judicial Intervention: A Party that elects to ﬁress a challenge toa

- confidentiality designation after considering the justification offered by the Designating Party

pursuaﬁt to the preceding paragraph may prepare’in g.cc'ordance with the Coutt’s Standing Order &
concise joint staternent of five pages or less, stating fhe natﬁre and status’ of‘ the dispui':e,' and
certifying that the Parties' have met fh¢~ meet_—and-cénfer requirement (or if a joint statement is not
possible, each side ma;} subrhi’c a brief individual statement of two pages or less, including a

certification of compliance with the meet-and-confer requirement and an explanation of why a

- joint statement was not possible).

Nothing in this Stipulation and Protective Order shall preclude or prejudice any Party
from arguing for or against any designatidn, establish any presumption that a particular
designation is valid, or alter the burden of proof that would otherwise apply in a dispute over
discovery or disclosure of information. Until the Court rules on the challenge, all Parties shall
STIPULATED PROTECTIVE QRDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 10
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continue to afford the material in ques't.ion the'level of prote'ction to whi;:h it is entitled under the
Designatiﬁg Party’s designation.
8. ACCESS TO AND USE OF PROTECTED MATERIAL,
8.1 Basic Principles:* A Receiving Party may use Protected Material that is

disclosed or produced. by another Party or by a Non-Party in connection with this Action only for
this case or any related appeilate proceéding. A Receiving Party may not use Protected Material
for any other purpose, iqcluding, wi}:hout limitation, any other litigation or any business, personal,
or political endeavor. Such Protected Material may be disclosed only to the categories of persons
and under the conditions described in this Order and may not be disclosed to any other perSOn,'

entity, or to the media. In the event of a dispute regarding whether a proposed disclosure is

-“reasonably necessary for this Action,” the Parties shall meet and confer in good faith on an

expedlted ba51s and sha,ll promptly raise any dispute that oannot be resolved through the meet
and confe_r process on an expedited basis in accordance with the joint statement procedures
outlined in Section 7.3; or, alternatively, the Partles may seek resolution of their'disputq through'a |
more expedited dispute-resolution mechanism.that is acceptable to the Court as needed due to the
time-sens'itivi,fy of the dispute at issue (e.g., & telephone conference with the Court duringa
deposition). For purposes of this Stipulation and Protective Order, and sbeciﬁcal]y as utilized in .
this paragraph, “discloseé” or “disclose” shall meén any physical or electronic showing of the '
Protected Materials to any per,'s?'On,‘inqluding communication in any form of the contents (in Wholq

or in part) or existence of the Protected Materials. When this Action has been terminated, a

: Reéeiving Party must comply with the pfovision’s of Paragraph.12 below (FINAL

DISPOSITION)

- Protected Material must be stored and maintained by a Receiving Party at a locatxon and

1 in a secure manner ensunng that access is hmxted to the persons authorized under this Qrder.

8,2 1solgsure of “CONFIDEN 1: AL’ Information or Items: Unless otherwise

ordered by the Court or permitted in writing by the Designating Patty, 8 Receiving Party may
disclose any information or item designated “CONFIDENTIALf’ only to:’

)

" STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY ' . 11
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" Be Bound by Protective Order” that is attached hereto as Exhibit A-1;

N
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by. Protective Order” that is attached hereto as Exhibit A-l; ‘
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(a)  The Receiving Party’s Outside Counsel and such Qutside Counsel’s
immediate paralegals and-staff, and any copying of clerical iitigation support services working at
the direction of such counsel, paralegals, and staff; to whom it is reasonably necessary to disclose
the information for this Action; ' . |

. (b)  the former and current officers, directors, and employees (including
In-House Counsel) of the Receiving Party to whom disclosure i reasonabl ly necessary for this

Action and who have signed the “General Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Avreement to

()  .aNon-Party and Non-Party’s Counsel who have (1) signed the
“General Acknowledgment of Conﬁdéntiality'and Agreement to Be Bo{“md by Protective Order”
that is attached hereto as Exhibit A-1 and (2) to whom disclosure is réasonably nécessary for'this
Action; | | . | |
' (d)  any insurér or indemnitor of any defendant in this Action;
(¢)  the Courtand any n;;ediators or art;itrators and their respective
personnel; ' ‘ ‘ |
(f) court reporters, their staffs, and professional vendors to whom
disclosure is reasonably necessary for this Acti(;n and who havé signed the ‘fGene'ral - '
AcknoWledglnent of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by‘Pro’cc&’cive Order” that is
attached hereto as Exhibit A-1;

(&  mock jurors, subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 8.6 and 8.7
below; and ' | _.

h) experté, subject to the provisidns of Section 8.6 belovxlr;

(i) - the author(s) and recipient(s) of the “CONFIDENTIAL” Materi.al

who have signed the “General Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and A.greement to Be Bound

(i) any other person with the prior.written consent of the Designating

Party.

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 12
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8.3  Disclosure of “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL.— ATTQRNEYS’ EYES

ONLY” Information or Items: Unless otherwise ordered by the Court or permitted in writing by
the Designating Party, any information or item designated “HIGHLY CONFIDEN’I“IAI; -
ATTORNEYS® EYES ONLY” may be disclosed only to:

(8)  In-House Counsel of a Party to whom disolo'sure is reasonably
necessary for this Action and who have been admitted to practice before the United States District
Court of ;che Northern District of California in this Action or who have signed the “General
Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by Protective Order” that is .
attached hersto as Exhzblt A-1;

by. A Party s Outside Counsel of record in this Action and such
Outside Counsel’s immediate paralegals and staff, and any copying or clerical IJtlgatlon support
services working 4t the dlrectlon of such counsel paralegals, and staff, to whom it i$ reasonably
necessary to disclose the information for this Action; ’ '

(¢)  aNon-Party and Non-Party’s Counsel who have (1) signed the

that is attacheci hereto as Exhibit A-1 angi (2) to whom disclosure js reasonably necessary for this
Action; ' . ‘ |

(d) | experts, subject to the provisions of Section 8.6 below;

(&)  the Court, and any mediators or arbitrators, and their respectjvé
personnel; '

(f)  courtreporters, their staffs, and.professional vendors to whom
disclosure is reasonably necessary for this Action and who have signed the “General "
Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement 10 Be Bound by Protective Order” that is
gttached hereto as Exhiioit A-1; and .

. (g) the author(s) and recipient(s) of the “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL — |
ATTORNEYS® EYES ONLY” Material who have signed the ‘;General Acknowledgment of

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY . C ' ' 13
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Confidentiality and Agreement to Be iBound by Protective Order” that is attar.Jhed hereto as
Exchibit A-1, ' <
8.4  General Procedure for Discl'osure of “CONFIDENTIAL" or “HIGHLY
CONFIDENTIAL — ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY” Information or Items: | .

(a)  Before any information or item designated “CONFIDENTIAL,” or
substance or summary thereof, shall be disclosed to the persons or éntities identified in sub-
paragraphs (b), (¢), (d), @, (g), (), (@), and ® pf paragraph 8.2 above, the Parties are hereby
ordered to tender a copy of this Stipulation and Protective Order to each such person and witness
in order that each such entity or person to whom such disclosgx;e of “CONFIDENTIAL”
information or item is made‘shall be on notice and fully informed that the existence and subs’c‘ance
of the Stipulation and Protective Order is, and is int@nded to be, equally binding upon it, him or |
her. Before any information or item designated “CONFIDENTIAL,” or substance or summary
thereof, is disclosed to any such person, each such person shall sign and abide by the terms of the
General Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by Protective Order,
attached hereto as Exhibit A-1, The petson to whom the “CONFIDENTIAL” information or item
is. disclosed shall not give, shbw, or otherwise divulge any oﬁ the “CONFIDENTIAL” information
or item to any entity or person except as specifically provided for by this Stipulation and
Protectiv;: Oi'der. ‘

) ' (b) - Beforeany info;xnation or item des:ignated “HIGHLY
CONFIDENTIAL - ATTORNEYS® EYES ONLY,” or substance or summary thereof, shall be
disclosed to the persons or enﬁities identified in sub-paragraphs (a), (c), (d), (), and.(g) of
paragraph 8.3 above, the Parties are hereby ordered to tender a copy of this Stipulation and
Protective Order to each such person and witness in order that each such entity or person to whom

such disclosure of “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL - ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY™ information or

item is made shall be on notice and fully informed that the existence and substance of the

Stipulation anci Protective-Order is, and is intended to be, equally biﬁding upon it, him or her.
Before any information or item designated “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL - ATTORNEYS® EYES
STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY ~ 14
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ONLY,” or substance or summary thereof, is disclosed to any such person, each such person shall
sign and abide by the terms of the Generaj Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to
Be Bound by Protective Order, attached hereto as Exhibit A-1, The person to whom the ‘
“HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY” information or item is dlsclosed

" shall not give, show, or otherwrse dxvulge any of the “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL -
ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY” information to any entity or person except as specifically

provided for by this Stipulatiomand Protective Order.

8.5 Procedure f01 Drsc]gsme of “CONF IDENTIAL” Information or Items to

Mock Jurors: A Recewmg Party may dlsclose to mock Jurors materials prepared by its Outsrde

Counsel that are derived from information or items designated “CONFIDENTIAL” (but not

materials that are derived from information or items designated “HIGHLY CONF IDENTIAL ~

ATTORI\jEYS’ EYES ONLY”), so long as the derivative materials do not include the as- .

p1 oduced information itself, Before providing such rnaterlal to amock j Jurer, the Receiving Party
must, in compliance with Paragraph 8.4(a) above, tender a copy of this Stipulation and Protective
Order to gach mock juror in order that egoh person to whom such disclosure is made shall be on

notice and fully informed that rhe existepce arrd substance of the S;ripulation anq Protective Order
is, and is intended to.be,'equal-ly Eind-ing upon it, him or her, as well as upon the Parties and their
counsel, Before any materials prepared by Outside Counsel that are derived from ‘informatiqn or
items desiénateci “CONFIDENTIAL?” are disclosed to a mock juror, each éuch person shall sign .

and abide. by the terms of the General Aclcnowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be

- Bound by Protectwe Order, a‘ctached hereto as Exhibit A-1. The mock juror to whom the material |

is disclosed shall not give, show, or otherwrse divulge any of the information contained therein to

any entity or person except as specifically provided for by this Stipulation and Protective Ordér.
8.6  Procedure for Disclosure of “CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY

CONFIDENTIAL ~ ATIORNEYS’ EYES ONLY” Information or Items to Experts:

; (a) Before any “CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL -

A'TTORNBYS’ EYES ONLY” information, or substance or summary rhereof,- shall be disclosed ‘

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY . B 15
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to an Expert, the Expert shall sign and abide by the terms of the “Expert/Consultant

Ackno.wledgrnent of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by Protective Order,” attached

as Exhibit A-2. | . L
(b)  Unless otherwise ordered By the Court or agreed in writing by the

Designating Party, a Receiving Party that seeks to discloss to an Expert any information or item

- that has been designated “HIGHLY CONF IDENTIAL—ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY” first

must make a written request to the Designating Party that (1) identifies the specific “HIGHLY
CONFIDENTIAL -~ ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY” information that the Receiving Party seeks to
disclose to the Expert; (2) sets forth the full name of the Expert.and tﬂe city and state of his or her
prirlnary residence, (3) attaches the Expert’s fully executed Expert/Consultant Acknowled gme.nt

of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by Protective Order (attached hereto as Exhibit A-

"2); and (4) attaches a copy of the Expert’s current resuime that identifies (by name and number of

the case, filing date, and location of court) any litigation in connection with which the Expert has
provided any professional services during the pfeceding five years.' The Party seeking to disclose
“HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL—ATTORNEYS’ EYES.ONLY* material to an E};pex;t shall
provide such other information regarding the Exllber'i:’s' professional activities reasonably requested
by-the Producing Party in order for it to evaluate whether good cause exists to object to the
disclosure to the Expert. ' . |

() A Party that makes a rec!uest and provides the information specified

in the preceding paragraph may disclose the subject Protected Material to the identified Expert

‘unless, within seven (7) days of delivering the request, the Party receives a written objection from

the Designating Party. Any such objection must set forth in detail the grounds on which it is
based. .

, (d) A'Des'ignating Party that makes a timely written objection must
meet and confer with the Party seeking to disclose the in'formaﬁon to the Expert (through direct

voice-to-voice dialogue) to try to resolve the matter by agreement. If no agreement is reached,

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 16
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the Party objecting to the disclosure to the Expert may seek judicial intérvantibn in ac;cordance .
with the joint statement procedures outlined inlSection 7.3.

87  The Party’s Counsel who discloses “CONFIDENTIAL” or “HIGHLY
CONFIDENTIAL — ATTORNEYS’ EYES ONLY" Material shall be responsible for assuring
compliance with the terms of this Stipulation and Protective Ordet regarding execution of the
“General Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agfeement to Be Bound by Protective Order”
by persons to lwhom such Protected Material is discloéed and shall.obtain and retain the originals. |
of thie “General Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by Protective
Order” executed by ciualiﬁed recipients of Protef:ted Méterial‘(if such execution ‘was required by

terms of this Stipulation and Protective Order). - :

9. ROTECTED MATERIAL SUBPOENAED OR ORD ERED PRODUCED IN
OTHER LITIGATION OR GOYERNMENT INVEST] [GAIIONS '

If a Regelving Party is served with a subpoena, including a Congressional subpoena or
other legisla}:ive or executive branch subpoena, or an order issued in other litigatjon, legislative,'
executive, administrative, or other legal proceedings or investigation that would compel
disclosﬁre of aﬂy informatic;n or items desi gnated in this Action as “CONFfDENTIAL?’ or
“HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL —~ ATTORNEYS® EYES ONLY,” the Receiving Party mustso -
notify the Designating Pért){ in writing (by email, if possible) immediately and in no event more
than three court days after receiving the subpoene or order. Such notification must include a cépy
of the subpoena or Court order. "

- The Receiving Party must aiso.immedia‘tely‘ inforrh in writing the party who caused the
subpoena or order to issue in the other litigation, legislative, executive, adminisu:atiye, or otllqer.
legal 'proceedings or investigation that some or all of the material covered by the subpoena or
order is the subject of this Stipulation and Protective Order. In addition, the Receiving Party must
deliver a copy of this Stipulation and Protective Order promptly to the party in the other action

that caused the subpoena or order to issue.

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY . . : 17
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The purposc of imposing thest dutles is to alert the mterested parties to the existence of
this S‘clpulatlon and Protective Order and to afford the Des1gnat1ng Party in this case an
opportunity to try to protect its confidentiality interests in the court or tribunal from which the
subpoena or order issued,. The Designating Party shall bear the burden and expeixse of seeking
protection in th:at court or tribunal of its Protected Material. Nothing in these provisions should’
be construed as authoiizing or encouraging a Receiving Party in this Actibﬁ to disobey'a lawful
directive from another court or tribunal or a subpoena issuéd by a legislative or executive body or
agent, ' _

None of the foregoing prbvisions are intended to limit or siperseds the Parties’ rights or
obligations with respect to any preexisting agreements between'the Parties.

10. UNAUTHORIZED DISéLOSURE OF PROTECTED MATERIAL

. Ifa Recewmg Party learns that, by inadvertence or otherwise, it has disclosed Protected

. Material to any persori or in any circumstance not authorized under thlS Stipulation and Protective '

Order, the Receiving Party must immediately: (a) notify the D_esxgnatmg Party in writing of the
unauthorized diSGlosure (by ema'il if possible) immediately and in no event more than three court |
days aﬁer learnmg of the disclosure; (b) use 1ts best efforts to retrieve all coples of the Protected
Material subject to the unauthorized d1sclosure, (¢ 1nform the person or persons to whom
unauthorized disclosures were made of all the terms of this Order; and (d) request such-person or
persons to execute the “General Acknowledgment of Confide;ﬁtiality and Agreement to Be Bound
by Protective Otder” (Exhibit A-1). Upauthorized or inadvertent disclosure does not change the
status of Discovery Material or waive the right to maintain the disclosed document ot informajcion

as Protected.

11. INADVERTENT PRODUCTION OF PRIVILEGED OR OTHERWISE
PROTECTED MATERIAL,

11,1 When a Producing Party gives notice to the Receiving Party or the

Receiving Party otherwise becomes aware that certain inadv.ertenﬂy produced material, including

any NAF Personal Identification Information, is subject to a claim of privilege or other

- protection, the Receiving Party must promptly return or destroy the specified information and any

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY ' 18
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copies it has and may not sequester, use or disclose the information until the claim is resolved.
This includes a restriction against presenting the information to the Court for a determination o-f
'th<‘e claim. Pursuant to Federal Rulé of E;/idence 502(d) and (), the production of privileged or
worlk-produgt protected documents or information, including electronically stored information,
whether inadvertent or not, is not a waiver of the privilege or protection in connection with
discovery in this case or any other federal proceeding. ‘

11.2 . Additionally, the inadvertent or unintentional disclosuré by the Producing
Party of Confidential Information——including Disclosure or Discovery Material that contains
NAF Personal Identification Information—shall not be deemed a waiver in whole or in part of the
Designating Party’s claién‘o‘f confidentiality, either as to the specific information disclosed or .as
to any other information relating thereto or the same or felated subject matter. ‘

12. FILING PROTECTED MATERIAL

Without written permission from the Designating Pairty or & Court order secured after

appropriate notice to all interested persons, a .Party may not file any Protected Material in the
puiﬂic record in this Actioﬁ. A Party that seeks to ﬁle'under éeal any Protpoted Materi AI must '
compl}f with Civil Local Rule 79-3,- A Party who seeks to introduce Protected Material at a
hearing, pretrial or other proceeﬁing shall advise ﬂme Court at the time of introduction that the
information sought to be intfoduced is protected. If the Party who designated the information as
Protected Material requests the protection be continued, the Court will review the information to
determine if the information is entitled to continued protection. Prior to disclosure of Protected
Material at a hearing, the Producing Party méy seek further protections aga\i7nst publ_ic digclosure
from the Court. ' |

13. FINAL DISPOSITION

13.1  Unless otherwise ordered or agreed in Writing.by the Producing Party,

within 90 days after the final termination of this Action and upon receiving a written request to do
50 from the Producing Party or Designating Party, each Receiving Party must destroy all
Protected Material, return it to the Producing Party, or make the Protected Material available for
STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 19
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pick-up by the Producing Party. As used in this order, “final termination” shall be deemed to be
the later of (1) dismissal of all claims and defenses in this Action, with or without prejudice, and
(2) final judgment herein after the completion and exhaustion of all appeals, rehearings, remands,

trials, or reviews of this Action, including the time limits for filing any motions or applications

132 As used in this paragraph, “all Protected Materlal” includes all 00p1es
abstracts, compilations, summames or any other form of reproducmg or capturing any of the
Protected Material. Whether the Protected Material is returned or destroyed upon rgquest by the
Producing Party, the Receiving Party must submit & written certification to the Producing Party
(and, if not the same person or entity, to the Designating Party) by the 90-day deadline that

represents that all Protected Material that was returned or destroyed and affirms that the

reproducing or capturing any of the Protected Material. Notwithstanding this provision, Counsel
are entitled to retain copies of all pleadings, motilon papérs, transeripts, legal memoranda, -
correspondence, and atiorney work product (but not document productions), even if such
materials contam Protected Material, for archival purposes. Any such copies of pleadmgs,
motion papers transcrlpts, legal memoranda, correspondence and attorney work product that
contam or constitute Protected Material remain subject to this Stlpulatlon and Protective Order as
set forth in Paragraph 4 (DURATION), above, '

' 14. DISCOVERY FROM EXPERTS OR CONSULTANTS ‘ _
14,1  Testifying experts shall not be subject to discovery with respect to any

draft of his or her report(s) in this case. Draft reports, notes, or ouﬂmes for draft reports
developed and drafted by the testifying expert and/o1 his or her staff are also exempt from
discovery, '

14.2  Discovery of materials provided to testifying expel“cs shall be limited to
those ‘materials, facts, consulting expert oplnlons and other matters actually relled upon by the

testifying expert in forming his or her final report, trial, or deposition testimony or any opinion in

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 20°
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this cese. No discovery can be taken from any non~testifyiﬁg expert except to the_extent that such
non-testifying expert has provided information, oiainions_, or other materials to a testifying expert

relied upon by that testifying expert in forming his or her final report(s), trial; and/or deposition
testimony or any opinion in thi$ case. ‘ ' '

14.3  No conversations or commumcatlons between counsel and any testxfymg or
consultmg expert will be subject to discovery unless the conversatlons or commumca‘uons are ..
relied upon by such experts in formulating opinions that are presented in reports or trial or
dep051t1on testimony in thié case.

_I 4.4 Materials, commu‘nicationé, Vand other information exempt from diseovery
under the foregoing Paragraphs 14.1, 14.2, and 14.3 shall be treated as attorney-work product for -
the purposes of this- htlgatlon and Order |

15. MISCELL ous
"15.1 Rightto Further Relief: Nothmg in this O:der abridges the nght of any

- person to seek its modification by the Court in the future,

15, 2 Right to Assert Other Objections: By stipulating to the entry of this

Protective Order, no Party waives any right it would qtherW1se have to object to disclosing or

producing any mformatxon or item on any ground not addressed in this Stipulation and Proteotlve
Order. Similarly, no Party waives any right to object on any ground to use-in evidence of any of
the material covered by this Stipulation and Protective Order,

15,3  Computation of Time: The computation of any period of time prescribed

or allowed by this Order shall be governed by the provisions for computing time set forth’in
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 6. | |
154  Fact of Designation Not AdmlSSIb] The fact of deSJgnatlon or failure to
deSJgnate, Dlsclosure or Discovery Materials as CONFIDENTIAL or HIGHLY
CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEYS’.EYES ONLY pursuant to this Stipulation and Protective
Order shall not be admissible for any purpose in a trial on the merits or at any.other proceeding
other than at a preceeding arising from or related to thi's Stipuhlation end Protective Order.
STIPLJLATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY ' ' 21
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155 'Successors: This Order shall be binding upoﬁ the Parties hereto, their
attorneys, and their successors, executors, heirs, assigns, and employees, |
15.61 The provisions of this Stipulation and Protective Order do not apply to any
trial proceedings in this Action. The Parties will separately request the Court to enter an Order
governing the handling of such materials at frial. ‘

15.7 ", The Court shall retain jurisdiction to enforce the terms of this Stipulation

- and Protective Order.

15.8 Nothing in this.Stipulation and Order shall alter the requirements for and
scope of expert discovery in accordanoe with Federal Rule of Clvil Procédure 26, local rules, and
cass law, . . '
‘ 15.9 The procedufes set forth in this Stipulaﬁon and Order spall apply to every .
action that is subject to this proceeding, whether filed in or transferred to this Court for so long as

such actions are pending.

STIPULATED AND AGREED TO BY: .

Dated: August 24, 2015 By __/s/ Derek D. Foran
' : “Derek D. Foran

LINDA E. SHOSTAK (CA SBN 64599)
LShostak@mofo.coin o
DEREK F, FORAN (CA. SBN 224569)

Dforan@mofo.com
CHRISTOPHER L, ROBINSON

(CA SBN 260778)
ChristopherRobinson@mofo.com
425 Market Street

San Francisco, CA 94105-2482
Telephone: 415-268-7000
Facsimile: 415-268-7522

Attorney for Plaintiff NATIONAL
ABORTION FEDERATION (NAF)

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY ' y)
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Dated: August 24, 2015

Dated: August 24, 2015

By:___ /s/ Carly F. Gammill
Carly F. Gammill

BRIANR, CHAVEZ-OCHOA (CA Bar
190289)

brianr@chavezochoalaw.com
CHAVEZ-OCHOA LAW OFFICES, INC,
4 Jean Street, Suite 4

Valley Springs, CA 95252

. Tel: (209) 772-3013; Fax: (209) 772-3090

EDWARD L. WHITE III (MI Bar P62485)
ewhite@acli.org

-BRIK M. ZIMMERMAN (MI Bar P78026)

ezimmerman(@aclj,org

AMERICAN CENTER FORLAW &
JUSTICE

3001 Plymouth Road, SU]tC 203

Ann Arbor, MI 48103

Tel: (734) 680-8007

Fax: (734) 680-8006

CARLY F. GAMMILL (TN Bar 28217)
cgammill@aclj-de.org’

ABIGAIL A. SOUTHERLAND (TN Bar
022608) -

asouthetland@acli.org
AMERICAN CENTER FOR LAW &

JUSTICE

201 Maryland Avenue, NE
Washington, DC 20002
Tel: (202) 546-8890

Fax: (202) 546-9309

Attorneys for Defendant,
TROY NEWMAN

By: /s/ D. John Saver .
D. John Sauer

CATHERINE W. SHORT (CA Bar 117442)
LIFE LEGAL DEFENSE FOUNDATION
P.0. Box 1313
Q}al, CA 93024-1313

Tel: (707) 337-6880
Fax: (805) 640-1940

E-Mail: LLDFOlai@earthlink. nei

D. John Sauer

James Otis Law Group, LLC

231 South Bemiston Ave., Suite 800
St. Louis, Missouri 63105

Bmail: isauer@iamesotis.com

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY
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Thomas Brejcha
Thomas More Society
19 La Salle St., Ste, 603
Ch1cago IL 60603

. Bmall 161cha@ﬁhomasmoresomety org

Attorneys for Defendanrs

The Center for Medical Progress, Biomax
Procurement Services LLP, David Daleiden (aka
“Robert Sarkis”)

ATTESTATION OF E-FILED SIGNATURE .

I Derek F. Foran, am the ECF user whose D and password are be1ng used to ﬁlc this
[PROPOSED] STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR PURPOSES OF EXPEDITED
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION DISCOVERY." In compliance with C1V1I Local Rule 5-1()(3),1

hereby attest that Carly Gammill and John Sauer have concurred | in this ﬁllng

'Dated: August24,2015 . MORRISON & FOERSTER LL

By: _/s/ Derek Foran
Derek F. Foran

Attorneys for Plaintiff
' NATIONAL ABORTION FEDERATION

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY ' 24
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PURSUANT TO STIPULATION, IT 1S 50 ORDERED.

Date: August 26, 2015 it i . o
Unifed States District Judge

’

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY
CASENO. 3:15-¢v-3522-WHO
sf-3563261
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E.X..H..ILI'ILA;I '

GENERAL ACKNOWLEDGM [EN'T OF CONFIDENTIALITY AND AGREEMENT TO
BE BOUND BY PROTECTIVE ORDER

1, , declare under penalty of perjury that I have
read in its entirety and understand the Stipul’%‘cion and Protective Order that was issued by the

United States District Court for the Northern Distriot of California on N . 201_

in the case of National Abortion Federatzon v, Center for Medical Progress et al., Case No, 3 15-
0v-3522-WHO, pending in the Northern Dlstrict of California.
I agree to comply with and be bound by all the terms of thé Stipulation and Protective
Order, and I understand and acknowledge that failure to so cpmpiy could expose me to sanctions
and.punishment in the nature of contempt.. I solemnly promise that I will not disclose in any
manner any information or item thet is subject to the Stipulation and i’rotec"uive Order to any
person or éntity‘ except in strict compliance with the p‘roviéions of the Stipulation and Order.

I further agree to submit to the jurisdiotion of the United States District Court for the

INorthern District of California for the purpose of enforcmg the terms of the Stxpulatlon and

Protective Order even if such enforcement proceedmgs occur after tetmination of this actlon.

Executed on at .8t
Name: -
Address:
STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY - 26
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

NA;I'IONAL ABORTION FEDERATION,
eta 9 \

, Plaintiffs, :

, ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR
v. , | PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

Case No, 15-cv-03522-WHO |

CENTER FOR MEDICAL PROGRESS, et | Re:Dkt. Nos.3, 109, 222, 225,287, 298,
L, E
& ‘| . 310,320, 322, 346, 352

- Defendants.

On July 31, 2015, plajntiff National -Abortiqn. Federatic')h (NAF) filed this la\;vsuit and
sought a Ternpérary Restrainih.g Order to prohibit defendants David Daleiden, Troy Newman, and
the Center for Medical Progress from publishihg recordings taken at NAF Annual Meetings, NAF
alleged, and it has turned out to be true, that deféndants secured false identification and set up e
phony corporation to obtain éurreptitious recordings in violation of agreements they had :signed
that acknowledge that the NAF information is confidential and agreed that they could be enjoined

" in the event of a breach. In light of ’choée facts, because the subjects of videos that defendants had
released in the previous two weeks had become victims of death threats and severe harassment,
and in light of the wgll—documen’ced histoty of violence against abortion provi ders,-I'issued the
TRO. ,

The defendants’ priﬁcipal argumeﬁts against iﬁj unctive rel.ief rest on their rights under the
First Amendment, a keystone of our Constitution and our aemocraoy. It énsures that the-
government may not — without compelling reasons in rare circumstances — restrict the free flow of
information to time public. It provides that “debate on public issues should be uninhibited, robyst,
and wide-open.” New York Times Co. v, Sullivan, 376 U.S, 254, 270 (1964). But Constitutionsl

rights are not absolute. In rare circumstances, freedom of speech must be balanced against and
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give way to the protection of other compelling Constitutional rights, such as the First
Amendment’s right to freedom 6f association, the Fiftli and Fourteenth Amendments’ protection
of liberty interests, and the right to privacy. After fully considering the record before me, I
concluqe that NAF has made such a showing here, |

Discovery has proven that defendants and their agents created ‘a fake company and lied to
gain access to NAF’s Annual Meetipgs in order to secretly record NAF members for their Human
Capital Project, In furtherance of that Project, defendants released conﬁtgential information
gathered at NAF’s meetings and intend to release more in contravention of the confidentiality
agreements required bS/ NAF. Critical to my decision are that the defendants agreed to injunctive
fg:lief if they breached the agreemeﬁts and that, after the release df defendants’ first set of Human
Capital Project videos and related information in July 2015, there has been a documented,
dramatic increase in thé volume and extent of threats to and harassment of NAF and its members,

-Balanced against these facts are defendants’ allegations that their video a.nd audio

recordings show criminal activity by NAF members in profitesting from the sale of fetal tissﬁe. I
have reviewed the recordings relied on by defendaﬁts and find no evidence of criminal activity.
And I am skeptical that exposing criminal activity was really defendants’ purpose, since they did
not provide recordings to law énforcement following the NAF 201T4 Annual Meeting and only

provided a bit of information to law enforcement beginning in May, 2015. But I have not

_interfered with the Congressional committee’s subpoena to obtain the recordings to make its own

evaluation, nor with the subpcgenas from the states of Arizona and Louisjana (alfhough [ have
approved a process to insure that only subpoenaed material is turned over). - Y

Defendants also claim that the injunction is an unconstitutional prior restraint. They ignore
that they agreed to keep the information secret and agreéd to the remedy of an injunction if they
breached the agreement. Confidentiality agreements are common to protect trade sectets and other
sensitive information, and individuals who sign such agreements are not free to ignore them
because they think the public would be interested in the protected information,

Thefe is no doubt that membets of the public have 4 serious and passionate interest in the

debate over abortion rights and the right to life, and thus in the contents of defendants’ recordingé.
) )
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Tt should be said that the majority of the recordings lack much public intercst,'.and despite the
misleading contentions of defendants, there is little that is new in the remainder of the recordings.
Weighed against that public interest are NAF’s and ifs members’ legitimate interests in their rights
to privacy, security, and association by n‘;mintaining the confidentiality of their presentations and
cbnversati ons at NAF Annual Meetings. The balance is strongly in NAF’s favor.

Having fully reviewed the record before me, I GRANT NAF’ s motion for a preliminary
injunction to protect the confidentiality of the information at issue pending a 'ﬁnal"judgm‘ent in this
case. | |

BACKGROUND

L THE CENTER FOR MEDICAL PROGRESS AND THE HUMAN CAPITAL
PROJECT : : :

In 2013, defendant David Daleiden founded the Ceﬁtér for Medical Progress (“CMP”) for
the putpose of monitoring and reporting on medical ethics, with a focus on bioethioal issues

related to induced abortions and fetal tissue harvesting. Declaration of David Daleiden (Dkt. No,

:265-3, “Daleiden P1 Decl.”) §2, CMP is incorporated in California as a nonprofit public benefit

| corporation, with a stated purpose “to monitor and report on medical ethics and advances.” NAF

Appendix of Exhibits in Supporf of Motion forﬂPre]iminary Injunction (“Pl. BEx.”) 9 (at
NAF0000533).' In order to;obfa'm CMP’s tax-exempt status:, in its registre}tion with the California
Atton":ey Ge'neral.an;i in its application with the Internal Revenue éervice Daleiden certiﬁec‘i,
among otﬁer things, that “[n]o‘substantial part of the ac;tivities of this corporation sﬁal]‘ consist of

carrying on propaganda,'or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and this corporationishall

! Defendants raise a number of objections to NAF’s evidence. See Dkt. No. 265-7.” These
evidentiary objections were submitted as a separate document in violation of this Court’s Local
Rules. Civ.L.R. 7-3(8). Recognizing that error, defendants filed a motion asking for leave to file
an amended Opposition or for relief therefrom. Dkt. No. 298, That motion is GRANTED and I
will consider defendants’ evidentiary objections. See also Dkt. No. 301, To the extent I rely on
evidence to which defendants object, I will address the specific objection, bearing in mind that on
a motion for prelitinary injunction evidence ‘is not subject to the same formal procedures as on a
motion for summary judgment or at trial and that a court may consider hearsay evidence, See,
e.g., Flynt Distrib. Co. v. Harvey, 734 F.2d 1389, 1394 (9th Cir. 1984). To the extent I do not rely
on specific pieces of evidence, defendants’ objections to that evidence are overruled as moot.
These evidentiary rulings apply only to the admissibility of evidence for purposes of determining
the motion for a preliminary injunction,
o 3
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not participate or intervene in any political campaign.” P1 Ex. 9 (at NAFOOOOSSS); PL Ex. 10 (at

| NAF0001789).

As part of CMP’s work, Daleiden created the “Human Capital Project” (“Project”) to

“investigate, document, and repoﬁ on the procurement, transfer, and sale of fetal tissue.” Daleiden

.PIDecl. | 3. The Project’s goal is to uncover evidence regarding violations of state and/or federal

law due to the sale of fetal tissue, the alteration of aportibn procedures to obtain fetal tissue for
research, and the commission of partial birth abortions.- Id. Putting the Project into action,
Daleiden created a fake front company that p_urportedly suppiies researchers with human,
biological specimens and specifically secured funding from. supporters in order to infiltrate NAF’s
2014 Annual Mesting, Pl Ex. 26. The express aim of that infiltration was to: “1) netwotk with -

the upper echelons of the abortion industry to identify the best targets for further investigation and |

| ultimate pfosecution, and 2) gather video and documentary evidence of the fetal body parts trade

and other shocking activities in the abortion industry.” Id. |

Defendanf Troy Newman was, until January 2016, a.board member and the s;':oretary of
CMP. He counseled Daleiden on the efforts ’Fo set up the fake compény, to infiltrate meetings, and
to secure recordings in support of the Project. PI. Ex. 14 (at NAF0004475-76); Pl Ex.;lé (at
NAF0004493-94); see also Dkt. No. 3442 The résult of the Project, Newman hoped, would be
prosecution of abortion provideré, stgté and Congressional investigations, the defundihg of

Planned Parenthood by the government, and the closure of abortion clinics. PL Ex, 16 (at ‘

- NAF0004494, 4496); P1. Ex. 136 at 16.3 Defendant Newman is President of Obération Rescue, an

anti-abortion group that posts the names and work addresses of abortion providers on its website
ahd.manages another website that lists every abortion facility and all known abortion providers,

P1. Exs. 18,20, 21, 22.*

.2 Defendants object to Exhibits 14 and 16 for lack of foundation and authentication. Defendants
. do not contend these transcripts do not ascurately represent the contents of the recordings attached

as. Exhibits 15 and 17, Defendants’ objections are overruled. .

3 Defendants object to Exhibit 136 on the grounds of relevance, lack of foundation, and lack of
authentication, Defendants to not contend the transcript does not accurately represent the contents
of the recording identified. Defendants’ objections are overruled. .

4 After the public launch of the Project on July 15, 2015, counsel for CMP and Daleiden, Life
Legal Defense Foundation, explained that it had also been involved in the Project as a legal

4 .
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IL. - THE CREATION OF BIOMAX AND INFILTRATION OF NAF’S 2014 AND 2015
ANNUAL MEETINGS

" In September 2013, Daleiden directed “investigators” on the Project (known by the aliases
Susan Tennebaum and Brianna Allen) to attend a conference of the Association of Reproductive
Health Professionals (ARHP) as'a.r.epresentativeof a fake business, BioMax Procurement
Services. That business did not exist, otherthan to be a “front” for the Project. Daleiden PI Decl.
1 8; P Ex. 26. baleiden’s associates spoke with representatives from NAF, and BioMax was |
invited to apply to attend the NAF Annual Meeting in San Francisco, California the following
April. Daleiden PI Decl.  10. | | -

In February 2014, defendant CMP received 2 grant to fund the “infiltration of the . .. NAF
Annual Meeting.” Pl Exs. 26, 36; Deposition Transcript of Déyid baleiden (Dkt. No. 187-3)
213:14-214:6. To that end, Daleiden followed up with the NAF representatives — posing as
Brianna Allen on behalf Tennenbaum and BioMax —and received-a copy of the 2014 NAF Annual
Meeting Exhibltor Prospectﬁs ar;d Exhibitor Applioation'for the upcoming meeting, Dal'eiden PI
Decl. §11; PL Ex.. 43.‘ Daleiden filled out the Exhibitor Aﬁplica’cion packet — comprised of the
“Exhibit Rules and Regulations™ (“Eihibit Agreément” or “BA™), the “Application and Agreement
for Exhibit Splatce,” and the “Annual Meeting Begistraition Form.” Daleiden signed Susan
Tennenbaum’s name to the EA, and returned the Application packet. Daleiden PI Decl. 11; PL.
Ex. 3; Daleiden Depo. at 160:8-18.

In February 2015,'Daleidep contacted NAF seekihg infqnﬁation ‘about BioMax exhibiting
at NAF’s 2015 Annual Meeting’ in Baltimore, Maryland. Pl Bx. 47. Daleiden again filled out the
“Application Agreemen‘ﬁ for Exhibit Space,” “Bxhibit Rules and Regulations,” and “Registration
Form,” signing Susan Tehnenbaum’s name to the EA, Pl Exs. 4, 47 Daleiden Depo. at 287:5-
227

advisor “since its inception” and were committed to defunding “contract killer” Planned
Parenthood. Pl Ex. 24, Defendants object to Exhibits 18, 20 21 and 22 as irrelevant and
inadmissible hearsay. Those objections are overruled.

® On the 2014 EA, Daleiden listed the “exhibitor representatives” as Brianna Allen a Procurement
Assistant, Susan Tennenbaum the C.E.Q., and Robert Sarkis a V.P, Operations. Pl. Ex. 3. On the
2015 EA, Daleiden listed the exhibitor 1epresentat1ves as Susan Tennenbaum the C.E.O., Robert
Sarkis the Procuremnent Manager, and Adrian Lopez the Procurement Technician, Pl. Ex. 4.

5
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Both the 2014 and 2015 EAs contain confidentiality clauses:

In connection with NAF’s Annual Meeting, Exhibitor undsrstands
that any information NAF may furnish is confidential and not
available to the public, Exhibitor agrees that all written information
provided by NAF, or any information which is disclosed orally or
visually to Exhibitot, or any other exhibitor or attendee, will be used
solely in conjunction with Exhibitor’s business and will be made
available only to Exhibitor’s officers, employees, and agents.
Unless authorized in writing by NAF, all information is confidentigl
and should not be disclosed to any other individual or third parties.

Pl.Exs. 3 & 4 at § 17. Above the signature line, the BAS provide: “I also agree to hold in trust

and confidence any confidential information received in the course of exhibiting at the NAF

Annual Meeting and agree not to reproduce or disclose confidential information without express

permisisz‘on Jrom NAF.; . Pl. Bxs. 3, 4 (emphasis in originals).

Thg EAs required Exhibitor representatives to “be registered” for the NAF Annual Meeting
and wear badges in.order to gain entry into exhibit halls and meeting rooms. Id. §8. The BAs |
also prqvide that. “[p]hotography of exhibits by anyone other than ﬁAF or the assigned Bxhi\bitor
of the space being photographed is strictly prohibited.” Id. § 13. The EAs required an ' |
affirmation: ;‘[b]y siéning thig Agreemeﬁt, the Exhibitor affirms that all information contained -
herein, contained in any past and future correspondence wi:th either NAF and/or in any '
publication, advertisements, and/or exhibits displayed at, or in connection With; NAF’s Annual -
Mee‘iing, is truthful,' accurate,'complete, and not misleading.”‘ Id.q i9. Fin’ally; ‘the EAs provide
that breach of the EA can be enforced by “specific p'érformanoe and injunctive relief” in addition
to all other remedies available eit law or equity. Id. §18. .

. In order to gain access to the NAF Annual Meetihgs, Exhibitor representatives also had to
show identification and sign a “Confidentiality Agreement” (“CA”). Declaration of Mark Mellor
(Dkt. No. 3-33)§ 11.% For the 2014, Annual Meetihg Daieiden (as Sarkis) and the individuals

5 NAF has identified copies of two drivers licenses it claims were used by Daleiden and
Tennenbaum to access the NAF meetings. Pl. Exs. 49-50. During his deposition, Daleiden
asserted his Fifth Amendment rights and rtefused to testify about the licenses. Foran PI Decl. ]
31-32. Defendants object to Exhibits 49 and 50 for lack of personal knowledge, Those objections
are overruled. - . : .

Relatedly, NAF filed a motion to supplement the Preliminary Injunction record, to include

_a press release from the Harris County District Attorney’s office in Houston Texas. Dkt No. 346,

That motion is GRANTED. In the press release, the District Attorney explained that a grand jury
6
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pretending to be Tcnhcnbaum and Allen, ca..ch signed a CA. Pl Exs, 5, 6; Daleiden PI Decl.  13.
For the 2015 Annual Meeting, the individual pre‘gending to be Adrian Lgpez, signed the Cx.bx. PL
Ex. 8.7 Daleiden (as Sarkis), Tenn'enbau'm, and Allen did not sign the 2015 CAs. When Daleiden,
Tennenbaum, éﬁd Allen were at the registration table, they were met by a NAF representative. A

‘NAF representative asked Daleiden to confirm that the sign-in staff had checked their

. identifications and that they had signed the confidentiality forms. Daleiden responded “Yeah yeah

yeah. Excellent, Thank you so much....” Declaration of Derek Foran in Support of Preliminary .
Injunction (Dkt. No. 228-6) § 79C®; Daleider Decl. § 17; Daleiden Depo. 290:2 -291:14, D‘aleide'n ‘
testified that it was his “preference” to avoid s.igning the 2015 CA. Daleiden Depo, at 291:15-25,
The CAs provide: ' |

It is NAF policy that all péople attending its conferences (Attendees)
sj,«irln this confidentiality agreement. The terms of attendance are as
follows: : : ' .

" 1, Videotaping or Other Recording Prohibited: Attendees are
prohibited tgrom making video, audio, photographic, or other
recordings of the meetings or discussions at this conference.

2. Use of NAF Conference Information: NAF- Conference
Information includes all information distributed or otherwise
made avajlable at this conference by NAF or any conference
participants through . all written materials, discussions,
workshops, or other means. . . .

3. Disclosure of NA¥ Materials to Third Paities: Attendees may
not disclose any NAF Conference Information to third parties
without first obtaining NAF’s express written consent . . . .

Pl. Exs. 5-8.

had cleared a local Planned Parenthood affiliate of wrongdoing, but indicted Daleiden and the
person posing as Susan Tennenbaum for tampering with governmental records, presumably -
related to their use of false identification to gain access to meetings in Texas. Jd. :
In his deposition; Daleiden testified that he created false business cards To use at the ARHP

meeting and the NAF Meetings for.Susan Tennenbaurh, Robert Daoud Sarkis, and Brianna Allen,
Pl. Ex. 51; Daleiden Depo. at 200:2 — 201:6 (business cards used atthe 2014 Meeting); see also
Pl Exs. 51, 52 & Daleiden Depo. at 315:23 —316:19 (business cards for Adrian Lopez and Susan
Wagner used at the 2015 Annual Meeting); Declaration of Megan Barr (Dkt. No. 226-27) { 4-5
g.use of business card at 2015 Meeting).

Daleiden testified that all of the “investigators” involved in the Project were CMP “contractors”
acting under Daleiden’s specific direction, Daleiden Depo. Trans. at 131:7-24, 135:21-136:11,
11\194:1, 1694:10~195:6; see also Daleiden Supp. Resp. to NAF Interrogatories (Dkt. No. 227-18)

0s, 2, 6. . ' . .
479(C) refers to a specific excerpt of a recording taken by Daleiden. Sub-Bates 15-062; Time
stamp; 14:56:02-14:56:50, The Court has reviewed all recording excerpts or transeripts of
recording excerpts cited in this Order. :

7
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Atthe 2014 and 2015 Annual Meetings, Daleiden and his associates wore and carried a
variety of ;ecording devices that they did not disclose to NAF or any of the meeting attendees.
Daleiden Depo. at 118-121; 255; 292-93. Daleiden and his associates did not limit their recording
to presentatidns or conversations regarding fetal tissue, but instead turned on their recording
devices before entering the meetings sach day and only turned them off at the end of the day.
Daleiden Depo. at 121:24-122:22, 124;1-15. Inthe end they recorded approximately 257 hours
and 49 minutes at NAF's 2014 Annual Meeting and 246 hours and 3 minutes at NAF’s 2015
Annual Meetmg They recorded convarsanons with attendess at the BioMax Exhibitor booths, the
formal sessions a’c the Meetlngs, and interactions with attendees during breaks. Foran P1 Decl. g2
& Pl Ex. 1°% Daleiden'PI Deol.ﬂ 18; Daleiden Depo. at 122:18-123:25; 293:4-25. The .
interactions with indiyiduals were recorded in exhibit halls, hallways, and reception areas where
Daleiden contends hotel staff ’were“"regularly” present. Daleiden PI Dgpl, {18, Hotel staff were
also present in the rooms during presentations and talks, but hotel staff did not sign confidentiality
agreements, 1. 119 Deposmon of Vicki Saporta (Defendants’ Ex. 7) at 33: 10-23 Broadly
speaking, the majority of the recordmgs fack any sort of public interest and consist of
communications that are tangential to the ones discussed in this Order.

During the Annual Meetings, Daleiden and his associates would meet to “discuss our , .. -
strategy for . . . the prbject and for the mee,ting,"’ including “specific strategies for specific

individuals.” Daleiden Depo. at 134:15-135:6, The associates were given a “mark list” to identify

their targets. Foran PI Decl, 1] 79D (Sub-Bates; 15-145; Time stamp: 14:56:02—14:56:50). The

group also plcked targets based on circumstance: in one instance, Dalexden tells “Tennenbaum”
that it “would be 1eal]y good to talk tonight” with a particular doctor “now that she’s been
dnnkmg ? Id, | 79E (Sub-Bates: 15-225; Time stamp 15:33: 100 - 15:34: 00).

In approaching these individuals, the group used “pitches” in their ef’foﬁs to capture NAF

members agreeing to suggestions and proposals made by the group about the “sale” of fetal tissue

Q

? Plaintiff’s Exhibit 1 is a copy of the hard drive produced by defendants containing the audio and
video recordings made by Daleiden and his associates at the 2014 and 2015 NAF Annual
Meetings.

8
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or other conduct that might suggest 2 violation of state or federal law. Daleiden told his associates
that their “goal” was to trap people into “saying something really like messed up, like yeéth, like,
I’llA give them,;lil_ce,‘ live everything for you, You know, If they say something like that it would be
cool.” Id. § 79G (Sub-Bates: 15-021; Time Stémp§ 5:13-5:49). Daleiden also instructed his grouj)
to aftempt to gét attendees to say the words “fully intact béby” on tap;e. Id. ] 79H (Sub-Bates: 15-
1‘52;’Time Stamp: 16:06:50-16:07:00). As part of their efforts, “Tennenbaum” would explain to ‘
providers that she “can make [feta] tissue donation] extremely financially profitable for you® and .
that BioMax has “money that is available” and is “sitting on a goldmine” as long as you're |
“willing to be a .little. creative with [your] technique.” Foran PI Decl. § 797 (Sub-bates: 15-152 -
Time Stamp: 15:48:00 - 15:52:00). She asked NAF attendees: “what wotild make it profitable for
you? Give me a ballpark ﬁgﬁre Lo 1d Of “[i]f it was financially very .proﬂté.ble fo;you to
perhaps bea little creativé in your m.ethod, v&'/o'uld yé;u be open t0* providing patients with
reimbursements for ti'ssue doﬁatio'ns. Id, 9§ 79K (Sﬁb-bates: 15-203; Time Stamp: 12:09:00 -
12:10:21). |

The parties c{ispute whether these goals were met and if defendants’ traps worked. "
Def;andants argue.that they captured NAF attendees agreeing' to explére, or at least expressing
interest in explori'ng, being c'ompensatea for the sale of fetal t@ssue at a pr,oﬁt, which defendants
contend is illegal L;nder state ahd federa] laws. Defendants’ Opposition to Motion for Preliminary
Injunetion (Dkt. No. 262-4) at 10-14. However, they tend to misstate the conversations that |

occurred or omit the context of those statements. For example, defendants rely on a conversation

10 NAF argues that defendants cannot rely on any portion of the recordings to oppose NAF's
motion for a preliminary injunction. NAF Reply Br. at 29-30. NAF is correct that under
Celifornia and Maryland law, recordings taken in violation of state laws prohibiting recordings of
confidential communicédtions are not admissible in judicial proceedings, except as proof of an act
or violation of the state statutes. See Cal, Penal Code § 632(d); Feldman v. Allstate Ins. Co., 322

"F.3d 660, 667 (9th Cir. 2003) (concluding that § 632(d) is a substantive law, applicable in federal

court on state law claims); see also Md. Code Ann., Cts. & Jud.-Proc, § 10-405; Standiford v.

. Standiford, 89 Md. App. 326, 346 (1991). Because the accuracy of defendants’ allegations of

criminal conduct are central to this decision, however, I discuss the portions of the recordings
relied upon by plaintiff and defendants in some detail in this section, To place this discussion
under seal would-undermine my responsibility to the public as a court of public record to explain

" my decision. Consistent with the TRO and the reasoning of this Order, in describing the protected

conversations I balance the interests of the providers’ privacy, safety and association by omitting
names, places, and other-identifying information.
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with a clinic owner where Daleiden suggests BioMax could pay $60 per sample instead of $50 per
sample, Defs, Ex. 8, The clinic owner dbesn’t;espond to that suggestion; or give any indication
about the actual costs to the clinic of facflitating outside companies to come in and collect fetal’
tissue. 1d. Instéad, the clinic ovkvr"ler responds that providing tissue to outside companies “is a nice

way to get extra income in a very difficult time, and you know patients like it.” Id.!' Defendants

point to another conversation where a provider asks what the “reimbutsement rate” is for the

'clinio, and was told “it.varies” by Tennenbaum, ‘Defs. Ex. 9 (Dkt. No. 266-4) at p. 18, Then, in

response‘tq Tennenbaum’s suggestion about whether she’d “be open to maybe being a l@ttle
éreative in the procedure,” the provider resporids that she was not sure and would have to discuss
it_a'.nd run it by the doctors. Defs. Ex..9 ‘(Dkt. No. 266-4) at p. 18. Tennenbaum explains that
specimens “go fér” anywhere from “500 up to 2,000” and so “you can see how profitable” it

would be for clinics, to which the provider says “Yeah, absolﬁtely” and a different provider says

“that would be great” in response to comments about having further discussions. 7d, at p. 19,

Another provider responded to defendants’ Ilsuggesﬁon of financial incentives by indicating
that the clinic would be “yery happy about it,” but admitted others would have to app‘rove itand it
wasn’tup to her, I, Dkt. No, 266-4 at p.8, Defendants point to a conversation with a provider

who discusses the “fine line” between an illegal partial birth abortion and the types of abortion that

* they perform, and the techniques that they employ to ensure that they do not'cross that line. Defs:

Ex. 10; Dkt, No, 266-5 at p. 4. That conversation, however, doe§ not indicate that any illegal
activity was occurting, Similarly; defendants contend that a provider statéd that he ordinarily
minimizes dilation, since that is .what is safest for the women, but that if he hed a 1'easovn to dilate
more (such as tissue procurement), he miéht perforrri abortions differentl.y. Oppo. Br, at 11, But
that is not what the provider said. After acknowledging tissue donation was not allowed in his
state, he stated that “I oou}d mop up my technique if you wanted something more intact, But right

now my only concern is the safety of the woman” and there was no reason to further dilate a

" Defendants do not suggest the “patients like it” is a suggestion that patients are being paid for’
the feta] tissue, Instead, in the context of that conversation, it.refers to patients that like providing
fetal tissue for research purposes. :

C 10
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).

woman, Defs. Ex. 11, Dkt. No, 266-6 at p.5. . |

Defendants rely on another conversation where an abortion provider explains that how
intact aborted fetuses are depends on the procedure used and that she does not ordinarily use
digoxin to terminate the fetu.s before performing 15-week abortions. Defs, Ex. 12, Dkt. No. 266-7, .
pgé. 1-8, She goes on to say that if there was a possibflify of donating the tissue to research,
women may choose that, and' vlvith the c;)nsent of the woman she woula be open to attempting to
obtain intact organs for procurement. Id. Again, this is not evidence of any wrongdoing.

In another conversation, a provider states that his/her clinic has postponed the stagé at
which digoxin is used and that as a result they can secure more and bigger organs for research so
the tissue “does not go to waste,” to 'wh'ich the vast maj.ority of women using theif facility consent.
Defs. Ex. 13, Dkt. No, 266-8 pgs. 1-8." Defendants contend that a provider commented that -
he/she may be willing to be “creative” on a case-by-case basis, but the provider was responding to
a question about doctors using digoxin in general. Defs. Ex, 9, Dkt. No. 266-4 pg. 13, And while
defendants characterize thaf provider as assenting to beirfg “creative,” so that BioMax could “keep

them happy financially” (Oppo. Br. at 11-12), the actual discussion was about off-setting the .

disruption that third-party technicians can have on clinic operations and keeping those disruptions

to a minimum. Id. at p. 14.

| In a different conversation, defendants characterize a provider as agreéiné to discuss ways
in which a finanéial transaction would be structured to make it look like a clinic was not selling
tissue. Oppo. Br. at }2, The unidentified female (there is no indication of where she works or
what role she plays) simply responds to Tennenbaum’s suggestions that in'response to ;-)ayment :
for tissue from BioMax the clinic could offer its services for less money or provide transportation
f61' the patients, with an interested but non-committal response and clarified “that’s something
we’d have to figure out how to do that.” Defs. Ex. 14, Dkt. No. 266-9 pgs. 1-4. Another provider
admits that doing intact D&Es for research purposés would “be challenging” and explained that

there are layers of people and approvals at the clinic before any agreements to work with a

12 There is no evidence that a deslire to secure more fetal tissue samples caused the clinic to alter
its procedures.
11
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bioprocurement lab could be reached, Defs. Ex. 9, Dkt. No. 266-4 pgs. 8-9,

‘ Defendants state that a provider responded to Tennenbaum’s comment that with the right
vision an arrangement can bé “extremely ﬁnancially proﬁtable,” with “we certainly do” have that
vision. Oppo. Br. at 12, But defendants omit that the context of the conversation was the “waste”
of fetal tissue that could otherwise be going to research. Defs. Ex. 9, Dkt.. No. 266-4 pgs. 2-3. In
the excerpt refied on by defendants,'aﬁer Tennenbaum mentioned the proﬁf she went onto
describe tiséue donétion working for those that have the “yision anci the passion for ressarch.” -

The provider responded, “Which we certainly do.” Jd. p, 2. Similarly, while defendants are

| correct that a provider did say, “if guys it looks like you’d pay me for [fetal tissue], that would be

aweséme-,” but omit that the prov’ider'preceded that comment with “I would love to have it [the
fetal tissue] go somewhere” and that the provider was excited about the possibility of the tissue -
going to be used in research to be “doing something.” Defs. Bx. 15, Dkt, No. 266-10. pgs. 1-2,
Defendants cite a handful of similar discussions — where “profit” “sale” or “top dollar” are
terms used by Dalsiden or Tennenbaum and then providers at some point following that lead in -
the conversation express general interest in exploring receiving payment for tissue — but those
conversations do not show that any clinic is mallging a profit off of tissué donations or that the ‘
providers are agreeing to a profit-making arrangement, Defendénts are correc;t that one provider
indi;:,ates it reéeived $6,000 a quarter frorflla bioprocurement Jab, but there is no discussion
showing that amount is profit (in excess of the costs of having third-party technicians on site and
providing access and storage for their work). Defs, Ex. 21, Dkt. No, 267-2p.2, An emp'loyee ofa
bioprocurement lab also agrees in response to statemerits from Tennenbaum that the ¢linios know |

it is “financially profitable” for them to work with bioprocurement labs and that arrangement helps

'3 Some of defendants’ citations are to comments about providers performing abortions
differently, not in terms of gestational timing, but in terms of attempting to keep tissue sampleg
more intact during the procedure if those samples might be of use for research. Oppo. Br. at 12-
13. There is no argument that taking those steps violates any law. Defendants also cite provider
comiments - for example, an abortion provider engaging in conduct “under the table” to get around
restrictions — which do not show up in the transcript excerpts they refer to. Oppo, Br.at 13, -
Finally, defendants rely on comments — from panel présentations and individual conversations —
where providers express the personal and societal difficulties they face in performing abortions,
There is no indication in those comments of any llegal conduct. Oppo. Br. at 12, 14-15.

12
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the clinics “significantly.” Defs. Ex. 23, Dkt. No, 267-4 p: 2.

Having reviewed the records or transcripts in full and in context, I find that no NAF
attendee admitted to éngag'ing in, agreed to engage ir;, or expressed interest in engaging in
potentiélly illegal sale of fetal tissue-for profit. The recordings tend to show an express rejection
of Daleiden’s and-his associates’ proposals or, at most, discussions of interest in being paid to
recoup the costs incurred by clinics to facilitate collection of fetal tissue for scientific research,

which NAF argues is legal. See, e.g., Foran PI Deol. | 79(1) (Sﬁb-bates: 14-147; Time Stamp

.05:56:00 - 05:57:00 (Dr. Nucatola identifying an “ethical problem” with Daleiden’s payment

proposal: “We jdst really want the affiliates to'be compensated in a way that is proportionaté to the
amount of work that’s required on their end o do it. In other words, we don’t seg it as a money
making Opportunity.'T!r.Lat’s not what it should be about.”); Foran PI Deécl. 9 79(K) (Sub-bates: 15-. .
203; Time Stamp: 12:09:00 - 12:10:21) (NAF attendee responding to Tennelﬁ.baun;’s proposal”

“Do the patients get any reimbursement? No, you can’t pay for tissue, right. You can't pay for .,

“tissue.”); Foran P1 Decl., 1 79(M) (Sub-bates: 15-010; Time Stamp: 24:29 - 25:43) (NAF attendee

responds that “we cannot have that conversation 'with you about béing creative,” because it
“crosses the line.”); Fotan PI Deci. T 79(N) (Sub-Bates: 15~010;.Tirr'1g Stamp: l59:18-1 :04:32)' .
(NAF attendee reSpo_nding to Tennenbaum with, “No profiteering or"appearance of proﬁtée.ring'.‘.
. we need it to be a donation program rather than a business oppottunity.”).

Defendants also gathe;*ed confidential NAF and NAF-member matetials at the Annual
Meetings, including lists and biographies of NAF faculfy and contact information for NAF
members: Foran P1 Decl. | 3; 1. Ex, 56 at 3; PI. Ex. 58.

. Following the 2014 Annijal Meeting, Daleiden followed up with the “targets’; he met at the
Meeting, in part to set up meetings \;vith aborti.on providers, including Dr. Deborah Nucatola. PI,
Exs. 26 (list of “targets™), 36, 59-61, 64-65, 67-69; Daleiden Depo, 257-ﬁ5§, 265-269, Ashe’
explained to his supporters 'a.nd funders in a report.pi'epared following the 2014 Meeting — in

which he shared some of the confidential NAF information that had been collected at that meeting

’

| " Dr. Nucatola was identified by defendants as a key target and the Senior Director of Medical

Services for Planned Parenthood, Pl Ex. 26. .
13
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— he was able to secure the follow up méetings because, following its attendance at the 2014
Annual Meeting, “BioMax is now a known and trusted entity to many key individuals in the upper
echelons of the abortion indusjry.” Pl. Ex. 26; see also Pl. Exs, 59-63 (emails to targets ,
referencing their meeting at NAF); P1. Ex. 64 (email to Dr. Nucatola); Daleiden Depo. at 253-259
(Daleiden’s follow-up with Dr. Nuéatola)'; Pl. Ex. 67 11 3-4 (StemExpress representative
explaining her initial meeting with Daleiden at the NAF 2014 Annual Meeting, as the reason a |
subsequent meeting was arranged); Daleiden Tr. at 271-274 (discussing his follow up - ‘
éomlnunications with StemExpress rep'resentativeé). In a recording following Daleiden and
Tennenbaum’s meetiﬁg with StemExpress representdtives; Da]eiden credited the ability to secure

that meetmg to “because like we’ve been at NAF. lee, we’ 1e $0 vetted and so llke " Foran Pl

Decl. § 12; PL Ex. 70 at FNPB029820150522190849.avi at 19 13:00-19:15:00).

1L * DEFENDANTS RELEASE HUMAN CAPITAL PROJECT VIDEOS

o On July 14, 2015, CMP released two videos of & lunch meeting that Daleiden had with Dr,
Nucatola, “key” target from the 2014 NAF Annual Meetmg Daleiden PI Decl, § 25; P1, Ex 26.
Dalexden testified that one of the videos “contained the entire conversation with Nucatola” arxd the
other was “a shorter summary version of the highlights from the conversation,” Id. CMP issued a
press .release in conjunction with the release of these videos entitled “Plgnﬁed Parenthoad’s Top

Doctor, Praised by- CEO, Uses Partial-Birth Abortion to Sell Baby.Parts.” Pl Ex. 66. NAF

{| counters that the “highlights” video was misleadingly edited and omits Dr, Nucatola’s comments

that “nobody should be selling tissue. That’s just not the goal here,” and her repeated comments
that Planned Parenthoéd would not sell tissue or profit 11_1 any way from tissue donations, Foran
TRO Decl. Ex. 18 at 7, 21-22, 25-26, 34, 48, 52-54.

On July 21,2015, CMP released two more videos: a 73-minute video and a shorter
“highlights summary” from Daleiden’s lunch'méeting with Planned Parenthood “staff member” -

Dr. Mary Gatter. Daleiden PI Decl, §26. CMP issued a press release in conjunction with the

' 'release of these videos entitled “Second Planned Parenthood Senior Executive Haggles Over Baby

Parts Prices, Changes Abortion Methods.” PI. Ex. 71. NAF again contends the “highlight” video

was misleadingly edited, including the omission of Dr., Gatter’s comments that tissue donation was
14 '
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not about profit, but “about people wanting to 860 something good come out” of their situations,
“they want to see a silver lining....” Pl Ex. 82 at NAF0001395.

CMP has continued to release other videos as part of the Project, including one featuring a

site visit to Planned Parenthood Rocky Mountains, where Savita Ginde is Medical Dirsctor. °

Daleiden PI Decl. § 27. On.July 30,2015, CMP issued a press release in conjunction with the
release of this video entitled “Planned i’arenthooql VP Says Fetuses May Come Out fntact, Agrees
Payments Specific to the Specimen.” Pl Ex. 74,13

Daleiden asserts that when CMP released the “highlight” or summary videos, CMP also
released “full” copies of the.underlying recordings. Daleiden‘PI Decl, 1925-27. NAF has
submitted a report by Fusion GPS, oompletedlat the request of counsel for Pianned Parenthood, '-
analyzing the videos released by CMP.and concluding that there is evidence that CMP edited
content out of the “full” videos and heavily edited the short videos “so as to misrepresent" .
stat;:ments made by Planned Parenthc;od representatives.” Pl, Ex. 77; see also P1. Exs. 78-79.'6

.The day before the first set of videos was released, CMP put together a press kit vyith
“messaging guidelines” that was circulat;d to supporters, Pl Ex. 135; Deposition Transo:ript of
Charles C. Johnson (Dl;t. No, 255-11) 70:22-71:19. In those guidelines, defendants assert that
their aim for the Project is to create “poii-‘ﬁical breséure” on Planned Parentﬁood, focusing on
“Congtessional hearings/investigation and political consequences fo'1.'” Planned Parenthood such as
d-ef’u-ndir.ng and abortion limits, Pl. Ex. 135. ' ‘ | '

To be clear, the videos released by CMP as part of the Project to date do not contain

information recorded duringithe NAF Annual Mestings.!”" With respect to the NAF material |

15 See also P). Bx. 74 (CMP press release on fifth Project video; “‘Intact Feta] Cadavers® at 20
Weeks “Just a Matter of Line ltems’ at Planned Parenthood TX Mega-Center; Abortion Docs Can
*Make it Happen,’); Pl. Ex. 69 (CMP press release on eighth Project video; “Planned Parenthood
Baby Parts Buyer StemExpress Wants ‘Another 50 Livers/Week,” Financial Benefits for Abortion
Clinics.™); PL. Bx. 75 (CMP press release on ninth Project video; “Planned Parenthood Baby Parts
Vendor ABR Pays Off Clinics, Intact Fetuses ‘Just Fell Out.”); Pl, Ex. 76 (CMP press release on
tenth Project video; “Top Planned Parenthood Exec Agrees Baby Parts Sales ‘A Valid Exchange,’
Some Clinics ‘Generate a Fair Amount of Income Doing This.”), '

| '8 Defendants object to Exhibits 78-79 as inadmissible hearsay, for lack of personal knowledge

and authentication, and improper expert testimony. Those objections are overruled,
""NAF contenids that the meetings Daleiden had with Doctors Nucatola, Gatter, and Ginde that
resulted in the CMP videos would not have been possible without BioMax having fraudulently

15
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covered'i)y the TRO and at issue on the motion for ;at preliminary injunction, Daleiden affirms 'that
other than: (i) providing a StemExpress advertisement from the NAF 2014 Annuél Meeting
program to law enforcement in El Dorado County, California in May 2015; (ii) short clips of video
to law enforcement in Texas in June or.JuIy 2015; (iii) providing the 504 hours of recordings in .
responsq to the Congressional subpoena; and (iv) providing a short written report to CMP donors
_in April 2014, “Daleiden an(i CMP have made no other disclosures of recordings or documents

from NAF meetings.” Daleiden PI Decl. § 24." However, a portion of the NAF materials were

leaked and posted on the internet on October 20 and 21, 2015.13

Iv. IMPACT OF DISCLOSURES ON NAF AND ITS MEMBERS

NAF is a not-for-profit professional association of abortion providers, including private

and non-profit clinics, Planned Parenthood affiliates, women’s health- centers, physicians’ offices,

and hospitals, Declaration of Vioki Saporta (Dkt. No. 3-34) §2. It sets standards for abortion care’
through Clinical Policy Guidelines (CPGs) and Ethical Principles for Abortion Care, and 'develops ,

continuing medical edhcgﬁon and training programs and educational resources for abortion
provideérs and other health care professionals. Id. § 3. NAF also implem'ented a multi-faceted
security program to help ensure the safety of abortion providers by putting in place rei‘f’erehce,
security, f.md confidentiality requirem'en’cs for .its merhbershi'p and for attendance at its Meetings.

Id. §y 10-14; Declaration of Mark Mellor (bkt. No. 3-33) { 5-12. NAF tracks security threats to

abortion providers and clinics, and offers technical assistance, on-site security training, and

%ained access to NAF’s Annual Meetings and, thereby, appearing to be a legitimate operation,

This leak occurred after defendants produced NAF materials covered by the TRO to Congress,:

NAF argues —and moves for an Order to Show Cause asking me to sanction defendants —that
defendants violated my order and the TRO by producing to Congress NAF audio and video
recordings that were not directly responsive to the Congressional subpoena.. See Dkt. Nos. 155,
222, NAF complains that as a result of this “over production,” the subsequent leak included NAF
Materials that had nothing to do with alleged criminal activity, I heard argument on this motion -

-on December 18,2015, Dkt. No. 310. Having considered the representations of defense counsel, -

I DENY the motion for an order to show cause. Defendants did produce materials that were not .
covered by the subpoena, but were covered by the TRO, contrary to my Order allowing a response
to the subpoena., Dkt. No. 155, Defense counsel did so because in light of their conversations
with Congressional staffers, they believed Congress wanted “unedited” recordings, which defense
counsel interpreted to mean the whole batch of recordings, even those where fetal tissue was not
being discussed. At the hearing I cautioned defense counssl that in the future, before they take it
upon themselves to arguably violate an order from this Court — even if in good faith — they should
seek clarification from me first.
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assessments at facilities and homes of clinic staff, as well as 24/7 support to its members when
they are “facing an emergency or are targeted. Id. 10, 15; see also Declaration of Detek Foran in
Support of TRO (Dkt No. 3-2) § 6 & Ex 2 (NAF statistics documenting moré than 60,000 -
incidents of harassment, intimidation, and violence against abortion providers, including murder,.
shootings, arson, bombings, chemical andl acid attacks, bioterrorism threats, kidnapping, death
threats, -and other forms of violence between 1997 and 2014).. ‘ ‘ _

Follo;ving the release of the videos in July 2015, the subjects of those videos (including

Doctors Nucatola, Gatter, and Ginde), have received & large,amouht harassing communications

* (including death threats).” Pl, Exs, 80-81 (initernet articles and threats by commentators), 83-91;

see also Saporta Decl. § 19. Incidents of harassment and violence directed at abortion providers
in.creased nine fold in July 2015, over similar inf;idents in June 2014. Pl. Ex.92. The incidénts
continued'to sharply rise in August 2015. P1. Ex. 93, Tﬁe FBI has also reported séeing an increase
in attacks on reproductive health care facilities. PL Bx, 94."° Since July 2015, there have also
been four incidents of‘a'rson at Planned Parenfhood and NAF-member facilities. Saporta Depo. at
42:1-10; P). Exs. 96-99.%° Most significantly, the clinic where Dr. Ginde is medical director ~a
fact that was listed on the AbortinDocs'.org'website‘operated by defendant Newman’s Operation
Rescue group — was attacked by a gunman, resulting in three deaths. PL Exs. 18,.‘20, 21,22,
1487

- NATF’s President and CEO testified that there “has been a dramatic increase” in harassment - .

since July 14, 2015, and the “volume of hate speech and threats are nothing [ have ever seen in 20.

years.” PL Ex. 95 (Deposition Transeript of Vicki Séporta) at 16:17-23, 39:13-20; see also id. at

43:15-18 (“We have unéovered many, many direct threats naming individual providers. Those

'9 Defendants object to Exhibits 92 - 94 on the grounds that Foran lacks personal knowledge and
cannot authenticate the exhibits, as hearsay, and on relevance. Those objections are overruled. '

% Defendants object to Exhibits 96 - 99 as inadmissible hearsay, lack of personal knowledge, lack
of authentication, irrelevant and prejudicial. Those objections are overruled. Defendants also filed
a motion to supplement the Preliminary Injunction record with a news article indicating the
individual arrested in connection with the fire at the Thousand Oaks Planned Parenthood office
was not motivated by politics, but by a “domestic feud.” Dkt, No, 322. That motion is
GRANTED., _ . . '

2 Defelnélants object to Exhibit 148 as irrelevant and inadmissible hearsay, Those objections are
overruled, : ’
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providers have had to undergo extensive security precautions and believe they are in danger.””), In
reéponsé, NAF hired and committed additional staff to ménitoring the internet for harassment and
threats. Saporté Depo, at 38:2-20, NAF’s security. team has also seen an increase in off-hour
communications from members about sécurity. Mellor Deol. 115, As aresult, NAF has been
forced to take increased security measures at increased cost, has cut back on its communications
with members, and alerted hotel staff and security for its upcoming events th‘at those meetings
have been “compromised.” Jd. | 15. '

Two NAF members also submit declarations in support of NAF. Jennifer Dunn, a law
professor, submits a declaration explaining her expectation that she was filmed during the 2014
A.nnual Meeting during a panel presentation and that folllowing the release of the CMP videos, she

took steps to protect the safety and pﬂvac‘y of her family. Declaration of Jennifer T, Dunn (Dkt.

'No. 3-31) 7 10.2 She explains that she is fearful that CMP may release a misleading and highly

edited video featuring some or all of her panel presenté,tion that would open her up t(; the sort of
.public disparagement and intimidation she saw directed towards Doctors Nucatola and Gatter after
the CMP videos were released. 1d. 11 9-10.

Dr. Matthew Reeves, the mediéal director of NAF, submits a declaration explaining his
understanding that Daleiden filmed' conversations with him during the 2014 Annual Meeting,
Declaration of Dr. Matthew Reeves (Dkt. Nos) 12-16.2 Dr, Reeves explains that he has
witnessed “the terrible reaction towards the prior doctors” who were featured in CMP’s videos and
. he expects he “will suffer similar levels of reputationai harm should a heavily edited and
misteading video of me be released.” I4.§ 17. Because of his expectation that defendants could
“target” him, siﬁce_ the release of the videes, he had his home inspected by NAF’s security team.
and is installing a security system, but given the current atmosphére he remains fearful for his

safety and that of his family. Jd. §{ 19, 21.

2 Defendants object to paragraph 10 of Dunn’s declaration. as lacking'in personal knowledge,
improper expert testimony, inadmissible hearsay, and improper opinion. Those objections are
overruled. ’ ' . - .
%3 Defendants object to paragraph 12 of Dr, Reeves declaration as speculative, improper expert
testimony, improper opinion testimony, and for lack of personal knowledge. Those objections are
. overruled, . :
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Y. 'I‘EMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER AND PRELIMINARY INJU NCTION

On July 31, 2015, based on an apphcanon from NAF and after reviewing the preliminary.
evidentiary record, I granted NAF’s fequest and entered a Temporary Res’trainincy Order that

restramed and emomed defendants and thelr officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys,

'and any other persons who are in aotlve concert or pamclpatlon with them from:

(1) publishing or otherwise disclosing to any third party any video, audio, photographic, or
other recordings taken, or any conﬁdentxal information learned, at any NAF annual
meetings; .

(2) publishing or otherw1se dlsclosmg to any third party the dates or locatlons of any future
NAF meetings;-and

(3) publishing or otherwise disclosing to any thlrd party the names or addresses of any
NAF members learned at any NAF annual meetings.

Dkt. No. 15. On August 3, 2015 after rev:ewmg the arguments and additional evidence submltted

i by defendants, I issued an order keeping the TRO in place pendmg the hearmg and ruling on

NAF’s motion for a prelumnary injunction. Dkt. No.27. On August 26, 2015, I entered a
stipulated Protective Order, which provided that before 1espondmg to any subpoenas from law
enforcement entities for mformatlon designated as conﬁden‘ual tnder the Proteetwe Order, the

party receiving the subpoena must notify the party whose materials are at issue and inform the

ent1ty that issued the subpoena that the materials requésted arg covered by the TRO. Dkt. No. 92 °

9. The purpose of the notlce pmv1smn is to allow the party whose confidential materials are

sought the opportumty to meet and oonfer and, if neoessary, seek relief from the subpoena in the
court or tribunal from which the subpoena issued. Id. _

.In NAF’s motion for preliminary inj'unetion, NAF asks me to continue in effect the

mjunctxon provided in the TRO, but also to expand the scope to include the following:

(4) enjoin the publication or disclosure of any video, audio, photogmphlc or other-
recordings taken of members or attendees Defendants first made contact with at NAF
meetings; and publishing.or otherwise disclesing to any third party the dates or
locations of any future NAF meetings; and

(5) enjoin the defendants from attempting to gain access to any future NAF meetings.

19
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Motion (Dkt. No. 228-4) at i.
LEGAL STANDARD

“A plaintiff seeking a preliminary injunction must establish that he is likely to succeed on
the m_erits, that he is likely to suffer irreparable harm in the absence of preliminary relief, tﬁat the
balance of equities tips in his favor, and that an injuriction is inthe public interest.’” Al{iance Jor
the Wild Rockies v. Cottrell, 632 F.3d 1127, 1131 (9th Cir. 2011) (quoting Winter v. Nat. Res. Def '
Counctl, Inc., 555 US. 7 (2008))-. Where an injunction restrains speech, a showing of
“exceptional” circumstances nﬁay be required., as the Reporters Committee for Freedom of the
Press pointed out** See, &g, Bank Julius Baer & Co. Lz‘cj v. Wikileaks, 535 F. Supp. 2d 980., 985
(N.D. Cal, 2008). On ‘this,rec.oird, I conclude that exceptional circumstances exist, meriting the
continuation of injunctive relief pending'.ﬁnal resolution of this cése. '

' " DISCUSSION

I LIKELIHOOD OFSUCCESS | |

NAF’s Amended Complaint asserts eleven different oausés of action against the three -
def;ndants.' Dkt. No, 13}. in m_o.ving' for a preliminary injunction, NAF rests on only two —
breach of contract and violation of Cglifornia Penal Code section 632 — to argue its likelihood of

o

success on the merits,
A, Breach of Contract

Under California law,_to.su'cceed ona breach of contract claim, a plaintiff mtlst prove: ( 1,) ‘
the existence of a contract, (2) plaintiff performed or is exoused for r;onperformance, 3)
defendant’s breach, and (4) resulting damages to plaintiff. See, e.g, Reichert v. Gen. Ins, Co. of -
Am., 68 Cal, 2d 822, 830 (1968). NAF argues that defendants’ conduet: (i) breached the EAs, by
misrepresenting BioMax and their own identities; (ii) breached the EAs and CAs by secretly
recording during the Annual Meetings; and (iii) breached the EAS and CAs by disclosing and

publishing NAF’s confidential materials.

o

2 The Reporters Committee for Freedom of the Press resubmitted their motion asking the Court to
consider their amici euriae letter brief. Dkt No. 287. I GRANT that motion and consider the
Reporters Committee letter, as well as NAF’s response, and the Reporters' Committee’s reply.
Dkt. Nos. 109, 111, 114, 287. . :

20
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1 1. Exnstence of a Contract, C0n51deratlon for the Confidentiality Agreements
Defendants argue that NAF cannot enforce thé CA because that particular agreement was
2 not supported by considetation for the 2014 or 2015 Meetings. See Chicago Title Ins. Co. v, AMZ "
: Ins. Servs., Inc., 188 Cal, App. 4th 401, 423 (2010) (“Every executory contract requires '
4 consideration, which may be an act, forbearance, change in legal relations, br a prcmise.”).25 They
> contend that the only document that needed to be SIgncd to gain access to the NAF Meetings was
° the EA Therefore, according to defendants, there was no separate consideration given with
7 respcct to the CAs that were signed by or sought from the attendees at the NAF registration tables
’ because NAF already had a legal obligation to permit them .access to the mestings, Oppo. Br, at |
? (1920 - . | |
10 ' Defendants’ érgumen‘p is not supported by the facts. .The EAs on their face provided ac'cess
& to the exhibition area (“Exh;bit Rules and Regulatiops”) qzhd also required thét any exhibitor’s
E 'g i 4 répresentativeé be registered for the NAF Annual Meetings. Pl Exs. 3,4. The CAs were required
'Sb'f S‘; " as part of the registration for the NAF Annual Meetmg, and NAF’s evidence demonstrates that no
g qg s one was supposed to be allowed into the Meetings unless their identification was checked and they
g g e signed a CA. Deglaration of Mark Mellor (Dkt. No.l 3-33)111; Dunn Decl, | 6; see also Foran PI
' % % 1 Decl. § 79(C) (Sub-Bates 15-0§2; Time stam];?: 14:56:02-14:56:50) (NAF representative |
;5 E e conf’xr@ng that Daleiden .and associates had their identification oheolced: and signed QOnﬁdentiality
| agreements). Nothin'g in the language of the EAs or CAs, or the other facts in the record, support
Y defendants’ argument that upon signing the EAs, NAF had the leg;al obligation to pexrhit
20 Daleiden’s group access t() the 'meetinés without further requirement.
2 Other than lack of comsideration, the only other argument defendants appear to make with
22 respect to the.CA is that the CA cannot be enforced against Daleiden and two of his associates
23 || (Tennenbaum and Allen) because they did not execute CAs for the 2015 NAF Annual Meeting.
'24 Oppo. Br, at 19-20 & fh. 7. As an initial matter, there is no dispute tha'; everyone in balciden’s
zz - _'group,sign‘ed'the CAs for the 2014 Meeting. There is also no dispute that the reason Daleiden and -
27 1| 35 Defendants make no argument that the EA. was not supported by consideration. It plainly was;
g || .access to the exhibition ha[l in exchange for submission of the App]1ca1:10n and payment of the
exh1b1t01 fee. ”
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two of his associa’ﬁcs did not sign-the CAs for the 2015 Meeting is that Daleiden lied about it to a
NATF representative, Foran PI1Decl. §79(C) (Sub-Bates 15-062; Time stamp: 14:56:02-14:56:50).

Thers is likewise no dispute that at least one of the CMP associates working at Daleiden’s

| direction, “Lopez,” signéd thie 2015 CA. Given these facts, on this record, the 2015 CA can be

enforced against defendants for purposes of determining likelihood of success on NAF’s breach of

contract olaim. : .
I find that NAF has shown a ].ikelihood.of success on their breacb of contract claim based
ohthe 2014 and 2015 CAs. | |
2. Whether -Dei'endants’ Conduct Breached the EA

Defendants argue-that NAF cannot prevail on its claim that defendants misrepresented

 themselves in violation of the EA because Paragraph 15 of the EA only requires Exhibitors to

“identify, display, and/or represent their business, products, and/or services trut,hfully, accurately,

and consistently with the information provided in the Application.” Defendants contend that this

_requirement applies only to BioMax, not Daleiden and his associates.“individually,” and that -

NAF is attempting to base its breach claim on reﬁresentations defendants made about BioMax
and/or CMP outside of the NAF An;aual Mectings. Oppo. Br.at20-21.

| By signing the EA on behalf of a fake company, defendants CMP and Daleiden necessarily
violated paragraph 19 of the EA, which required the signatory’s affirmation that the information in
the Agreemént, as well as any information displayed at thg Meetings, was “truthful, accyrate,
complete, and not misleading.” PI Exs. 3,4, Similarly, by signing the EA and then displaying and
representing false and inaccurate information about BioMax at the Meetings, defendants CMP and
Daleiden vidlated paragraph 15 as weli.“' Defendants’ conduct with respect to the information

they conveyed in the EA and their conduct at the NAF meeting s sufficient — on this record — to

%6 Defendants assert in their brief, without any citation to evidence, that BioMax’s “business” was
to “assess the market for clinics and abortion providers willing to partner-with it in buying and

selling fetal tissue.” Oppo. Br. at 21. This post-hoc rationalization is contrary to the defendants’

own contemporaneous statements and their statements on the EAs themselves which required the
applicant to “5. List the products or services to be exhibited” dnd which Daleiden filled out as
“biological specimen procurement, stem cell research” and “fetal tissue procurement, human
biospeoimen procurement.” P, Exs.3,4; see. also Pl. Bx, 26 (describing BioMax as a “front
organization.”). :
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show a violation of that agreement, regardless of how dgfendants may have portrayed BioMex
outside of the NAF Meetings.

Defendants’ argument that paragraph 15 of the EA restriots the remedies NAI;‘ can seek for
breach to cancellation of the EA and removal of exhibits at the Meetings, and excludes the |
injunctive relief sought in this motion is likewise without support. Defendants continue to ignore
paragraphs 18 and i9, which provide that if there is a breach of the EA, NAF is entitled to seek
specific performance, injunctive relief and “all other remedies available at law or .equity.” Pl Exs.
3,4, |

On th;a record before me, NAF has a strong likelihood of success on its‘argund'ent that
defendants breached the BA for the 2014 and 2015 NAF Annual Meetings.?’

3.” Scope and Reasonableness of the EA

Defendants argue that the EA is unenforceable because it s overEroad, imprecise, and
unreasonable, Speciﬁoally,'they fely on NAF’s characterization of the EA (and presumably the
CA as well) as “broad” and encompassing all NAF Qémmunicatio_ns and things learned at the,N;A.F .
Meetings to argue tbat tl;e EA’s breadih is problematic.

" Thate confidentiality provision is broad does not mean it is unenforcéable. The cases cited
by defendants on this point are not to the contrary.?® For example, in Wildmon v. Berwick
Universal Pictures, 803 F, Supp. 1167, 1178 (N.D. Miss.) gff’ 'd, 979 F.2d 209 (.Sth Cir, 1992),

after applying Mississippi’s contract interpretation doctrine and determining that the contract’

language was ambiguous, the Court concluded that “an ambiguous contract should be read in a

ek

%1 Defendants also argue that their recordings could not have violated the EA because the EA did
not prohibit audio and video recording, it only prohibited photography. Oppo. Br. at 19-20; EA at
1 13. Disputes over whether a ban on “photography” would prohibit video and audio recording
aside, the CAs clearly prohibited all forms of recording and are enforceable against defendants,
even for the 2015 meeting as discussed above. In a footnote, defendants assert that the CAs
should be read as limiting the prohibition on recording to only formal sessions at the Meetings and
not informal discussions. Oppo. Br. at 20, fn, 8. That argument is not supported, There is
nothing in the text of the CA. that indicates that “discussions” is limited to formal panel oz
workshlop- presentations and does not encompass information that is conveyed outside of those
“formal” events, '
% Gf Coast Plaza Doctors Hosp. v. Blue Cross of California, 83 Cal, App. 4th 677, 684 (2000), as
modified (Sept. 7, 2000) (giving full effect to “contractual language [that] is both clear and plain.
It {s also very broad. In interpreting an unambiguous contractual provision.we are bound to give
‘effect to the plain and ordinary meaning of the language used by the parties.”).

23 ‘
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way that allows viewership and encourages debate.” The problem in Wildmon was not breadth,
but ambiguity,
In Inve JDS Uniphase Corp. Sec. Litig., 238 F. Supp. 2d 1127 (N.D. Cal. 2002), a

V seouritiés class action, the state of Connecticut moved the court to limit the scope of a

confidentiality agresment the employer imposed on its employees so that the elﬁployees could
reépond to a state investigation, The court concluded, to “the extent that those agreements
preclude former employees from assisting in investigations of wrongdoing that have nothing to do
with trade secrets or other confidential business information, they conflict with the public policy in

favor of allowing even current employees to assist in securities fraud investigations.” Id. at 1137.

| The considerations the court addressed in In re JDS Uniphase Corp. Sec. Litig that led it to limit

"the scope of the employee conﬁdeﬁtiality agreement may have some persuasive value with respect

to the interests of the Attorney General amici discussed bélow,,but do not weigh against
énforcement of NAP's confidentiality agreements against defendants generally. This is especialiy
true consideri'ng‘that there are significant, counterveailing public policy arguments welghing in

favor of enforcing NAF’s confidentiality agreeménts. See, e.g., Cal. Govt. Code § 6215(a)

- (fecoghizing that persons working in the reproductive health care field, specifically the provision

of terminating a pregnancy, are often subject to harassment, threats, and acts of violence by

‘persons or groups).

" 'The final case relied on by defendants in support of their argument that the EA should be

interpreted narrowly, consistent with the public’s interest in hearing speech on matters of public

concern, did not address a conﬂdentiality'agreement at all. See Curtis Pub. Co. v. Butts, 388 U.S,

130, 145 (1967). The Curtis case found that absent clear and compelling circumstances, the Court
would not find that ‘s defendant had waived a First Améndment defense to libel (where that
specific defense had not been established by the Supreme Court at the time of defendants’ libel
trial). _

Defendants also rely on established case law directing courts to interptet ambiguous
contracts in a manner that is reasonable and does not lead to absurd results. Oppo. Br. at 22-23,

Defendants argue that the broad coverage NAF contends the EA imposes on defendants is
. 24
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.

unreasonable and absurd because -NAF;’S interpretation of the broad scope of the EA would cover
all information discussed at NAF'S Meetings, even, publicly known information. Oppo. at 22-23,
Defendants’ atgument might have sotne merit if it was ‘macie concerning a challenge to the
application of the EAs’ confidentiality pro'visions‘with respect to specific pieces or types of
information that are otherwise publicly know'ri or intended by NAF to be shared with individuals
not covered by the EA. Defendants do not make that type of “as applied,” narfow argument.
Instead, they argué ’that the whole EA is unenforceable. There is no legal support for that reéu}t or
for defendants’ speculation that the EA might be enforced in an unreasonable manner against other
NAF attendees.” '
4. What Information is (?overed by EA
' Defendaqts argue' that e.ven if enforceable, th'e EA should be'regd to create confidentiality
_ only for the information provided by NAF in forma} sessions énd should not be construed to cover
information provided by oonferchpe e:ttendees in informal conversations, Oppo. Br. ‘at 26-27. -

Defendants rely on the two portions of patagraph 17 of EA for their restrictive interpretation of its

|| coverage; they argue that paragraph 17 only restricts .glisélosure of information “NAF may furnish”

and “written information provided by NAF.” Those provisions, defendants say, should be read to
modify *any information whic’h is disclpsed otally or visually.” Taken together, defendants argue,
this language “connotes formality"’ and therefore should cover only oral a;nd visual information
provided in formal sessions at the Meetings. Oppo. Br. at 26.

| As an initial matter, defendants wholly ignore the provision in the EAs that signatories
agree — on behalf of entities and their employees and' ,agen‘é.s ~t0 “hold in trust and confidence any
confidential information. recéived in the course of exhibiting at the NAF Annual Meeting and.
agree not to reproduce orhdisclose confidential information without express permission from

NAF.” Pl Exs. 3,4. The only reason defendants gained access to the: NAF.Annual Meetings was

291 agree with defendants that NAFE’s intent with respect to the EA and CA is irrelevant for
purposes of this motion. Under California contract law, intent comes into play only when contract
‘language is ambiguous. There is no ambiguity concerning meaning of the EA or CA with respect
to defendants’ conduct here and, therefore, no need to construe otherwise ambiguous terms against
the drafter. But see Rebolledo v. Tilly's, Inc., 228 Cal. App. 4th 900, 913 (2014) (*ambiguities in
standard form contracts are to be construed against the drafter.”). '
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under vtheir guis;f.: as exhibitors and all information they received was in the course of that role,
even if gathered in' places other than the exhibition hall. Moreovet, defendants’ constrained
reading of parégraphl 17 is illogical. The text of pafagraph 17, when read as a whole, covers all
written, oraly én;l'vi_sua,l informatién, and the “formality” of the language does not restrict-its
requirements to only the “formal” w;)rkshops and presentations as argued by deféndants. 3

In sum, on'the record before me, NAF has demonstrated a strong likelihood of success on
its breach of contract claims both with respect to the EAs that were signed by all CMP operatives
in 2014 and 2015, and with respect to the,CAé that wei‘e signed by Daleiden and his associates in
2014 and signed by Lopez in 2015. |

B. Cahforma Penal Code section 632

NAF also contends that it has demonstrated a llkehhood of success on its claim that

defendants violated California Penal Code section 632. That provisiqn makes it'a crime to,

“without the consent of all parties to a confidential communication, by means of any electronic

. amplifying or recording device, eavesdrops upon or records the confidential communication,

whether the communication, is carried on among the parties in the presence of one another or by
means of a telegraph, telephone, or other device.” Cal. Penal Code § 632(a). “The term
‘confidential communication’ includes any communication carried on in circumstances as may

reasonably indicate that any party to the communication desires it to be confined to the parties .

theteto, but excludes a communication . . . in any other circumstance in which the parties to the

communication may reasonably expect that the communication nﬁy be overheard or recorded.”
Id. § 632(c). And “[e]xcept as proof in an action or prosecution for violation of this section, no
evidence obtained as a result of eavesdropping Llpon or recording a confidential communication in
violation of this section shall be admissible in any judicial, aciministrative; legislative, or other
proceeding.”. d. § 632(d). '

Deféndants argue that because section 632 does not prohibit publication of recordings

made in violation of the statute, NAF cannot justify an injunction against defendants based upon

30 The same is true of defendants “implications of formality” argument made thh respect fo the
CAs in a footnote. See Oppo, Br. at 27, n.12,
26
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an a]]eged violatiori of that statute. Indeed, California courts have held that “Penal Code section
632 does not prohibit the dis.closure of information gathered in violation of its terms.” Lieberman
v KCOP Télevlis'i'on, Inc., 110 Cal, App. 4th 156, 167 (2003); ¢f- Kight v. CashCall, Inc., 200 Cal‘. .
App. 4th 1377, 1393 (2011) (“Although a recording preserves the conversation and thus could ' .
ocause greatei' damage to an individual's privacy in the future, these losses are not protected by .
section 632.”). ‘ ' _ .

In reply, NAF alrgues that its section 632 claim is not being ass'e;"ted'as a.b,asis for
enjoining 'rele.ase of the recordings already made, but in support of its request that defendants be
enjoined from “attempting to gain access to any future NAF meetings in order to tape its members,
a form of relief specifically provided under § 637.2(b) (“Any persbn ‘may . .. bring an action to |
enjoin a'nd restrain any violation of this chapter, gnd may in the same action sec;k damagesg as
provided by subdivision (2)."). | -

Penal Code s'ection.632', therefore, is not relevant to NAF’s chances of success on the
merits, but only with respect to the appropriate scope of injunctive relief, discussed below.?

C. The First'Amendment and Public Policy Implications of the Reéuested Injunction

Defendants argue that, assuming NAF demonstrates a likelihood of success on the bresich

‘of contract claim, the EAs and CAs should not be enfotced through an injﬁnc‘cion prohibiting

defendants from publishing the recordings because that is an unjustified prior restraint and.against

public policy. 'NAF counters that even if First Amendment issues are raised by the injunction it

seeks, any right to speech implicated by publishing the NAF recordings has been waived by

defendants knowing agreement to the EAs and CAs.

NAF relies pi‘imarjly on a line of cases holding that where parties to a coritract agree to

" restrictions on speech, those restrictions are generdlly upheld. For example, in Leonard v. Clark,

the Ninth Ciroult addressed & union and union members’ challenge to a Collective Bargainin
. ning

3! Both sides spend much time arguing whether section 632 prohibits recording panel
presentations as opposed ta conversations between individuals, because section 632°s protections
only extend to information as to which the speaker lias a “reasonable expectation” of privacy, I
need not reach these arguments as NAF no longer asserts section 632 as a ground for its likelihood
of success on this motion.” . '
' 27
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* discussing her former marriage or spouse); Brooks v, Vallejo City Unified Sch. Dist., No, 2:09-
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_ confidentiality agreements, al] of which were fal: more specific and detailed in terms of what the
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Agreement that arguably restricted their First Amendment rights to petition the government. 12
F.3d 885, 886 (9" Cir. 1993), as amended (Mar. 8, 1994). The court, folldwing Supreme Court

precedent, recognized that “First Amendment rights may be waived upon clear and convincing

the CBA the union knowingly waiv'ed'any First Ameﬁdment rights that may have been implicated.
Id. 8t 890. N o

Other cases have likewise found that speech rights can be knowingly _waived. ITT Telecom
Prod. Corp. v. ‘Dooley, 214 Cal. App. 3d 307,317,319 (1 989) (recognizing, in a case determin‘ing'
the scope of California’s litigation privilege, that “it is possible to waive even First Amendment
free speech rights by confract. *); Perricone v. Perricone, 292 Conn. 187, 202 (2009) ‘(Supreme
Court of Gonnecticut enforced non-disclosure agreement as knowing and voluntary waiver of First | .

Amendment rights and-enjoined ex-wife from “appearing on radic or television” for purpoges of

CV-1815 MCE JFM, 2009 WL 16441783, at *5 (E.D.Cal'. Oct, 30, 2009) (recognizing, in
denying a third-party’s attempt to secure a copy of a public entities’ settlement agreemént with
two individual plaintiffs, that individuals “were entitle& to bgarga,i.n 'a,wagl fheir free speech rights by |
agreeing‘ to qoqﬁ‘dentiality provisions or other éontraotual prov‘isions that restrict free speech”).

: befengiants respond that NAF has not show;n that Da}eiden knowingly and intelligent.]y :
waived his First Amendment rights by signing the NAF confidentiality agreements, résting their
argument on Daleiden’s position that he believed the agreements were unent'”omeable and void.
Daleiden PI Decl. ] 12 (“] understood that no nondisclosure agreelhent'is-valid in the face of

criminal activity, In the course of my investigative journalism work, I have seen other

protected information was. Ibelieved the working of the nondisclosure portions of:the Exhibit
Agreément was too broad, vague, and contradictory to be enforced.”). However, even if Daleiden
honestly believed he had defenses to the enforcement of the conﬁdentiality agreements, there is no
argumeht — and 10 case law cited —that his signature on them and his agreement to them was not

“knowing and voluntary.” Dalelden and his associates chose to attend the NAF Annual Meetings
28
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and voluntarily and knowingly signed the EAs and CAs.

Daleiden’s argument would vi.tiate the enforceability of confi dentia}ity agreements based
on an individual’'s correct or mistaken belief as to the enforoeabﬂity of those agreements. It is
contrary to well-established law. See, e.g., Leanarci v. Clark, 12 F.3d at 896 (“The fact that the
Unijon informed the City, of its view that Article V was ‘.uncon'stitutional, illegal, and
unenforceable’ does not make the Union’s execution of the agreement any less volﬁntary.”); see
also Griffin v. Payne, 133 Cal. App. 363, 373 (Cai. Ct. App. 1933) (“A secret intent to violate the
law, concealed in the mind of one party to an otherwise legal contract, cannot enable such party to
avoid the contract and escape his liability under its terms.”), ' | ‘

Defend‘ants contend that the public policy at issue - allowing free speech on issues of
signiﬂoe.mt public importance — weighs against findin;g a waiver and/or enforcing the
conﬁdentiality agreefnents.| The Ninth Circuit has recognized that courts should balance the .
competing public interests in determining whether to enforce confidentiality agreements that
restriot First Amendiment rights, Leonard, 12 F.3d at 890 (“evén if a party is found to have validly
waived a constitutional right, we will not enforce the waiver ‘if the interest in its enforcement is
outweighed in the circumstances by a public policy harmed by ehforéement of the agreement.’”) '
(quoting Davies v. Grossmont Union High Sch. Dist., 930 F.2d 1390, 1394 (9th Cir.1991)); see
also Perricone.v, Pe;‘;‘(fcong, 292 Conn. 187, 221-22 (in vx}aighing the public interests as to whether
to enforce the agreement, the court observed: “The agi‘eement does not prohibit the disclosure of
information concerning the enforcement of‘ laws protecting important rights, criminal behavior, the
public health and safety or matters of great public importanée, and the plaintiff is not a public
official.”). ‘ _ o

On the record before me, balarioing the significant interests as stake on both sides supports
enforcement of the confidentiality agreements at this juncture, Asthe Supreine Court recognized
in Cohen v. Cowlés Media Co., 501 U.S. 663, 672 (1991), “the First Amendment does not confer
on the press a constitutional right to disregard promises that would otherwise be enforced under
state law.” Id, at 672, *““[Tlhe pubﬁsher of a newspaper has no special immunity from the

application of general laws, He has no special privilege to invade the rights and liberties of
. 29 .
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others.”” Id. at 7670 (quoﬁing Associated Press v. NLRB, 301 U.S. 103 (1937)); see also
Dietemann v. Time, Inc., 449 F.2d 245, 249 (9th Cir, 1971) (“The First Amendment is not a
license to trespass, to steal, or to intrude by electronic means into the precincts.of another's home

\
or office. It does not become such a license simply because the person subjected to the intrusjon is

reasonably suspected of committing a crime.”). That defendants intended to infiltrate the NAF

Annual Meetings in order to uncover evidence of alleged criminal wrongdoing that would “trigger
criminal prosecution and civil litigation against flanned Parenthood and to precipitate pro-life
political and cultural ramifications when the revelations become public,” does not give défendants .
an auto;natio license to disregard the conﬁdqntiality provisions. Pl Ex, 26.

Defendants passionately contend that public policy is on their side (and the side of public’
disclosure) because the récordings -show criminal wrongdoing by abortion providers — a matter
that is indisputably of significant public interest. Gf. Bernardo v. Planned Parenthood Fed'n of
Am., 115 Cal. App. 4th 322, 358 (2004) (approving judicial notice “of the fa‘c’c that abortion is ons

of the most controversial political issues in our nation.”).** T have reviewed the recordings relied

~on by defendants and find no evidence of criminal wrbngdoing. Atthe very most, some of the

individuals expressed an interest in exploring a relationship with defendants’ fake company in
respdnse to defendants entreaties of how “profitable” it can be and how tissue donation can assist
in furthering research. There are no express agreements to profit from the sale of fetal tissue or to

change the timing of abortions to allow for tissue procurement.”

2 Defendants ask for leave to supplement the record to include the Jantiary 20, 2016 Order in the
StemExpress LLC, Inc. v. Cenier for Medical Progress case pending in Los Angeles Superior
Court. Dkt, No. 352, Defendants ask me to take notice that the Superior Court found defendants’

| Project video regarding StemExpress was “constitutionally protected activity in connection with a
J g 8 p yp

fpater of public interest” under California’s anti-SLAPP statute. That motion is GRANTED.

* The first piece of evidence that defendants repeatedly point to show “illegality” is an
advertisement by StemExpress that was in both of the NAF 2014 and 2015 Meeting brochures,’
That ad states that clinics can “advance biomedical research,” that partnering with StemExpress
can be “Financially Profitable*Easy to Implement Plug-In Solution*Safeguards You and Your
Donors” and that the “pattner program” “fiscally rewards clinics.” See Dkt. No. 270-1 atp. 3 of
10. However, the.ad explains that StemExpress is a company that provides human tissue products
“ranging from fetal to adult tissues and healthy to diseased samples” to many of the leading.
research institutions in the world, Id. The ad, therefore, is a general one and not one aimed solely
at providers of feta) tissue, The ad does not demonstrate that StemBExpress was engaged in illegal
conduet of paying clinics at a profit for fetal tissue,

' 30
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I also find it significant that Whil"e defendants’ repeatedly assert that their primary interest
in inﬁlt;ating NAF was to unéover evidence of criminal wrongdoing, and that the NAF recordings
show such wrongdoing, defendants did not provide any of the NAF recordings to law enforcement
foliowing the 2014 Annqal Meeting. Nor did defendants provide any of the NAF recordings to
law enforcement immediately following the 2015 Annual Meetings. Instead, defendants deoided it ‘
was more important to “curate™ and rel;ease the Projeot videos starting in July 2015. Sworn .
testimony from Daleiden establishes that the only disclosure of NAF materials he:made to law | ;
enforcement officers was: () providing a StemExpress advertisement from the NAF 2014 Annual
Meeting program to law enforcement in El Dorado County, California in May 2015 ; and,

providing (ii) “short clips”v of video to law enforcement in Texas in June-or July 2015. Daleiden

“PI Decl. § 24. If the NAF recordings truly demonsttated criminal conduct — the alleged goal of the
- undercover operation — then CMP would have immediately turned them over to law. enforcement, -

" They did not.

Perhaps realizing that the recordings do not show criminal wrongdaing, defehdaﬁts shift
a'nd assert that there is a public interest in the recordings showing “a remarkable de-sensitization in
the attitudes of industry participants.” Oppo. Br. at 14. As part of that shift, defendants’
opposition brief highlights portions of t.he recor.élings where abortion provider;c: comment candidly
about how emotionally and professionally difficult their work can be. Oppo. Br. at 14-15, I have '
reviewed defendants’ transcripts of these portions of the reco.rdilngs. Svome comments can be
characterized as callous and some may showla “de-sensitization,” as -defendants describe it. They
can also be described as frank and uttered in the context of providers muftually recognizing tt;e
difficulties they face in performing their work, However they are characterized, there issome
publio interest in these comments, But unlike défendantsﬂ purported.uncovering of criminal
activity, this sort of information is alread}f fully part of the public debate over abortion. Oppo. Br. .
at 49-50 (citing Gonzales v. Carhart, 550 US 124, 158 (2007); Stenberg v. Carhart, 530 US
914,962 (2600)); see also VALUE OF HUMAN.LIFE, 162 CongRec S 162, 163 (Janﬁary 21,
2016); PROVIDING FOR CONSIDERATION OF H.R. 1947, FEDERAL AGRICULTURE

REFORM AND RISK MANAGEMENT ACTOF 2013, 159 Cong Rec H 3708, 3709 (June 8,
31 '
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2013 testimony on the PAIN-CAPABLE UNBORN CHILD PROTECTION ACT). The public
interest in additiona) information on this issue cannot, standing alone, outweigh the competing
interests of NAF and its members’ expectations of privacy, their abilijcy to perform their
professions, and their personal security, ' .

It is also this very information tﬁat could — if released and taken out of the c;ontext that it
was shared in by NAF members ~ result in the sort of disparagement, intimidation, and harassment
of which NAF members who were recorded during the Annual Meetings are afraid. Dunn Degl. {
10; Reeves Decl. § 17. In sum, the public interest in these comments is certainly relevant, but
does not weigh heavily against the enforcement of the NAF c;:nﬁdehtiality agreements.

| On the other side, }_:ublic policy also supports NAF’S position: NAF has submitted
extensive eyidence that in order to fulfil] its mission and allow candid ‘disoussions ofthe
challenges its members face — both professional and personal — conﬁdentiality agreements for .
NAF Meeting attendees are absolutely necessary. D'um;x Decl. §{ 5-6; Reeves Decl, | 7; Saporta
Dpcl. 1911, 13-1 6; Mellor Decl.- 17, 10-14. Release of the recordings procured by fraud and
taken in violation of NAF’s strifigent confidentiality agreements, which disclose the identities of
NAF members and.c':ompro'mise steps NAF members take to protsct their privacy and profeséional
interests, is also contrary to California’s recognition of the daqgers faced by providers of abortion,
as well as California’s efforts td kéep inforfna;cion regarding the same shielded from public
disclosure and protéct them from thrgats and harassm'eht. , See Cal. Govt. Code § 6215(a) (“(a)
Persons working in the reproductive health care field, specifically the provision of terrhinating a’
pregnancy, are often subject to harassment, threats, and acts of violence by pérsoné or ’groups.”);
Cal, Civ. Code § 3427 et seq. (creating cause of action to deter iﬁterfei‘ence with access to clinic's
and health care); Cal. Govt. Code § 6218 (“Prohibition on soliciting; selling, trading, or posting on
Internet private information of those involved with reproductive health services™); Cal. Govt, Code
§ 6254.28; Cal. Penal Code § 423 (“California Freedom of Access to Clinic and Church Entrances
Act:”). As noted above, since defendants’ releage of the Project videos (as well as the Jeak of a
portion of the NAF recordings), harassment, threats, and violent g(:té takén against NAF members

and facilities have increased dramatically. It is not speculative to expect that harassment, threats,
32 '
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and violent acts will continue to rise if defendants were to release NAF materials in a similar way.
Wetghmg the public pohcy interests on the record before me, enforcement of the confidentiality
agreements agamst defendants is not contrary to public policy.

That said, public policy may well support the release of a small subset of records - those =
that defendants believe show criminal wrongdoing —to law enforcement agencies,** Def,endants.'
rely‘ on a line of cases where courts have refused to enforce, or excused compliance with,b
otherwise applicaele confidentiality agresments for the limited purpose of allowing cooperation
with a specified law enforoement investigation. See, e.g,, Alderson v. United ‘Sjtaz.‘es, 718 F. Supp.
2d 1186, 1200 (C.D. Cal. 2010); In re JDS Uniphase Corp. Sec. Litig., 238 F. Supp, 2d 1127 _
(N D. Cal. 2(_)02)} Lachman v. Sperry-Sun 'Well Surveying Co., 457F.2d 850, 854 (10th Cir, 1972); '
see also United States ex rel, Qreen v. Northrop Corp., 59 F.3d 953, 965 (9th Cir. 1995) (refusing
to enforce a prefiling release of e False Claims Act claim); Siebert v. Gene Sec. Network, Ine, No.
11-CV-01987- JST, 2013 WI 5645309, at *8 (N.D. Cal. Oct. 16, 2013) (declining to enforce a
nondisclosure agreement with respect to documents relevant to a FCA claim because application
of the NDA.to those documents would “would frustrate Congress purpose in enacting the False
Claims Act—namely, the pubhc policy in favor of providing incentives for whistleblowers to
come forward file FCA suits, and aid the governrrient in its investigation efforts "’); but see_

Cafasso, US. exrel. v, Gen Dynamics C4 Sys., Inc., 637 F.3d 1047, 1062 n.15 (9th Cir. 2011) .

- (upholding br each of confidentiality claim, despite plamttff”s attempt to “excuse her conduct on

the grounds that she was in contact with, and providing information to, government investigators,”
in part because that justification “neither explains nor excuses the overbreadth of her seizure of
documents.”), 35

1 do not disagree with the analysis and results in those eases, but note that the posture of

3% Aslhave satd my review of the recordings relied on by defendants does not show criminal .
conduct, but Lrecognize that law enforcement agencies may want to review the information at
issue themselves in order to make their own assessment.

35 Defendants also rely on a related line of cases holding that contracts which expressly prohibit a
signatory from reporting criminal behavior to law enforcement agencies are void as against public
policy, See, e.g., Oppo. Br. at 52-55 (citing Fomby-Denson v. Dep't of the Army, 247 F.3d.1366,
1376 (Fed Cir. 2001); Bowyer v. Burgess, 54 Cal. 2d 97, 98 (1960)). Those cases are inapposite.

33
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this case is different. Defendants’ purported desire to disclose the NAF recordings to law
enforcement does not obviate; the confidentiality agreements for all purposes. At most, defendants
might have a defense to-a breach of contract claim based on production of NAF materials to law
enforcement. prever, the question of whether defendants should be excused frérn complying . '
\A{ith NAF’s confideritiality agreements in 61'der to provide NAF materials to law pnforcement hasg
not heen placed directly at issue. In this case, Attorney Gene;'ral amici have appeared (with: leave
of court) to present their arguments on the scope of the TRO and the requ’éstgd preliminary -
injl.mction.36 They have not directly sought relief from the conﬁdentialify agreements, the TRO,
or the requested preliminary injunction by intetvening and moving for declaratory relief in this
Court or by seéking enforcement of 'their subpoenas in the courts of their own states, And
contrary to their assertion, the TRO in'place aﬁd the P-rgliminary Injunction requastéd do not
prevent law enforcement officials from investigating defendants® claims of criminal wrongdoing.
For example, law enforcement agencies from the sta.tes of Arizona and Louisiana have instituted

formal efforts to secure the NAF recordings. Under procedures outlined in the Protective Order in

| this case, NAF and defendants have been and continue to meet and confer with those state

authorities about the scope of the subpoenas and defendants’ responses.”

The record béfore me demonsirates that defendants infiltrated the NAF meetings with the

- intent to disregard the confidentiality provisions and secretly record participants and presentations

at those meetings. Defendants also admit that only a small subset of the total material gathered
implicate any potential criminal wrongdoing. Oppo. Br. at 10-14. 1 have reviewed those -
transeripts and recordings and find no evidence of actual criminal wrongdoing. That defendants

did not promptly turn over those recordings to law enforcement likewise belies their claim that

% 1 have granted the Attorneys General of the states of Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas, Michigan,

Montana, Nebraska, and Oklahoma leave to participate as amici curiqe in this matter. Dkt. Nos.
99, 100, 285. As represented by the office of the Attorney General of Arizona, the amici filed a
brief and argued in court during the hearing on the Motion for a Preliminary Injunction,

" There have only been three subpoenas served on CMP for NAF materials; the Congressional
subpoena that has been complied with, as well as subpoenas from Louisiana.and Arizona.
Negotiations between NAF, CMP, and the states of Louisiana and Arizona are ongoing. While
NAF and the defendants have repeatedly stipulated to extend the timeframe for NAF to file a
challenge to the state subpoenas in state court (see Dkt. Nos. 246, 300), those were decisions
reached by the parties and not imposed by the Court. . :
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they uncovered criminal wrongdoing, and instead supports NAF’s contention that defendénts’ goal
instead is to falsely portray the operations'of NAF’s mf:mbers' through continued release of its
“curated” vidéos as part of its strategy to alter the politicé] lahdscape with respect to abortion and
the public perception of NAF's members.”® I conclude that NAF has shown a strong likelihood of
success on its breach of contract claims agaiﬁst CMP and Daleiden. Enforcement of NAF’s
confidentiality provisions for purposes of continuing the injunction prokibiting defendants from
releasing the NAF materials is not against'publié policy.

D. Claims Agains't Newman .

Defendant Newman argues that NAF };as failed to show a likelihood of success against
him because there is no evidence of his role in the NAF infiltration and ﬁo argument that Newman
breached any. of NAF’s: agreements. Newmah’s argument would be more relevant if this were a
motion for summary ju&gment. However, it is not. The only qugstion is whether NAF has madé a
strong showing of the likelihoo;i of success on its contract claim against CMP and Daleiden,
which it has. NAF subm itted evidence gf Newman's own admissions thafn He advised Daleiden on
how to infiltrate the NAF meetings as part of the Project, which is relevant to the appropriate
scope of an injﬁnction. Pl Ex. 14 (at NAF0004475-76); PL. Ex. 16 (at NAF0004493-94), That
evidence makes clear that Newman should remaiﬁ covered by the Preliminary Injunction, even if
he is no longer serving as a board member of CMP. Dkt. No. 344,

IIL. ~ IRREPARABLE INJURY

. . !
To sustain the-request for a preliminary injunction, NAF must demonstrate that

“irreparable injury is likely in the absence of” the requested injunction” and establish a “sufficient

causal connection” between the irreparable harm NAF seeks to avoid and defendants’ intended .

conduct ~ release of the NAF materials. Winter v, Natural Res. Def, Council, Inc., 555 U.S. 7, 22
(2008); Perfect 10, Inc. v. Google, Inc., 653 F.3d 976, 982 (Sth Cir.2011).

* In opposing NAF’s request that the Cotirt order Daleiden to turn over the NAF rmaterials to his
outside counsel, Daleiden’s counsel explained that Daleiden needed access to the NAF materials
because “Mr. Daleiden continues to work on the Human Capital Project, including the work of
curating available raw investigative materials for disclosure to law enforcement and for release of
videos to the public.” Dkt. No. 195.

' .35 . .
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Defendants argue that NAF has not shown that.it will suffer irreparable inj ury to justify a
preliminary injunction. However, as detailed above, the release of videos as part of defendants’
Human Capital Project has directly led to a significant increase in harassment, threats, and
violence directed not only at the “targets” of CMP’s videos but also at NAF and its members more
generally. This significant increase in harassment and violent acts — including the most recent
attack in Colorado Springs at the clinic where “target” Dr. Ginde is the medical ditector — has been

adequately linked to the timing of the release of the Project videos by CMP. Saporta Decl. § 19;

Saporta Depb. 42:1-10; P1. Exs. 92, 93, 96-99.% If the NAF materials were publicly released, it is .

likely that the NAF attendees shown in those recordings would not only face an increase in
harassment, threats, or incidents of violence, but also would have to expend more effort and
mc.mey to implement additional security measutes. See, e;gv,.. Dunn Decl. § 10; Resves Decl. |
19.° The same is true for NAF itself, which proviclie'/s security assessments and assistance for its
members, Mellor Decl,, { 15; Saporta ﬁecl. 110. |

Defendants contend that they cannot be held responsible for the threats, h.'arassment, and
violence caused by “third-parties” in responée to the release of the Project videos, and that
defendants’ ability to publish the NAF materials caninot be prevented when defendarits have not
themselves béen linked to the threats, harassmeént, and violence. Oppo. Br. at 43.—44. But they fail
to contradict NAF’s 'evidentiéry showing that a significant increase in these acts followed CMP’s

release of its Projéct videos, Moreover, a report submitted by NAF of an analysis of many of the

Y ghlight” and “full” videos reieased by CMP concluded that the “curated” or highlight Project

videos were “misleading” and suggests that the “full” \}iaeos defendants released along with their
‘fhighlighfs” were also edited, Pl Ex. 77, Defendants do not counter this evidence, other than
pointing to Daieiden’s assettion that the highlight videos were accompanied by the release of the
“full” recordings. Given the evidence of defendants’ past practices, allowing defendants to use the

NAF materials in future Project videos would likely lead to the same result ~ release of misleading

39 Defendants object to Exhibits 98 and 99 as inadmissible hearsay, for lack of personal
A(nowledge, lack of authentication, and as irrelevant. Those objections are overruled,

¥ Defendants object to paragraph 19 of Dr. Reeves’ declaration as speculative, improper expert
testimony, and for Jack of foundation, Those objections are OVERRULED.
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“highlight” videos disclosing the identity and comments of NAF mlembers and meeting attendées,
tesulting in further harassment and incidents of violence against the individuals shown in those
recordings. ‘The NAF members and attendees in the recordings have a justifiable expectation that
release of the materials — in direct contravention of the NAF confidentiality agreements — will
result not only in harassment and violence but reputational harms as well. See, e.g., Dunn Decl.
9-10;*' Reeves Decl. 1 17. ' |

Deféndants miss the point in tﬁéir attempt to shift the responsibility to overly zealous third-
parties for the actual and likely injury to NAF and its members that would stem from disclosure of
the NAF materials. If defendants are _allowed: to release the NAF materials, NAF and its‘members
would suffer immediate harms, inciuding the need to trftke additional seourity measures. The -
“causal connect’ic;n” between NAF’s-and its members’ irreparable injury and the conduct enjoined
(release of NAF materials) has been shown an this record.. '

On the other side of the quat';gn is.defencliants’ clah.'n of irreparable injury. _They focus on
their First Amendment ri ght to disseminate the infomﬁation fraudulently obtained at the NAF
Meetings, and the injury to the pﬁblic of being deprived of the NAF recordings.” But freedom of
speech is not absolute, especially where there has been a voiunta,ry agregmént to keep information

confidential. While the disclosure of evidence of criminal activity or-evidence of imminent harm

to public health and safety could outweigh enforcement of NAF’s confidentiality agreements (as

discussed above), there i$ ho such evidence-in defendants’ recordings, Viewed in a light most
favorable to defendants, what does appear is information that is already'in the public domain that
defendants charaoterize as showing a “de-sensitization” as to the work performed by abortion

4 Defendants object to paragraph 9 of the Dunn Declaration as lacking in personal knowledge,
improper expert testimony, inadmissible hearsay, improper opinion testimony, and under the best
evidence rule. Those objections are overruled. | '
%2 The sum of defendants’ argument and evidence on this point is that they cannot be blamed for
the “hyperbolic comments of anonymous Internet commenters” and that “hyperbolic ‘death
threats’ on the Internet and through social media has become an ubiquitous fgamre of online
discourse.” Oppo. Br. at 44-45, But the misleading nature of the Project videos that they have
produced — reflective of the misleading nature of defendants’ repeated assertions that the
recordings at issue show significant evidence of criminal wrongdoing — have hdd tragic
consequences, including the attack in Colorado where the gunman was apparently motivated by
the CMP’s characterization of the sale of “baby parts.”
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providers. The balance of NAI;"S strong showing of irreparaBle injury to its members® freedom of
association (to gather at NAF meetings and share their confidences), to its and its membe;rs’
seourity, and to its members’ ability, to perform their chosen professions against preventing
(through trial) defendants from disclosing information that is of public interest but which is neither
new or unique, tilts strongly in favor of NAF.

III. BALANCE OF EQUITIES .

. Similar to the discussion of competing claims of irreparable injury, the balance of equities
favors NAF. Defendants will suffer the hardship of being restricted in what evidence they can
release to the public in support of their ongoiﬁg Human Capital Project, at least through a final
determination at trial, Howeve;, the har‘dships suffered by NAF and its members are far more

immediate, significant, and irreparable.

IV. PUBLIC INTEREST

I fully recognize that there ié str'ong public interest on the issue of abortion on both sides éf
that debate, and thét members of the public therefore have an interest in accessing the NAF
materials. Ialso reé:ognize that this case impinges on defe_ndaﬁts’ rights to speech and the public’s
equally important interest in hearing that speech. But this is not a typical freedom of speech
case.? Nor is this a typical “newsgathering” case where courts refuse to impose prior restfajnts on

speech, leaving the remedies for any defamatory publication or breach of contract to resolution

% None of the “prior restraint” cases defendants rely on address the types of exceptional facts

‘established here: (i) enforceable confidentiality agreements, knowingly and-voluntarily entered

into, in which defendants agreed to the remedy of injunctive relief in the event of a breach; (ii)
extensive and repeated fraudulent conduct; (iii) misleading characterizations about the information
procured by misrepresentation; and (iv) a strong showing of irreparable harm if the confidentiality
agreements are not enforced pending trial. See Oppo. Br, at 32-35. Several of defendants’ prior
restraint cases expressly left open the possibility of limits on speech where “private wrongs” and |
“clear évidence of criminal activity” occurred. See, e.g, Org. for a Better Austin v, Keefe, 402
U.S. 415, 419-20 (1971) (overturned broad injunction prohibiting “peaceful” pamphleteering
goross a city where injunction was not.nécessary to redress a “private wrong”); CBS, Ine. v, Davis,
510 U.8. 1315, 1318 (1994) (emergency stay overturning prior restraint where damage to meat
packing company was readily remedied by post-publication damags action and “the record as .
developed thus far contains no clear evidence of eriminal activity on the part of CBS, and the court
below found none.”); see also Bartnicki v. Vopper, 532 U.S. 514, 529-30 (2001) (striking down
wiretap statutes to extent they penalized the publishing of secretly recorded plione conversations
by reporters who played no role in the illegal interception; rejecting proposition that “speech by a
law-abiding dpossessor of information can be suppressed in order to deter conduct by a non-law-
abiding third party.”).
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post-publication. See, e.g., CBS, Inc. v. Davis, 510 U.S. 1315, 1318 (1994); see also Promotions,
Ltd. v. Conrad, 420 U.S. 546, 559 (1975). -

Instead, this is an exceptional case where the extraordinary circumstances and evidence to

“date shows that the public interest weighs in favor of granting the preliminary injunction.

Weighing against the public’s general interest in disclosure of the recordings showing the “de-
sensitization” of abortion providers, is the fact that there is a constitutional right to abortions and |
that NAF members also have the right to associate in privacy and safety to disouss their profession
at the NAF Meetings, and need that privacy and safgty in order to safely practiqe their profession.
On the record before me, NAF has demonstrated the release of the NAF materials will irrepai'ablg'/
impinge on those rights. ‘ '

The context of how defendants came into possession of the NAF materials cannot be
ignored and directly supports pre]i’minarily preventing the disclosure of these materials,
Defendﬁqts engaged in repeated instances of fraud, including the manufacture of fake documents,
the creation and registrafion with the state of California of a fake company, and repeated false.
statements to a numerous NAF represeptati{/eé and NAF members in order to infiltrate NAF and:
implement' their Human Caﬁital Project. The products of that Project — achieved in large part from
't1.1e infiltration — thus far have not beén pieces of journalistic integrity, but misleadingly edited -
videos and unféunded assertions (at least with respect to the NAF materials) of criminal
misconduct. Defendants did not — as Daleiden repeatedly asserts — use widely accepted

investigatory journalism techniques. Defendants provide no evidence to support that assertion and

no cases on point.**

# Defendants rely on cases where reporters misrepresented themselves in the course of undercover
investigations, but those cases do not show the level of fraud and misrepresentation defendants
engaged in here, For example, in Med, Lab. Mgmi. Consultants v, ABC, 306 F.3d 806, 812 (9th
Cir. 2002), reporters posed as employees of fictitious labs, in order to investigate whether an
existing lab was violating federal regulations and misreading pap smear tests, There isno |
evidence that the reporters in the Med. Lab. case did anything other than verbally misrepresent
themselves to the lab owner; the reporters did not create fictitious documents, register a fictitious
company, or intentionally agree to confidentiality agreements before making their undercover
recordings, d. at 814 n.4 (noting the plaintiffs failed to obtain confidentiality agreements from
defendants). It is also important to note that while the Ninth Circuit affirmed the district court’s
order granting summary judgment to defendants on plaintiffs’ intrusion on seclusion, trespass, and
tortious interference claims under Arizona law, the district court denied in part defendants’ motion
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V. SCOPE OF INJUNCTION \
A. Coverage of Third l?ax"ty Law Enforcement Entities and Governmental Officials

Defendants and the Attorney Generals of the states of Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas,

‘Michigan, Montana, Nebraska, and Oklahoma (AG Amici) argue that any continuing injunction on

the release of the NAF materials shéuld not run to third-party law enforcement entities or
government officials because NAF has not shown that disclosure of the NAF materials to law
enforcement entities or government officials will result in irreparable harm and the public interest
strongly favors governments "being free to exercise their investigatory powers. See AG dmici
Brief (Dkt. No. 285). |

The Protective Order and thé injuriction in this case do not hinder tﬁe ability of states-or

other governmental entities from conducting investigations. Nor do they bar defendants from

' disclosing materials in response to subpoenas from law enforcement or other government entities.

' Instead; those orders simply impose a notice requirement on defendants; re'quiring them to notify

NAF prior to defendants’ production of the NAF materials so that NAF may (if necessary)

challenge the subpoenas in thé state court at issue. Contrary to the AG Amici position, these

limited procedures do not purport to bind the states.or prevent them from conducting
investigations or seeking relief in their own courts. The Protective Order and injunction simply

create an orderly procedure to allow production of relevant information to state Jaw enforcement

as to plaintiffs’ fraud claim. Id. at 812, In JH. Desnickv. Am. Broad, Cos., 44 F.3d 1345, 1348
(7th Cir. 1995), the reporters posed as patients of an eye center and secretly recorded their eye
exams. The misrepresentations in that case simply do not rise to the level of the
misrepresentations here or the fraudulent lengths defendants went through to secure their
recordings. Also, in that case, the Court of Appeals.remanded the defamation claim for further
proceedings, and affirmed the dismissal of the trespass, privacy, wiretapping, and fraud claims
based on an analysis of the facts under the state and federal laws at.issue. The district court did
not dismiss the breach of contract claim, Id. at 1354, Finally, defendants’ citation to Animal-
Legal Def. Fund v, Otter, No. 1:14-CV-00104-BLW, 2015 WL 4623943 (D. Idaho Aug, 3, 2015),
for the proposition that using deceptive tactics to conduct an undercover investigation “is not
“fraud’"and is fully protected by the First Amendment,” is not supported. In that cdse, the district

“court struck down g state law that criminalized the use of “misrepresentation” to gain access to and

record operations in an agricultural facility. In striking down the law as a content-based regulation
of protected speech which failed strict serutiny, the court noted that the law did not “limit its
misrepresentation prohibition to false speech amounting to actionable fraud,” and any harm from
the speech at issue would not be compensable as “hatm for fraud or defamation” because the harm
did not stem from the misrepresentation made to access the facility, Id. at * 5-6. That case did not
hold that undercover operations could not result in actionable fraud, breach of contract, or libel.
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or other governmental entities. As far as I am aware, that procedure has wo'rked well and -
negotiations are ongoing between NAF, defendants, and the two states that have issued subpoenas

to CMP, Arizona and Louisiana,*’

B. Expansion of Injunctive Relief

NATF also seeks to expand the injunctive relief'to prevent defendants and those acting in
concert with them from publishing or disclosing “any video, audio, photographic, or other
recordings taken of members or attendees Defendants first made contact with at NAF meetings”
and “enjoin the defen&ants from attempting to gain access to any future NAF meetings.” Motion

ati, 2.

On this record, NAF has not demonstrated that an expansion of the injunction is warranted,

NAF does not identify (under seal or otherwise) the NAF members or attendees whom it believes
have been recorded’and whom defendants “ﬁrslt made contact with” at a NAF Annual Meeting. A
request for injunctive relief must be specific and reasonaﬁ‘y detailed, but NAF’s request would
import ambiguity into the scope of the injunction.' Absent a more specific showing supported by
evide;nce, I will not expand the preliminary injunction to. ban CMP from'releasing unspecified
recordings of unspecified NAF members or atte;adees defendants “first mgdle contact with” at the
NAF Mesetings, ' ‘

Similarly, NAF has not shown that an “open~enqed” expansion of the injunction to prohibit
the “defendants from attempting to géin access to any future NAF meetings,” is necessary.

Defendants and their agents are now well known to NAF and its members and sbsent evidence

- that defendants intend to continue to attempt to infiltrate NAF meetings, there is no need to extend

tthe preliminary injunction at this juncture.

5 Similarly defendants appropriately notified the Court that CMP was subpoenaed to testify in
front of a grand jury, and explained that if Daleiden was called upon to disclose information he
leatned at the NAF Annual Meetings in responding to the grand jury’s questions, Daleiden
intended to do so absent further order from this Court. Dkt. No. 323-5. This Court did nothing to,
prevent Daleiden from testifying fully in front of that geand jury.
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CONCLUSION

_ Coﬁsidering the evidence before me, and finding that NAF has made a strong showing on
all relevant poirits, | GRANT the motlon for a preliminary injunction. Pending é final judgment,
defendants ahd those individuals who gained access to NAF’s 2014 and 2015 Annual Meetings
using aliases and acting with defendant CMP (including but not limited to the following
individuals/aliaées: Susan Tennénbaum, Brianna Allen, Rebéoca Wagner, Adrian Lopez, and
Philip Cronin) are restrained and enjoined from:

(1) publishing or otherwise disclosing t,o_an;lf third party any video, audio, photographic, or -
other recordings taken, or any confidential information learned, at any NAF annuel meetings;

(2) publishing or otherwise disclosing to any third party the dates or locations of any future
NAF me‘;etings; and . |

€)) pdblishing or otherwise disclosing to any third party the names or addres’ses of any

P4 o L%

LIAMH ORRICK
United States District Judge

NAF members learned at any NAF annual }rieetings.
 ITISSOORDERED,
Dated: February 5, 2016
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“EXHIBIT A-2

XPERT/CON SULTANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF CON FIDENTIALITY AND
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND BY PROTECTIVE ORDER

I, ‘ , declare:
. L I reside at
2. . Ihave read the Stipulation and Protective Order (“Order”) in National Abortion

Federation v, Cehtqr for Medical Prog%*ess et al., Case No. 3:15-cv-3522-WHO, pending in the . |
Northern District of California. '

3. I am familiar with the céntents of the Order and agree to comply and be bound by
the prov1sxons thereof .

4 I wxll not dlvulge to persons other than those speclf oally authorized by the Order,
and will not copy or use except solely for the purposes of this 11t1gatlon and only as expressly -
permitted by the terms of the Order, any Confidential or Highly Conﬁdent1al Information
obtained pursuant to the Order. '

S5 By signing below, I hereby agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the-United States
District Court for the Northern District of California for resolving any and Ia]l disputes regarding
the Order and this Acknowledgment of Conﬁdentlahty 1 further agree that any and all disputes
regarding the Order and this Acknowledgment of Confidentiality shall be governed by the laws of

‘the State of California, and that the district court for the Northern District of California shall be

the sole and exclusive venue for resolving any disputes arising from the Order and this

" Acknowledgment of Confidentiality.

I declare under penalty of perjury ‘under the laws of the State of California that the '

foregomg is true and correct,

Executed on at at
Name:
Address:
STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY . 27

CASENO, 3:15-cv-3522~-WHO "~
sf-3563261




Sue Feldmann

- From;
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Heather Saunders Estes, Planned Parenthood Northern California <info@ppnorcal.orgs
- Friday, April 29, 2016 9:00 AM

AttorneyGeneral

Kamala, What Will Inspire You? ‘ ‘ .

Above! U.-S.' Sear Barara Boxe, Acts of Courage 201
SAVE THE DATE
Acts of Courage
|
| I
WHAT WILL INSPIRE YOU?
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From:

Sent: :
To:

Subject:

%
3

1

‘ Lataﬁya Mapp Frett, Planned Parenthood Global <ppontine@ppfa.org>
' Wednesday, May 18, 2016 459 AM _

AttorneyGeneral '
Our response to the Zlka crisls
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' |U.S: response; millions™| |
dequate sex

[access &

]

“lcontinues to debate the ..
. lof womien afé. unable to |-

v

+[Parenthood Global,
get'the'care they

ear Kamala

E

by mosquitoes and linked toa

¢ condition affecting bra

4 development in babies
{ have only one piece of advice for

W governments in affected areas
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1 Don't get pregnant — but we won't
help you access birth control. Don't
4 get pregnant — even though
abortion is illegal. Don't get -

! pregnant — and if you do, you're

/ on your own,

i burden of family planning on thelr
1 own shoulders. And it's only

205 making this public health crisis
worse, '

Parenthood Federation of America, &
is fighting fo change that. You can
| stand up for healthy moms

i everywhere by making a tax-
deductible gift to help women —
i In Latin America, the Caribbean,
| and all over the world — access
the care they deserve.

| and legal abortion servigesl That's
i especially critical in times of
| emergency — times like now, as
agg‘ millions of women who are

1 preghant or may become pregnant
face the threat of the Zika virus.

! need, Planned Parenthood

7l Global and our partners are

¢ there to help. In countries around
B the globe, we're working with over
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Sue Feldmann

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

R N R BRI

Planned Parenthood Mar Monte <development@ppmarmonte. org>
Tuesday, May 03, 2016 1: 28 PM

AttorneyGeneral

The Big Day of Giving is underway!

"I flrst came to Planned Parenthood when I was 16 for STD-screening and birth control. I needed to go
somewhere where.I was anonymous, private and safe -~ and where people would really take care of me. I fo

that place. "

When you ggngg e to Planned Parenthood Mar Monte you are fulﬂlling the promise to families in our commun '
that there {s a safe place to go. You are opening the doors for the more than 8,000 patient visits that will ha
in our health centers just this week alone.

That's why it's so Important that you glve y' our g'ift now. Without your support, vital health care services wol
be available for tens of thousands of people who need It. Still not sure you're making a dlfference? Learn wh
your glft can help achieve in only one week.
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Sue F¢=.»l¢:lmar|“p_r

]

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Planned Parenthood Mar Monte <development@ppmarmonte.org>

Tuesday, May 03, 2016 12:01 AM .
AttorneyGeneral . . .

The Big Day of Giving Is herel ‘ :

"After a financially debilitating divorce, I walked through your doors. My birth control prescription had run ot
and I no longer had insurance. Kindness and understanding greeted me, and I was grateful Thank you so rr
for being avallable to women In need.”

When you donate today, you'll be part of more storles like this one. You'll ensure that over 200,000 people i
communitles will get the help they need. You'll guarantee that our patients — including 74% who live on less
$12, 000 a year - don't have to live without health care. o :

xou: glft will help transform thousands of lives every week. Your generosity makes possible the services
hlnhlinhi‘nr! in thie nna minnta viden . .







Sue Feldmann -

M -
From: Planned Parenthood Mar Monte <development@ppmarmonte.org>
Sent: . ' Wednesday, Aptil 27, 2016 4:40 PM .
To: C AttorneyGeneral
Subject: The Big DOG is One Week Away!

Your [nspliring generosity during last year's Blg Day of Giving event - a day when communities corme togethe
support local non-profits and charities - raised enough for Planned Parenthood Mar Monte to provide 275
pregnhancy tests, 165 immunizations and 91 emergency contraceptive visits for our nelghbors who can find t
quality care nowhere else.”

That's why we're reaching out today to remind you to jom us next week Tuesday, May 3, for the Big Daz {
ymg 2016.

T

Without your support, health care setvices and education programs for thousands of familles in mid-Californ
and northern Nevada would be eliminated every year.

We're anticipating a day of buzz and feel-good giving on May 3! We're excited to share with you the many w
your support helps keep families safe and healthy.







Sue Feldnl?lnn . . _

MR R gy RS IR R ET
From: Planned Parenthood Mar Monte <development@ppmarmonte.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 04, 2016 121 PM
To: : AttorneyGeneral
Subject: The Big Day of Giving has been extended!

L
i {‘, ‘j‘. i

Dear Kamala, . .

Thank you for your interest in donating to Planned Parenthood Mar Monte through The Big Day of Giving. Dt
technical difficulties, The Big Day of Giving has been extended until 3:00 p.m. today, Wednesday, May 4.

If you haven't given your gift, but would like to, please click here. We appreciate your patience and generos

Sincerely,

Planned Parenthood
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From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Planned Parenthood Advocates Mar Morite <pubhcaffalrs@ppadvocatesmm org>
Monday, May 23, 2016 9:58 AM.

AttorneyGeneral

Take action for #PPCapitolDay!

Dear Kamala,

Today is our annual #PPCapitolDay, when we throng the State
Capitol to advocate for our priority legislation in 2016! We're
working on important bills that increase access to birth control,
improve telehealth care and protect privacy. Do you have a
moment to stand with us in support of this legisiation? Click here
to take action now!

Right now more than 450 grassroots activists and Planned
Parenthgod Mar Monte staff are in Sacramento, urgding leaders to
support significant policies that wlll improve Callfornia's laws, This
is a day to engage and educate supporters to spur change! .Even If
you can't join us In'Sacramento you can support these efforts

by taking action virtually to let leglslators know you
support these bills. :

On social media? Track #PPCapitolDay on Twitter throughout the
day to keep up with the latest news and see photos of the
activities in Sacramento. .

Finally, did you know that-May 23 is the voter reglstratlon
deadline for the June primary election? Are you registered?
Have you moved recently and need to re-register? It's fast and
easy to register online so you're ready to vote on Jung 7.

er no

Thanks for all you do, '
The Planned Parenthood Mar Monte Public Affairs Team







Sue Feldmann‘

From: Heather Saunders Estes, CEO, Planned Parenthood Northern California '
<pride@ppnorcal.org>
Sent: Thursday, May 12, 2016 8:04 AM
. To: AttorneyGeneral ' ’
Subject:

March with Planned Parenthood In the SF Pride Parade,

"

TR
=

Mark your calendars! Join Planned Parenthood Northern California at
the San-Francisco Pride Parade on Sunday, June 26, Early
registration Is now open to our superstar supporters. Kamala,
that means you! . ‘ B
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March with Planned Parenthood Nowthern Califoroia in the:
SAN FRANCISCO PRID

SL A

SUNDAY, JUNE 26%

www.ppactionca,org/sfpride
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Sue Feldmann

- From;

Sent:
To:
Subject:

T

Linda Willlams <development@ppmarmonte.org>
Wednesday, May 25, 2016 7:33 PM

AttorneyGeneral ' o
Statement from Linda Williams on Today's Arson Attack

Dear Kamala,

You may have already-heard about the arson attack at our
Modesto health' center in the very ' '
early hours of this morning, May 25, I

want to flil you In on what we know at this;

time:

1) Though, thankfully, ho one was hurt
and there appears to be no structural
damage to the bullding, there was enough
damage ~ including to computers and the
lobby (shown here) - to force us to close
the health center for at least one week.

2) The fire was reported shortly before 4

a.m,, and fire Investigators at the scene

found that someone had apparently

thrown a gas can through one of the glass

doors and ignited it. The fire damage was K ‘
contained to the immediate area, and, as often happens during
this type of Incldent, the rest of the damage appears to be caused
by the sprinkler system. '

'3) The incldent is being investigated as arson.

4) When the insurance adjuster inspects the building we wiil have
a clearer idea about the extent of the damage and what will be
needed to restore it. | :

i -This incldent is only the latest attack on Planned Parenthood

health centers across the country as threats and attacks against

- ‘our services, staff and sites have escalated nine-fold over the past
year. These assaults are the result of a well-orchestrated smear
campalgn by antl-reproductive rights zealots that has spread to
Congress and the violent fringe, résulting in four arson attacks
within three months at our health centers around the country, The
attack in Modesto makes it five. '

I want to assure you that we will not be intimidated by extremists
who try to shut down our services. Because of your steadfast and




communitles that rely on us.

With Gratitude,

Linda Willlams

President and CEQ
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Wednesday, arch 30 2016

HILTON SAN DIEGO BAYFRONT ‘
- One Park Blvd. | San Diego, CA 92101

CHAIRS :
Rosette Garc1a & Damei Kistier, MD

- FEATURED SPEAKER -
Carole Jolfe, PhD
. The Resilience of Planned Parenthood

© FEARLESS VOICE AWARD RECIPIENT
' Willie J: Parker, MD, MPH, MSc

Receplidh‘.i 30 p. mi= 3 ‘O'p;rri.
= Dmner&Puogram 6:30 p. 3
\ Dancmg‘rofoliow N

te gues 1(9) on RSVP card Tickets may. he purchased ‘ .
March ?5 2016 atpla} ed.org/dmner :
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FEATURED SPELKER
CHROLE JORFE, Phiy
New Standards in Reproductive Health

obstetrics, gynecology,and reproductive
sciences*at UC San Franclsco's Bixby
i Center for Global Reproductive Health,
&% and a professor emerita of sociology at
UC Davls. She has spent a career studying reproductive rights
and politics and is an expert on the history of abartion inthe U.8.
A defender of reproductive rights and an advocate for abortion
providers, she stresses the need to end their marginalization

Joffe' is @ professor in the Advancing

(ANSIRH) program in the department of,

R

LiE
o

z ‘5-'*-- ——

SR

from the mainstream medical community, Writing for both -

academlcaudiences and the general public, Joffe has published
several books, inc]uding Doctors of Censcienge: The Struggle to
Provide Abortion Before and After Roe v. Wade; and Dispatches
from the Abortion Wars: The Costs of Fanaticism to Doctors,
Patfents and the Rest of Us. She Is = regular contributer to the
Los Angeles Times, the Washington Post, The New York Times, RH
Reality Check, Huffingten Post, Slate, and others.

The ne'cibi,eﬁt* of numerous awards, she recelved the 2015 David

_Gunn Lifetime Achlevement Award from the Abortlon.Care
Network, given in memory of Dr. David Gunn, the first abortion- «

providing physician to'be murdered in the US., to a person
whaose work in support of abortion care has been exemplary. She

" recelved her PhD in sociology from UC Berkeley.




PEARLESS W Cn{st;’k ASARCE RFECIPIENT

NLLEE J. PARITER, MDD, WiPH, W5

Dr. Willie J. Parker is a board-ceriified
OB-GYN, women's health advocate, and
abortion provider whose dedication to
reproductive justice lad him to relocate
from Chicago, lllinols to his hometown
of Birmingham, Alabama. There, he

nelghboring states continue to get the reproductive care they
need, desplte an unprecedentad onslaught.of new restrictions on

abortion providers, which has foreed many clinics to close. He is-
the physician plaintiff in a federal lawsuit to keep Mississippi's last .

remaining &bortion clinic open, a case pending before the LS.
Supreme Court. His unflinching dedication o serving low-income
women and- women of color has been the focus of numerous
print and online articles. He is also featured In Trapped, a new
documentary aboutthe erosion of reproductive rights inthe U.S.

Dr. Parker holds degrees from ihe Un-lver:sity of lowa College
of Medicine, Harvard School of Public Health, the Universty of

" Cincinnati, and the University of Michigan.

can ensure the women in Alabama and

W e
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DHRECTICNG T THE HILTON 56N SMBGE &»Avc—*me«ﬁ

One Park Blvd., San Diego, CA 921Q1

LEMLNG SOUTH OR IHTERETAYE S
Take Front St./Givic Center exit. Stay on Front St. to Harbor Dr. Turn Ieft
onito Harbor Dr. (Pass Convention Center on right.) Turn right onte
Park Blvd.

L]
DROVING SOUTH ON STATE ROUTE 163
Follow 10th Ave, to Market St. Turn right on Market St. to Front St.
Turn left.on Front.St. to Harbor Dr, Turn left ento Harbor Dr (Pass
Convention Center on right) Turn right onto Park Blvd.

DESVADG MAMRTH ON ITERSTAYE &
Take Cesar Chavez Pkwy. exit. At traffic signal turn left onto Cesar

' Chavez Pkwy.Turn right onte Harber Dr. Turn left onto Park Blvd.

PORKIGE WEFOQRMEBTION

Valet service is $15, After turning onto Park Blvd., go past parking
structure entrance and turn left on Gull St. Drop off car atvalet station
Just un;ler Kridge. Look for our helpful greeters.

Self-parking is$10. Afterturning onto Park Blvd:, take first leftinto -
the parking structure before hotel. Take parking structure elevatot to
third-floor sky bridge, which will take you 1o front of hotel, Look for our

helpful greeters,
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2016 HONORARY COMMITTEE

HONSRARY OHAIR
K. Andrew Achterkirehen
Busanna & Miches! Flaster

Rogetio'@arcla & Daniel Kisger, MD

R. Blsine-Hanson, MD &
Bruce A. Robbins, MD .

- Hotlitay Fanilly Foundstion
Ghristy Watton
Pat Wilson & Greg Rose

GHAMPIGN -OF CHOIGE
‘Rita Atkinsen
Bev Grant
Niatlsa & Bill Ragtétier

VISTONARY
Bobbie & Jon Gitbert
Jeiffe Farlly
. denny & Wesiudge
David& Sherry Wikider

BENERACTOR
Arenymous
Jesn.Jordan Bernstain
HobertBlanchert & Lynda Forsha

" Béams Bry.8 Nelt Serturia
The Bharipenain Family
Randy Clafie& foriNigtidox, MD

List &s of February 8, 2076

Dr. Oitfferd & Barsiyn ‘Colwell
Amy Gorton'& Carl Eilsl
Jackje & 8tan Drosch
Phyliis Bpsteln
Judy Feldman
Pauling Foster
Kimberly A, Godwin
Lynn Gorguze & Hom. Scott Peters
Marjorle A, Huntington
Stacy Jacobs, OD
Linda & Mol Katz
PoH & Gharles Kaufman
_ 8Sharon & Joel Labovitz
Barbara & Mathew Loorin
Nate Moay & Jackie Bildgs
Sue & Arfton Monk
- Bara Mdser
Beorge & Gindy Olmstead.
© Clarloe & Bill Petkins
Atlene & Ron Prater -
rs, David & Catalina Preskill
Marole Rethmai
Peter Selvati & Robin Hensley
Bheryl & Bob Seardne
Hathlgen L. Strauss, FhD
Br. Peldl Arita- Strauss
Abby &Ray Welss
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R DINNER

Planned Parenthood of the Pacific Southwest
Please RSVP by Friday, March 25, 2016

TABLES (able often) ~ OTY . TIGKETS  QTY
Advisory $1,750 $175 __1._
Patron $2,500 $250
Benefactor* $5,000 $500

*Hororary Committes: $5,000 minimurm contribution, Includes & table of 10, nams In the
dinner program, and tnvitation to private reception held on the sama day

.{ am unable to attend but wish to make a donation of $

Name

Address

Cly : State/ZIP .
Phone ' . Emall

'Plsase make check payable to Plannsd Parenthood or PPPSW,
[[Jvisa [IMesterCard [_|American Express [] Discover

Amount to be charged $

Acct, # ( 5‘2 __
Exp. Dats (/4
Signature

Visit planned.org/dinner to ):iqrchase tickets or tables oniine.

For more information, piease call 619.881.4500 or
email events@planned.org. All tickets are held at tha door.
The valug-of goods and services Is $100 per tickst or $1,000 per table,

PLEASE LIST GUEST NAMES ON REVERSE.




GUEST NAMES | v

Vegstarlan?

DO ooooooo

Planned
. Parenthood®
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THE COMMUNITY ACTION FUND OF PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF
DRANGE AND'SAN-BERNARDING GOUNTIES PRESENTS

emiunityAction Fiind of Plafined Parenthood
range ;a:ndvs,qn ‘Bemarding Gountigs .
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Please join us in celsbrating the 25th anniversary of
the Community Action Fund of Planned Parenthood .
"of Orange and San Bernardino Counties,

KEYROTE SPEAKER
Lieutenant Governor Gavin Newsom

MISTRESS OF CEREMONIES
8Benator Connle Leyva (SD 20)

- HONOREES
Orange County Women's Health Project
for standing up for comprehensive
sexual health education by advocating for AB 329,
the Callfornia Healthy Youth Act.

Tricia Nichols
for Ieading the establishment of the
Gommunity Action Fund 26 years ago.




Proteciing Public Health
and Empowsing Sommunities

FRIDAY, MAY &, 2016
/- Hiltoh Costa Mesa
3050 Bristol Street, Costa Mesa
Complimentary self-parking and'valet is available.

Sponsors’ VIP .Champagne Reception: 11:00 a.m.
Luncheon Registration: 11:30 a.m,
Luncheon and Program -Begins:.12:00 p.m.

For mare infon:ma’cion., visit us at CommunityhciionFund.org.

ABDUT THE COMMURNTY AGTION FHND

The Community Action Fungd is the political arm of Flanned
Parenthood of Orange and San Bernardino Counties, It is an
Independertt, nonprofit, nonpartisan organization dedlicated

" 1o protecting and expanding Individual rights to reproductive
cholce and acoess to family planning. The Community Action
Fund ralses funds in support of progressive candidates that
value access to affordable reproductive health services and

c.ompx;eh.ensive sexual health education. .




COMMUNITY ACTION FUND BOARD OF BIREGTORS
‘Michelle Bartlett, Chalr
Thy Bul '
Jane Bgly
* Carlna Franck-Pantons
Mikey Herrlng
. Christina Hernandez
Dianne Landeros
Lynne Riddle
Chahira Soth
Joffrey Van Hoosear
Nanocy Ruth White:

Planned
' Parenthood’

Communlty Action.Fund of Plawnod Pasanthand
(rangn and Sun Bornardine-Coumtlos |

‘Contributions to the Community Action Fund-of Planned Parenthood
of Orange and San Bernardine Countles are not tax-deductible for
federal income tax purposes because they fund lebbying and electoral
work, We gan acoppt contributions from Indlividuals, businesses and
labor organizations. One hundred percent (100%) of each contribution
will be deposited into our state PAC (ID #1282484) to support state and
local electoral work and advocacy on baliot inftiatives,

—r——gt =




SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES

All sponsors and table captains will be recognized in printed and
digital event materials, To assist with your recognition, please .
complete your gift by April 1. For additional Information, please call
714.6883,6873, ext. 400 or emall PublicAffairs@pposbe.org.

O VICTORY SPONSOR $25,000
Includes program recognition, 20 VIP tickets o the avent, and 10
Invitations to the VIP25th Annlversary champagne reception.

O GHAMPION SPONSOR $10,000
Includes program recognition, 10 VIP ticksts to the event, and 10
invitations to the VIP 25th Anniversary champagne rsogption.

O LEADER SPONSOR $5,000
Includes program recognition, five tickets to the event, and five

invitations to the VIP 25th Anniversary champagne reception.

© ADVOCATE SPONSOR 42,500

Includes program racognition, four tickets to the event, and two -
invitations to the ViP 25th Anniveysary champagne reception.

O FRIEND SPONSOR 41,000

- Ineludes program recognition, two tiokéts to the event, and two

jnvitations to the VIP.QSth,-Anniversary champagns recgplion, *

FATENT ATTENBANGE AR GIFTS _
O'Yesl | wouild like to purchase Hlcket(s) 1o the 256th
Anniversary Celebration at $95 each. :

O | oan't attend, but wishto make a:nen fax-deductable donetion of

e

0 8ign me up fo be atable captainl | want to help fill atable’of 10 and °
berecognized in the program. Contact PublicAffairs@ppasbe.org
or call 714.633,6373, ext.-400 fermore information.

If you would like to purchase tickets or makea gift online, you can
also visit us at- CommunityActionFund.org today!

{PLENSE BEE REVERGE)




DONDR INFORMATION
Name:,
Street;,
Clty, State: : Zip:
Phone: Emath:
Praferred recognition name::,

Ocoupation:*
Employer:?
If self-employed, name of the scompany or foundation:™ e ..

"This Information is raquired by law for rgporﬁng faurposus.

PAYMENT INFORMATION

Wy gift of§ __ ‘will be-made by:

O Gash orcheok payable to: PPOSBC CAF PAC ID #1282484
Ovisa O MasterCard O American Express O Discover -
Name on card: : .
Credit card #: : Exp. Date;
Signature:

My reservation includes ‘che Tallowing guests:
Rlease indicals If requestingia vegetarian (v), vegan (ve), orgluten-frse ({of) meal
nextlio gc/eqt name(s).

6.
T
8
9

oop WS

o

Please,list the namss of avent attendess you would like'to sit with, We wlll
try our lpest to gcecemmodate your tequast

if you wouild like to-send your gusst names at & later date, please call
714.8838.8378, ext. 400 or email PublicAtfairs@ppesbc.org.

Contributions 19 the Community ActionFund pf Planned Parenthoed of
Orange and San Beinardino Countles are not tax~deductible for federal
Income tax purposes because they fund lobbying and electoral work.
We can accept contributions from individuals, businesses and Jabor

* orgapizations. One hundred percent (100%) of each opntribution Will be
deposited into our state PAC (ID #1282464) to Support state and local
elactoral work and.advocacy on ballot infiiatives.

it
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Sue Feldmann

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

=
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Planned Parenthood Northern California <info@ppnorcal.org>
Saturday, April 16, 2016 10:00 AM

AttorneyGeneral

You're Tnvited - Stand Up! with BATS Improv

Kamala, You're Invited!’

Corne laugh and raise a glass! Join the Napa 'Vaflll\ey Board of
Advocates for a night of comedy to celabrate the life saving work
of Planned Parenthood Northern California. :

Thursday, May 12, 2016
Dinner 5:30-7:30
Show 7:00-8:15
After Party 8:15-9:30
Buy your tickets today!
" See you at Stand Up!
Sincerely, |

Hoathar Qanvdare Eatag
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President and CEQO
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AttornezGeneral

Lo NEREES

From:
Sent:.
To:

Subject:

Heather Saunders Estes, Planned Parenthood Northern California <info@ppnorcal.org>
Tuesday, May 03, 2016 4:41 PM - '
AttorneyGeneral

Kamala, Don't Miss Your Chance to Stand Up! Plus, épecial Group Pricing!




Planined Parenthood Norther Callfornia
: presenis -

,‘ii;ﬁ,!lmﬁ

, ~ .Come Laugh withUs - .
at our Annual Stand Up! event
on Thursday, May 12th.

No need to drive into San Francisco to laugh out loud with the Impressive improv
hysterlcs by BATS. o

~ Instead support our Stand Up! event by purchasing a $150 tiéket for the
performance and a rockin’ after party, or a special discount on 4 tickets for $5001




Scargle paired with VIP seating énd after party fun for $750.
No auction - live or sllent ~ just a lot of laughter and a Fund-A-Need.

Get in on the jokel We are almost at capacity - don't miss your chance to Stand
Up!

' Buy vour tickets today!

P.S. Bring your mobile phone - we have games to entertain youl Those of you not
at the dinner, we've got you covered - a glass of bubbly Is walting for you. See you
: therel ‘ . :

\
t




Sue Feldmann —
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From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Heather Saunders Estes, Planned Parenthood Northern California <info@ppnorcal.org>

Monday, May 08, 2016 6:39 PM
AttorneyGeneral .
Get Your Laugh Onl

Flannod Faranthond MNosthern Catilornia

presents

". “There Is nothing in the world so irresistibly contagious as
laughter and good humor.” '

Charles Dickens

We can't wait to laugh with you this Thursday evening at CIA's
newest venue at the .

former Copla site, 500 1st St, Napa

Check ln-wlth your funny side and 'enjoy a glass of bubbly before

the show. Seating begins at 6:45pm

Bring your fully charged cell phone (yes, bring it to the
performance) to participate in the evening's Fund A Need to
"support Planned Parenthood Northern California.

Napa Casual ~ of course

Haven't gurgb'ased your tickets vet? There's still time to get In

on the fun!
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_Srue Feldmarln
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From:
Sent;:
To:
Subject;

Planned Parenthood Northern California <info@pp-sp.org>
Friday, April 01, 2016 9:01 AM :

" AttorneyGeneral o
Join us for Stand Up! with BATS Improv -

Planned Parenthood Northern Callfornia

!

presents

Dear Kamala,

On Thursday, May 12, 2016, Planned . é
Parenthood Northern California, in BATS IMPROV
coord|nation with the Napa Valley Board

-.of Advocates, will host Stand Up! an

avanina af ramady at Fha muochaawnitad




Culinary Institue of America (formerly
Copia). Join us for an intimate dinner and
customized show celebrating Planned
Parenthood and our work i Napa.

‘The evening will feature BATS Improv,

who will perform on-the-spot comedic
skits with the help of audience
suggestions. BATS Improv is &
professional theatre company and an
artistic communlty that cultivates and
innovates the craft of Improvised theatre
through engaging, playful, creative
performance and training.

Come experience Stand Up as you never
have before. There are two ways to
experience Stand this year.

o Laugh and party with us. Click
here for tickets,

e Eat, laugh and drink with us. To -
enjoy the gourmet dinner, be sure
to purchase tickets at the Jubijant,
Sassy, or Individual Reservation -
Dinner, Performance & After-Party
levels, '

Seats are filling up fast and we are

" nearing capacity. Please click here and

RSVP today to reserve your place. All
tickets include admittance to the

. performance and after party. If you have

any questions, please contact the Events
Manager at (415)920-2068..

" You may also receive a Paperless Post

invitation, these invitations are for the

. same event ~ Stand Upl 2016.

Sincerely,

Tttt

Heather Saunders Estes
President and CEQ
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Prom: ) Kneer, Kathy. ckathy:kneef@PRAECAORGS.

Sent: Friday, July*17, 2045 3529 Pivt :

Tos Kamala Harrs

Subjject: Updtate from Planned Parenthodirevideo attak

Dear Madam Attorney Getveral,

By now you may heve heard-dbepter haveseen-aheavily edited yideoofDr.. Deberzhi Nucatols, senfordirectorof
medical services for Planned Parenthnod Federtion of Americs.whidhwasvelsased thisweekiby.aneorggnization:cdling
Itselfthe-Geriterfor Mediéal:Bragress, We wartedyou to kear: dn'eahly fromuusithgtthesldims’ being postdearg cleariy
ouiragesusand unirye, ‘ . .

As-you know, Planned. Paremhmd'&mp :plioniydgdhe a@mpagsionateaeare hrituweprovide dio: Gtase}’m 1. mﬂiimn
Callforntans every yeae, ivthe video, Hhe ‘st spdiedng. wav"ﬂhﬁf Rossaet reffectifie eompxssion or care thit we.
know you-expest. Thisdsunaeceptable toasand Weapa}qgfze«iaremeamne antl hermtemants\ o

; heition tostinmatedissuarts Selemifle reszeamh*haw eanhgly
ints: aiitkeupsitonserious Hiseases. Four BF seven Galifmiia Blannsd
Parenthood.affiliates have nn’iaisjmnsh'ips withdena fides reseamh\eqﬁtem:hhm:mndumkfesay 13- cmtlngsedgm sham gell
and other festarch that Is aimed ot curthghiosnsdisease, som anteis, Alzheimetisand s‘cheshgaaé:ﬁcndisaasas Weither
planmed Parenthoed noroyr pafiefts ﬁnanqlally beneﬂtframwhgse Honations.

In heglin eare, scommoenipragticefor gaile
iead to medical brealthioughs, sushastedt

Plannad Parenthoed-affillares wiidh partlclpate in the prmgrams rigerously: fm[lmw &l statae andfederal laws We ebtajn
censent from paients using the bighest ethicaland legal standards. Some affilateswhichparticlpate in domation. -
programs de recelve a modest fee, butthatisfar ddministrativeand pransperation eosts. The: allegation-that Planned
Parenthodt! in any wayprofitsfrorathese donatiops isabsolutely. mnt*ruep ' :

.'T’hlS«heaVﬁ]\/ edited videowaseredted and pmmated hy a; wall-:funded,gmup whqseasmle Purpose is o damage ?lanned
Parerithoed’s.rép: aﬁiﬁm angl to preventusfiom. Brovitling preventiveand sepradudtive hedlth:sepviegstihat women
need angd-deserve —health servites:suchias hreastand: seniudl canger:soresnings, STDtesting-and treatment, birth
control and sexual heplth aducation, We know their: redl-agenda, andtheyhave neverbeen-concernet. with “pratecting

_the health-and safety of woemen. Their. mission istobin abnrtium completaly ard.aut: warpen fori fram wae-atPlanned
Parenthood apd. nﬁher hea thgenters.

gv
Sadly we do nmabe!iave “this.is Yheend ﬁo their chajges-against: Planmea Parerxthomd [fyey haveanys que;ﬁ{zwse%r sfaéié

additianal informetion,. please Ho notthesitateto.call s, !

. Sincerely, ' . -
. i ﬁﬁf? , *‘m"&ﬁ" ~ ¥
Kathy.Kneer ("ﬁ @ ’ i ;‘;‘

% 15 -f572




President.and CED
" Planned Parenthood Affiliatesof CA
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From: ¢ - - Robert Sumner R R R
. . Sent:- g .« "+ Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:29 PM. N R P A
- To:- co  Romero, Ghristina : ' '--.: Y
Subject: * RE. Callwith RobertSumner(AGsOfﬁce) RE ABAG’[:L (IllegathdeoTaping) TP
qup_g@dolca.g b . C L e

From: Romero, Chrlstina [mailto Chrlstina, Romero@PEACCA OBG] ' P
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:28 PM " i Co ety
To: Robert Sumner -~ ! ‘ . - o

Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner'(AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Taplng) " e

Absolirtely! If you send me her email | canadd her o the invite.© , s

* Christina Romero, Legislatlve Diractor

Planhed Parenthood Affillates of California | 555 Capitol Mall, Sulte 510 l Sacramento, CA 95814
v T
www, bpactionca.org . . ., . .

L Planned

1 Parenthood’

T ek, M atter it

. mmmnﬁmmmummmm .

. Subject: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (llegal Video Taping)
.. When: Friday, Aprll 08, 2016 3:30 PM-4:00 PM (UTC-
- Where: In person: 555 Capltol Mall Over the phone.

From. Robert Sumner [mgll;t_o_;aobert Sumner@dol ca. goyl

Sant: Tuasday, March 29, 2016 4:27 PM L
Tot Romero, Christina. - : ’

- Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Ofﬁce) RE AB 1671 (lllegal Vldeo Tapmg)

Cool if | Inyite Jill Habig in case she can join?

----Orlginal Appointment-—~~-' : .
From: Rorhero, Christina [mallto:Christina, Romero@PPACCA.ORG]
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:26 PM L
'To: Romero,.Chistina; Robert Sumner! Parker, Beth; PPAC Line

i §
. v

CONFIDEN’IMLITY NOTICE: This commurication with its contents may contam confidential and/or 1ega]ly

. privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended reclpwnt(s) Unauthonzed interception, review,

" use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate apphcable laws including the Blectr onic Commumeatlons

Privacy Act. If you are not the mtended reo1p1ent please contact the sender and destroy all copies ofthe

. oommumcatlon

i

¢

L ¢ [ N ‘e "




From: ' * Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

Sent: Tuesday, July 21, 2015 9:42 AM
Toi Jill Habig; Robert Sumner
Subject: Planned Parenthood: videos
Jill and Robby

A second video was released today. We belleve we are fully compliant with all federal and state laws and are
Investigating the situation. Please feel free to reach out to me if you havé any questions or concems,

4

Beth

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel
Planned Parenthood Affiliatas of California | 555 Caplto! Mall, Sulte 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814
" 016.446.5247 [ 926 441063272 | R -

e ——————e

The contents of this e-mall message, including any attachments, are intended sofely for the use of the person or entlty to whom the ¢-
meill was addressed, It containe information that may be pratected by the attomey-client privilegé, work-product daatring, or other
privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law, [f you are not the intended recipient of this
massage, be advised that any dissemination, distibution, or use of the contents of this message Is strictly prohihited. If you: have
tecalved this message In error, or are not the named reciplant(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by phone at
(916) 446.5247 ext, 108 and delete this message from your computer, Thank you,

t
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From: Romero, Christlna [mgito Chtistmg,_&qm ro @EPACCA OBG]
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:28 PM

To: Robert Sumner : ‘
Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Tapmg)

Absolthelyl If you send me her email | can add her to the'invite. ©

 Christina Romero, Legislative Director
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of Callfornia | 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 l Sacramento, CA 95814

016-446-5247 | N 516-241-0632 fax
www,ppactionca.ofg

'F*izannad

ﬁaramthmd"
A, My natierwiat,

Phnoud Paraatiood Mlilites of Calllomip

. Subject: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Tapmg)

. Where: In persan: 555 Capltol Mall Over the phone.

From: Robert Sumner [mail‘co Rgbert Sumngr@do; ca.gov] .

Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:27 PM

To: Romero, Christina. *

Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Offlce) RE AB 1671 (Illegal Vndeo Tapmg)
Cool if 1 Invite Jill Habig in case she can join?

F-»Origlnal Appointment--~--

From: Rorhero, Christina [ma!!:o,‘ghﬂg ing,Romero@PMCQA,OB ]
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:26 PM

To: Romero, Christina; Robert Sumner: Parker, Beth; PPAC Line

When: Friday, April 08, 2016 3:30 PM-4:00 PM (UTC-

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This commmunication with its contents may contain confidential and/o1 legally
privileged information. It is solely for the use of thie intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, teview,

" use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate apphcable laws including the Elestronic Communications

Privacy Aot. If you are not the mtended rec1plent please contact the sender and destroy ell copies of the

. commumcauon

1
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" From: 't . Robert Sumner I L T S P
.. Sent: " : . Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:29 PM R R PP
© - Tor . ' v Romero, Ghristina " : ' '~,.~ TR
Subject: * care RE Call with Robert Sumner(AG s Offxce) RE AB :l671 (Illegal Vldeo Tapmg) S SRR o




Print Message : Dell Archive Manager Page 1 of 2

k=l Email

From: Kneer, Kathy ' Sent:7/17/2015 3:27:15 PM 4
To:  Rabert Sumner -
Subject;Update from Planned Parenthood re: video attack

Attachments may contain viruses that are harmful to your computer. Attachments may not display correctly, _

image003. 21Kb

Planned
Parenthood”

Ant, No matter what,
Piannad Pavanthond AN of Daltomia

Dear Robert,

By now you may have heard about or have seen a heavily edited video of Dr, Deborah Nucatola, senior director
of medical services for Planned Parenthood Federation of America, which was released this week by an
organization calling itself the Center for Medical Progress. We wanted you to hear directly from us that
the claims being made are clearly outrageous and untrue.

As you know, Planned Parenthood’s top priority is the compassionate care that we provide to close to 1 million
Californians every year. In the video, the staffer speaks In a way that does not reflect the compassion or care
that we know you expect. This Is unacceptable to us and we apologize for her tone and her statements,

In health care, it's common practice for patients to have the option to donate tissue to scientific research that
can help lead to medical breakthroughs, such as treatments and cures for setious diseases. Four of seven
California Planned Parenthood affiliates have relationships with bona fide research centers that conduct
lifesaving, cutting edge stem cell and other research that Is aimed at curing heart disease, some cancers,
Alzheimer's and other genetic diseases. Neither Planned Parenthood nor our patients financially benefit from
these donations.

Planned Parenthood affiliates which participate in the programs rigorously follow alil state and federal faws. We
obtain consent from patients using the highest ethical and legal standards. Some affiliates which participate in
donation programs do receive a modest fee, but that is for administrative and transportation costs. The
allegation that Planned Parenthoad in any way profits from these donations is absolutely untrue. '

This heavily edited video was created and promoted by a well-funded group whose sole purpose is to damage
Planned Parenthood’s reputation and to prevent us from providing preventive and reproductive health services
that women need and deserve -- health services such as breast and cervical cancer screenings, STD testing and
treatment, birth control and sexual health education. We know their real agenda, and they have never been
concerned with protecting the health and safety of women. Their missian is to ban abortion completely and cut
women off from care at Planned Parenthood and other health centers.

Sadly we do not belleve this‘is the end to their charges against Planned Parenthood. If you have any questions
or seek additional information, please do.not hesitate to call us. ‘

http://archivemanager.rescs.caldoj.local/PrintMessage.agpx ?CheckSums=6daf2blc-6576-7... 6/27/2016




Print Message : Dell Archive Manager Page 2 of 2

Sincerely,
Kathy Knee'r

President and CEO
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of CA

h‘rtp://archiveménager.rescs.caldoj.local/PrintMessage.aspx?CheckSums=6daf2b10-65'76-7... 6/27/2016




Robert Sumner

_—
From: Robert Sumner

Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:13 PM
To: ‘Romero, Christina’

Subject: RE: 2016 leg

Perfect, ©

From: Romera, Christina [mailto:Christina,Romero@PPACCA.ORG]

Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:12 PM
To: Robert Sumner
Subject: RE: 2016 leg

Hey Robert! I've been meaning to emall you since yesterday!!ll I'm going to giVe you a call and will also send to you.

Christina Romero, Legislative Director
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814
916-446-5247 -1 916-441-0632 fax |

www.ppactionca.org

Planned
i Parenthood’

A, Ne Lo v /
Flanawsa Paressthond ATGuakes of Califdmin

From: Robert Sumner [mailto:Robert.Sumner@doi.ca.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:10 PM '

To: Romero, Christina
Subject: 2016 leg

Hey Christinal Do you have a breakdown of PPAC’s legislative priorities this session? Loaking to check in on what you all
are sppnsoring/supporting, just generally in the interest of being helpful where | can. Thanksl

- Robby

Rohert Sumner

Speclal Counsel for Legislation

California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris
1300 | Street

Sacramento, CA 95814

robert.sumner@doi.ca.gov

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally
privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review,

1




use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications
Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the
communication, ' :




Robert S_umner

L L
From: Romero, Christina <Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG>
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:13 PM
To: Robert Sumner
Subject: RE: 2016 leg

Just called you. Give me a call when you have a chance! —

Christina Romerao, Legislative Director

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capitol Mall; Suite 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814
916-446-5247 || 915-441-0632 fax |_ _.

www.ppactionca.org

1 Planned
| Parenthood”
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From: Robert Sumner [mailto:Robert.Sumner@doj.ca.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:10 PM

To: Romero, Christina

Subject: 2016 leg

Hey Christinal Do you have a breakdown of PPAC's legislative priorities this session? Looking to check in on what you all
are sponsoring/supporting, just generally in the interest of being helpful where | can, Thanks!

- Robby

Robert Sumner

Special Counsel for Legislatlon

California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris
1300 | Street

Sacramento, CA 95814

robert.sumner@do].ca.gov

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally
privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review,
use ot disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications
Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the
communication.




Robert Sumner

From: Romero, Christina <Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG>
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:32 PM

To: Robert Sumner

Subject: RE: 2016 leg ‘

Here are our priority bills this year. Happy to send fact sheets on any you are interested inl

Christina Romero, Legislative Director |

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 | Sacfamenfo, CA 95814
916-446-5247 -1 916-441-0632 fax | '
www.ppactiohca.org

Parenthood”
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Robert Sumner

PRI
From: Romero, Christina <Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG>
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:33 PM
To: Robert Sumner
Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 {lllegal Video Taping)
Donel

Christina Romero, Legislative Director
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 95814
916-446-5247 ||| ) 916-441-0632 fax 1_ :

www.ppactionca.or

| Planned
§ Parenthood™
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From: Robert Sumner [mallto:Robert.Sumner@doj.ca.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:29 PM

To: Romero, Christina

Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (lllegal Video Taping)

Jill.Habig@doj.ca.gov |

From: Romero, Christina [mailtd:Christina“,‘ R‘gnﬂero@_PPACCA.ORG]
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:28 PM
To: Robert Sumner

Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Taping)
Absolutely! If you send me her email | can add her to the invite. ©

Christina Romero, Legislative Director ,

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capitol Mall Suite 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814
916-446-5247 —] 916-441-0632 fax |ﬂ

www.ppactionca.org

i Planned
Parenthood”
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From: Robert Sumner [mailto:Robert.Sumner@doj.ca.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:27 PM

To: Romero, Christina
Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner {AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Hlegal Video Taping)

Cool if | invite Jill Habig in case she can join?




----- QOriginal Appointment--—-

From: Romero, Christina [mallto:Christina,Romero@PPACCA.ORG]
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:26 PM

To: Romero, Christina; Robert Sumner; Parker, Beth; PPAC Line

Subject: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Taping)
When: Friday, April 08, 2016 3:30 PM-4:00 PM (UTC

Where: In person: 555 Capitol Mall Over the phone!

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with. its contents may contain confidential and/or legally
privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review,
use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications
Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the
communication. :

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally
privileged information, It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review,
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
Parenthood’

Act. No matter what.
Plasined Parenthoud Affilites of Galifornia

March 30, 2016

The Honorable Reginald B. Jones-Sawyer
Chair, Assembly Committee on Public Safety
1020 N St, Room 111

Sacramento, CA 95814

RE: AB 1848 (Chiu) ~SUPPORT ‘ e
Dear Assemblymember Jones-Sawyer,

On behalf of Planhed Parenthood Afflliates of California (PPAC) and our more than 115 health centers throughout the
state, we are pleased to support AB 1848 (Chiu). This bill will require local law enforcement agencies to track the
handling of sexual assault evidence kits and to provide annual reports to the California Department of Justice.

These sexual assault evidence kits, which are also known as “rape kits”, can be a useful tool that law enforcement
utilizes to provide justice to victims. However, forensic examination using such kits usually involves a number of highly
invasive procedures and can last up to several hours. In many cases, survivors of sexual assault experience re-
traurnatization when undergoing the forensic evidence collection process, This does not undermine the value that these
kits have but rather places an expectation on law enforcement to utilize these sensitive pieces of evidence. When these
kits go unanalyzed, with no explanation for victims and further adds to the trauma endured by survivors seeking justice,
In California, no comprehensive data is currently available about the number of sexual assault evidence kits law
enforcement agencies collect annually or how many of those kits are analyzed, Further, no comprehensive data exists
about the reasons some sexual assault evidence kits are not analyzed.

For these reasons, the scope of this problem cannot be properly estlmateci'and the need for AB 1848 is clear. By
requliring law enforcement to track and report the status of these kits, agencies would be able to better inform victims

. and policy makers so that they have the relevant information necessary to address this problem. For these reasons,

PPAC supports AB 1848 (Chiu) and respectfully requests your AYE vote,

Sincerely,

o, G

Christina Romero ‘
Legislative Director, Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California

cc: The Honorable David Chiu
Members, Assembly Committea on Public Safety

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 - Sacramento, CA 95814 - (916) 446-5247 - {916) 441-0632 - www.ppactionCA.org




Robert Sumner
L

From: ' Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

Sent: Friday, April 08, 2016 3:39 PM

To: Robert Sumner

Subject: 'RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (lllegal Video Taping)

I didn’t realize you were claling in. Christina said you were coming to office

From: Robert Sumner [mailto:Robert.Sumner@doj.ca.gov]
Sent: Friday, April 08, 2016 3:37 PM

To: Romero, Christina <Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG>; Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>
Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (lllegal Video Taping)

This is actually really lovely hold music so I'm doing fine, but let me know if folks plan on dialing in.

From: Romero, Christina [mailto:Christ omero@PPACCA.ORG]

Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:27 PM '

To: Romero, Christina; Robert Sumner; Parker, Beth; PPAC Line

Subject: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Vldeo Taping) -
When: Friday, April 08, 2016 3:30 PM-4:00 PM (UTC:
Where: In person: 555 Capitol Mall Over the phone:

<< Flle: 2016_03_15_AB_1671_proposed_language (1).docx >>

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
—

From: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

Sent: ' Friday, April 08, 2016 3:51 PM

To: Robert Sumner

Subject: : FW: 2016-03-15 AB 1671.docx - REVISED LEG COUNSEL DRAFT

Attachments: 1610296.insert.docx

Here is current draft.,

From: Joseph, Lori [mailta:lori.joseph@legislativecounsel.ca. go v]
Sent: Wednesday, Aptil 06, 2016 6:30 PM

To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@ PPACCA.ORG>
Subject: RE: 2016-03-15 AB 1671.docx - REVISED LEG. COUNSEL DRAFT

Hi Bath-
Sorry- | attached the wrong draft! 've highlighted my correction in yellow on the attached.

Lari

PR v L L L LI L T T I T S N R TV RV PO R,

: From' Parker, Beth ]mgilgg g;b,ggmer@PPAgCA ORgl
Sent: Tuesday, April 05, 2016 10:02 AM

To: Joseph, Lori
Subject: FW: 2016-03-15 AB 1671.docx




AB 1671- CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATIONS
DISCLOSURE—DRAFT LANGUAGE

632.01. Notwithstanding any other law, a person who, intentionally and
without the consent of all parties to a confidential communication deseribed in
subdivision (c) of Section 632, does either of the following shall be punlshed as
provided in subdivision (b) of Section 632:

() (1) Discloses or attempts to disclose, or distributes or attempts to
distribute, in any manner, in any forum, including, but not limited to, Internet Web
sites and social media, or for any purpose, the contents of any confidential

" communication obtamed birthat person b violation of sibdivision (a) of Seétion

632,

(2) For purposes of this subdivision, “social media” means an electronic
service or account, or electronic content, including, but not limited to, videos or still
photographs, blegs, video blogs, podcasts, instant and text messages, email, online
services or accounts, or Internet Web site profiles or locations.

(b) Aids, abets, employs, or conspires with any person or persons to
unlawfully do, permit, or cause to be done any of the acts described in subdivision

- (a).




Robert Sumner

T MR

From;
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Robert Sumner

Wednesday, April 13, 2016 6:37 PM
Romero, Christina

Accepted: AB 1671 call Robby and Christina




Robert Sumner

From: Romero, Christina <Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG>
Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2016 10:00 AM

To: Robert Sumner

Subject: FW: AB 1671

Here is what | got from Sandy. Make sense? Please don’t share.
Christina Romero, Legislative Director

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Ca itol Mall, Suite 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814
916-446-5247 -1 916-441-0632 fax _ |

www.ppactionca.org

i Planned
Parerthood’
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From: Uribe, Sandy [mailto:Sandy.Uribe@asm.ca.gov]
" Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2016 9:54 AM

To: Romero, Christina

Subject: RE: AB 1671

The case | argued on PC 654 was People v. Jones (2012) 54 Cal.4th 350, 'm forwarding via separate emall from Lexis -
because | can’t figure out how to attach it to this email.

Jones is distinguishable bacause the prosecutor alleged the multiple violations accurred from a single act. But [ did lots
of research in this area in order to prepare for the case. PC 654 applies to both literally one act, and also has a second
application which fooks to the Intent and objectivé of the defendant. Nealv. CA (1960) 55 Cal.2d. 11, is the semihal case
on this second application. There is an exception for when the course of conduct Invalves multiple victims,

Here is a blurk from a more recent case which would be applicable to the situation at hand, illegal recording and
subsequent disclosure,

Section 654 provides: HN7¥ “An act or omission that is punishable in different ways by different provisions of law shall be punished
under the provision that provides for the longest potential term of imprisonment, but in no case shall the act or omission be punished
under more than one provision.” The purpose of the statute “is to ensure that a defendant's punishment is commensurate with his
culpability and that he is not punished more than once for what is essentially one criminal act.” (People v. Kwok (1998) 63
Cal.App.4th 1236, 1252 {75 Cal. Ryptr, 2d 40j(Kwok).)

4)F (4) HNSF Section 654 precludes multiple punishments for a single act or omission or for an indivisible course of

conduct. (Pegplev. Deloza(1998) 18 Cal4th 583, 591 [76 Cal. Rptr. 2d 255, 957 P.2d 945) (Deloza).) ““Whether a course of criminal
conduct is divisible and therefore gives rise to more than one act within the meaning of section 654 depends on the intent and
objecﬁve of the actor. If all of the offenses were incident to one ohjective, the defendant may be punished for any one of such
offenses but not for more than one.” (Neal v. State of California [(1960)1 55 Cal.2d {11], 19 [9 Cal. Rpir. 607, 357 P.2d 8391.)” (Kwok,
supra. 63 Cal App.4th at . 1253.) “Whether the acts of which a defendant has been convicted constitute an indivisible course of

1




oonduct is a question of fact for the trial court, and the trial court's findings [(whether express or implied)] will not be disturbred on
appeal if they are supported by substantial evidence,” (/d. at pp. 1252~1253.)

As this applies to your bl” I would say that in most situations the purpose of making a recording is to dlssemmate itto

others. The person is not surreptitiously making a recording to listen to it himself.

If you have questions on this aspect, 'm happy to discuss this afternoon.

Sandy

From: Romero, Christina [mailto:Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG]
Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2016 9:20 AM

To: Uribe, Sandy

Subject: RE: AB 1671

Sandy, do you have the court case that you were speaking to Beth about? | keep getting asked on my end but 'm not
familiar with the conversation. :

. Christina Romero, Legisiative Director

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814

916-446-5247 | 216-441-0632 fax 1—

www.ppactionca,org

Planned
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From: Uribe, Sandy [mallto:Sandy.Uribe@asm.ca.gov]
Sent; Wednesday, April 13, 2016 10:07 PM

‘To: Romero, Christina
Subject: Re: AB 1671

Thank you for your email Christina. | hope so too. | honestly never though"c I would be in a position to raise concerns
about a PP bill. Besides personal friendship with Paul Knepprath, | used PP facilitiés both in college and law school. Also
a college classmate was killed working at a PP facility in Boston shortly after graduation. So | get the sacrifice folks in
your organization make. That being said, my job is to look at the legal Issues.
I am available to meet around 1:30 or 2:00. | have to meet with the Chair again after session.
Sandy
Sent from my iPhone
On Apr 1;3, 2016, at 9:39 PM, Romero, Christina <Christina.Romero @PPACCA.ORG> wrote:

Good Evening Sandy, h

] spoke to Assemblymember Gomez fbmght and he said Chalr Jones-Sawyer wanted us.to meet

tomorrow to clarify some of the language in our bill. What time Is good for you? We are available from
11:45- 1pm and 1:30pm-5pm, tomorrow.




If those times don’t work for you Beth and | can see if we can move some of our meetings

tomorrow. We look forward to talking and | thank you for all your attention to this bill. This is Planned
Parenthoods number one priority bill in California because of all the suffering our staff has endured
through the video attacks we have sustained. Thank you again. | really hope we can work this outl

Christina Romero, Legislative Director
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 | Sacramento, CA
95814

916-446-5247 | 215-441-0632 fax |-

www.ppactionca.or

<image001.png>

From: Uribe, Sandy [mailto;Sandy.Uribe @asm.ca.gov)
Senit: Tuesday, April 12, 2016 4:33 PM
To: Romero, Christina

- Subject: RE: AB 1671

Hi Christina,
The committee Chair allows two witnesses per side and gives them each two minutes to testify.

The staffer for Asm. Gomez offered to set up a meeting with you and me to discuss the

bill. Unfortunately, because their office waited so long to amend this bill, | honestly don’t have time to
meet. | am not trying to be rude, but | have less than two days to draft the analyses for all my assigned
bills we are going to hear next week. This is our biggest hearing because it's our Jast. I’'m happy to
speak with you on the phone, though.

Feel free to give me a call at your convenience. ! will be here until about 7:30 tonight, or all day
tomarrow. My direct line is

Sandy

Sandy Uribe

Committee Counsel

Assembly Committee on Public Safety
1020 N Street, Room 111

Sacramento, CA 85814

(916) 319-3745 ~ fax

From: Romero, Christina [mailto:Christina.Romeroc@PPACCA.ORG]
Sent: Tuesday, Aprll 12, 2016 10:30 AM

To: Uribe, Sandy

Subject: AB 1671

Importance: High

Hello Sandy,




I hope you are well. I’d love to come chat with you about this bill that we are sponsoring, AB 1671
(Gomez). Additionally, | can’t find the committee rules posted and wondering how many witnesses the
chair allows and how many minutes each witness has to speak. Looking forward to chatting with you
and providing our perspective.

Christina Romero, Legisiative Director

_Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 | Sacramento, CA

95814
916-446-5247 || 2264420632 sx 1_
www.ppactionca.org

<image001.png>




Robert Sumner

From: - ' Rotenberg, Deborah <deborah.rotenberg@PPACCA.ORG>
Sent: . . Tuesday, May 24, 2016 2:45 PM

To: - Robert Sumner

Subject: RE: Hi Robbie, meet Deb

This is great. Thanks so very much for your help|

From: Robert Sumner [mailto:Robert.Sumner@doj.ca.gov]
Sent: Monday, May 23, 2016 5:16 PM

To: Rotenberg, Deborah <deborah.rotenberg @PPACCA.ORG>
Subject: RE: Hi Robbie, meet Deb

‘Went down to the library and found it + scanned it myself. (Which explains why it’s a rough scan; let me know if this is
adequately readablel) That's personal service from your constitutional officer, right there,

- Robby

DI ERR TR

From: Rotenberg, Deborah [mailto:deborah.rotenberg@PPACCA.ORG]
Sent: Friday, May 20, 2016 9:12 PM

To: Robert Sumner

Subject: Re: Hi Robbie, meet Deb

As a matter of fact, [ do!

* Office of the Attorney General of the State of California. Opinion No. CV 74-305, May 20, 1975,
1 really appreciate your help with this!
Thanks so much,

Deborah

Sent from my 1Phone
On May 20, 2016, at 8:21 PM, "Robert Sumner” <Robert.Sumner@doj.ca.gov> wrote:
Lucky for you we have one at DOJ; let me check on Monday. Any idea of details beyond that?

Sent from my iPhone

»

On May 20, 2018, at 7:33 PM, Rotenberg, bgborah <deborah.rotenberg @PPACCA.ORG> wrote:
Hi therel Glad to e-meet you. The opinion | need is from the 70s. Law library, eh?
Sent from my iPhone
On May 20, 2016, at 6:37 PM, "Robert Sumner" <Robert.Sumner@doj.ca.gov> wrote:

1




Hi Debl | can look back as long ago as 1989 before having to start-
pointing you toward law libraries. Any additional detalls you can
provide?

Unless it’s the opinion attached from 2000, in which case I'm a wizard.,
- Robby

Robert Sumner

Director, Office of Legisiative Affairs
California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris
1300 | Street '
Sacramento, CA 95814 ,

robert.sumner@dol.ca.gov

From: Huchel, Sarah [mailto;Sarah,Huchel@sen,.ca.qaov]
Sent: Friday, May 20, 2016 1:53 PM

To: Rotenberg, Deborah -

Cc: Robert Sumner .

Subject: Hi Robbie, meet Deb

She needs an AG opinion from long ago and far away about both our
second favorite subject, CPM. Could you please advise?

Sarah Huchel

Principal Consultant

Senate Commitiee on Business, Professions,
and Economic Development

State Capitol, Room 2053

Sacramento, CA 95814

F:916.266.9343

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its
contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s).
Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is prohibited
and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic
Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient,
please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the
communication.

<00-206.pdf>

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential
and/or legally privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s).

2




Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable
laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient,
please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication,

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally

" privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review,

use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications
Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the

© communication.
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cases upholding the untimited power of the Legislature In workmen's
on mattets are: Domiiguez v, Pendola, 46 Cal. App, 220 (1920) (parties
wived of the constitutional right to a jury teial); Lee v. Swperior Court,
1+ (1923) (limitation of constitutional giant of avthotity to the superlot
edly v, Industrial Ace, Com, 41 Cal. 2d 118 (1953); Sacramento v.
{ee, Com,, 74 Cal. App, 386 (1925) (city chatter provisions subotdinate
1g provisions in the compensation act); Perric v. Industsial Acc. Com.,
pp. 2d 427 (1963) (presumption in Wortkmen's Compensatlon Act
0 certain public etnployees not subject to constitutional attack as being
). .
ion Code sectlon 12919 Is confived to situations whete the employee
eath "in the course of his employment.” The quoted words ot simller
ate commonly found in laws concetned with workmen's compensation,
, section 213 Labor Code § 3600; Longshoremen's and Harbor Wotkers'
on Act, 33 USC § 902; 58 Am. Jur, Workmen's Compensation § 209.
creates o benefic for the dependents of  workman because of a death
1 the course of employment and as such it can be upbeld as an item
v's compensation legislation Immune from the gife and extra compensa-
ons of the Constitution.

Zodé section 3600 limits Industeial injuties to those “arising out of and
ie of .. . employment, ., " Atticle XX, section 21 s not as restrictlve;
s the Leglslature to create a system of workmen's compensation for
wined in the conyse of employment. The injuty need not arise out of
nent.

the compensation statutes of most states require the injury to avise ont
: In the course of employment some jurisdictions permit recovery if only
:onditions Is met, that Is, an injury is compensable if it elther arises ont
in the course of employment. 58 Am, Jut,, Workmen's Coropensation §
tion Code section 12919, In authorlzing the. payment of compensation
ulting a showing thac death atose out of employment, finds legislative
1 the lattex class of enactments, ) . '
sction 12919 s found in the Education Code rather than In wotkmen's
m portlons of the Labor Code, section 3201 e seq., does not militate
elng a workmen's compensation measure, A statute otherwise valid
becauge it is found in any particular code; codification Is for the con-
the people and no one of the codes Is limited to a pacticular subject. In
4,28 Cal, 2d 91 (1946); Proctorv. Justice’s Canrs, 209 Cal, 39 (1930);
3utte v, Merrill, 141 Cal. 396 (1903); People v. Darby, 114 Cal, App.
52). Aswas said in People v, Darby, supra, at 424, “What the Legisla-
the law, wheresoever it be found." .

¢ of the foregolng, It is concluded that Bducatlon Code sectlon 12919 is
wnder Article XX, section 21, and is not jn conflict with other constitu-
siotis above cited, ‘ '

et A—— e
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Opinion No. CV 74-305—May 20, 1075

SUBJECT: CLINICS-—PHYSICIANS—Physiclan and surgeon moy he employed
by duly licensed clinic which operates 1s nonprofit corporation, limits its services
to membexs of specific group, and bases charges on patient's ability to pay,

Requested hy-: BXECUTIVE SECRETARY, STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL
BXAMINERS

Opinion by: EVELLE J. YOUNGER, Attorney General

Muya 8. Vasquez, Deputy

Honotable Raymond Reid, Executive Secretary of the Stﬁte Board of Medical
Examiners, has requested the opinion of this office on the following question:

May & commualty clinic lawfully employ a licensed physician and surgeon,
and if so, under what circumstances?

The conclusion js:

A community clinic may luwfully employ a licensed physician and surgeon,
provided that the clinic Is duly Jlcensed, that charges, if any, ate based on the
patient’s ability to pay, and that the medical services ate avatlable to 4 specific group
bue not te the general public, . :

ANALYSIS
Although this question is not presented with reference to a specific community
clinlc, the issue originally arose in connectlon with two particulss nonprofit clinics,
created for the medical care of migrant farmworkers, and funded In part by federal
grants, Sinde there ire now sevetal such clinles within this State, the question has
been presented, and is treated, generally, '

Analysis of ¢hls dssue involves the Jongstanding prohibition of the Ppractice of
medicine by avtlficial logal entitles. Pactfic Employers Ins. Co. v, Garpenier, 10 Cal,
App. 2d 592 (1935). In People v, Pasifi Health Corp., 12 Cal, 2d 156, 160 (1938),
the court drew a distinction: between a “private profie corporation” and a "philan-
thropic association” In consideting what consticutes the cozporate ptactice of med)-
cine. “Philanthrople associations” were defined as “fraternal, religlous, hospital,
labor and similar benevolent orgnuizations furnishing medical services to members.”
The coutt stated at page 160: :

"The principal evils attendant upon coporate practice of mediclne
sprang from the conflict between the professional standards and obligations
of the doctors and the profit motlve of the corporate emplayer.”

Since this conflict does not atise with s nonprofit corpotation, the court concluded
that policy objections to the corpormte practice of medicine should not apply to
nonprofit Institutions,

A 1951 amendment to Business and Professions Code section 2008 provided
a further exception as follows:




“Corporations and other astificinl legnl entlties have o professional
tights, privileges or powers; provided, however, that the board may in
its sole discretion, after such examination, invéstigation and documentary
evldence ns It may require, and under rules and regulations adopted by it,
geant approval of the employment of physicians and surgeons on o sabary
basis by licensed chatitable and eleemosynary institutions, foundations or
clinics ot by approved medical schools operating clinics thetewith, if no
chatge for professionnl services rendered patients Is made by sy such
institutlon, foundation, clinle or school.” .

1t has been previously staced by this office that, pugsunat to the express pro-
vision of secéion 2008 of the Business and Professions Code, o nonprofic philan-
throple assoclacion may employ-on « salary basis a lcensed physician and susgeon to
render medical services to its members, 54 Ops. Cal. Awy. Gen. 126, 127 (1971);
55 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 324,327 (1972); 55 Ops. Cal. Atey, Gen, 39,40 (1972).

Priot to 1971, the concept of a community clinie, funded by both grants of
public funds and chatitablg contributions, and Intended to serve & particular group
defined by its sociul and economic churacteristics, was not widely known. Prlvate
pay clinics, peemiteed to operate unedl 1953, were effectively abolished in that year
by excluding them from the classes of clinlcs enumerated in Health and Safety Code
section 1203, The only clinles eligible for licensure under the provisions of the

. Health and Safety Code were those classed as charitable, teaching and. research,

emplayer's and employees’ clinics, However, by 1971, the Legislature saw a need to
clarlfy the status of existing community clinics by umending Health and Safety Code
sectlon 1203 (a) to xead as follows: '
“{a) A community clinic is a clinic operated by o nonprofit corpora-
tion, supported and maintained in whole or in past by dunations, bequests,
gifs, grants, fees, or contributions, In a contmunliy clinic any charges for
. advice, dlagnosis, treatment, medicines, drugs, appliances or apparatus con-
cerning hodily and menal disease and injurles are based on sbility of
the patient to pay or such services ace given without charge: No corpora-
tion, other than a nenprofit corporation, no part of the net carnlngs of
which inure, or may lawfully inure, to the benefic of any private share-
holder or individutd, shall opesate a community clinic. No natural person -
ot persons shall operate 2 community clinic.”

In 25 Ops. Cal, Atty. Gen, 198 (1955 ), this office determined that a physician
may he.employed on a salacy basls by an einployer's or eroployees’ clinic, a sirwation
analogous to that presented here. Although published before the 1971 amendment
of Health and Safety Code section 1203 (a), tha opinion Is significant here because
of its relinnce upon the distinction berween private profic carporacions and aonprofic
corporgtions,

In addition, that opinion defined the relationship between Health and Safery
Code sectlon 1203 and Business and Professlons Code sectlon 2393, Tt was de-
termined, 10 25 Ops, Cul. Atey, Gen, nt page 204, tha section 2393 js violaced only

»

when @ fictltlous name Is used to identify the person of a practicioner
automatically violated by designation of the faciliey In which he pra
fictitious title. Where a designation refers to the establishment or facil
no violation of the group practice provisions of sectlon 2393,

A legistative enactment supporeed ¢his conclusion by speciﬁ'cally
those physicians employed by & commuaity clinlc from the provisions
2393, Amended by urgency legislation effective March 12, 1974 (Stat
62), section 2393 now states the requirements for 2 permit to vse  hice
as follows in relevant part:

“(b) ‘The place or establishment, or the postion thereof, in “’}"
applicant or applicans practice, is owned or leased by the appll(
applicants, and the practice conducted st such place or establishm
portion thereof, is wholly awned and entirely controlled by the ap,
or applicants provided, however, that where the applicnnt ’is workin
community clinle, as defined in subdivision (a) of Section 1203
Health and Sefety Code, which contracts with-or employs ind
licensed physicians and surgeons to rendes medical care; this subd
shall not apply. '

“(¢) ‘The name onder which che applicant or epplicants prog
operate conteins at least one of the following designations: ‘n
group,’ ‘medical clinle,’ podintrists’ group, ‘podiatry group, ‘podi
clinic, o¢ ‘podiacry clinic’; provided, however, that where the ap,
is wocking for a community clinic, as defined in subdivision (
Sectlon 1203 -of the Health and Safety Code, and Is subject to the
limitations of Title 17, Califotnia Administrative Code, Section 1€
subdivision shall not apply. In no case shall the name under whi
applicant or applicants propose to opetate contaln the name or na.
any of the physicinns working for or employed by the community 1

The intent of .the Legislature appears to be stated in the reck
constituting the necessity of designating the section 2393 amendment as
statate, Section 2 of Stats, 1974, ch. 62, states as follows:

- % *

“There ate several medicl-free clinlcs which nre being chal
on their use of the designation ‘clinic’ and without. such use th
uaable to effectively inform those citizens who are in need o
setvices about the availability of tha services which they offer. It
that these medical-free clinics may achieve their goals it is necessa
this act go into immediate effect”

The foregoing discussion of the statutory and judlcial authoxicies
feads us to conclude that a communlty clinic may employ a licensed pt
sutgeon,

We are also asked under what circumstances 4 community clinic
employ o licensed physician and swrgeon. Accordingly, we refer ag
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otporations and uthes atclficial legal entitles bave no profesajonal
privileges or powers: provided, however, that the board mey in
disctetion, after such examination, lnvestigatlon and documentasy
¢ ns it may require, and under tules and regulations adopted by lt,
pproval of the employment of physlcians and surgeons on a salaty
2 licensed charitable and eleemosynary insticutions, foundations or
or by approved medical schools operating clinies therewith, If no
for professlonal services rendered patients is made by any such
ion, foundatlon, clinic or school.”

" aeen previously stated by this office that, puisuant to. the express pro-
ction 2008 of the Business and Professlons Code, & ponprofit philan-
Jation mry employ-on 1 salary basis a licensed physiclan and surgeon w0
cal setvices to its members, 54 Ops. Cal. Atty, Gen, 126, 127 (1971);
Atty, Gen, 324, 327 (1972); 55 Ops. Cal. Atty, Gen. 39, 40 (1972).
3 1971, the concept of a community clinlc, funded by both grants of
,and charitable conttlbutions, and intended to sexrve a particular growpp
ts soclal and ecoriomle chatactetistics, was not widely known. Private
petmitted to operate until 1953, were effectively abolished in that year
: them from the classes of clincs enumerated in Health and Safety Code
). The only clinics eligible for Ucensure under the provisions of the
Safety Code were those classed as chavitable, teaching and researcly,
nd employees’ clinics, However, by 1971, the Legislature saw a need to
atus of existing community clinics by amending Health and Safery Code
(2) to read as follows:
a) A communlty clinic is « clinic operated by » nonprofit corpora-
ppoxted and maintained In whole or in part by donatlons, bequests,
ants, fees, or contributions, In a community clinic any charges for
dlagnosis, treatment, medicines, drugs, applinnces or apparatus con-
bodily and mentnl disense nod Injurles are based on ability of
fent to pay or such services are given without charge. No corpors-
her than a nonprofit corporation, no patt of the net earnings of
squte, or may Jawfully lnute, to the benefit of any private share-
y individual, shall operate a-community cliaic. No natutal person
ons shall operate & community clinie™ .

Ipsi Cal, Atty, Gen, 198 ( 1‘955), this office determined that a physician’

loyed on a salary basls by an employer's or employees’ clinic, a situation

that presented here. Although published before the 1971 amendment
« Safety Code section 1203 (a), that opinion s significant bere because
¢ upon the disttnction between privare profit corporations and nonprofic

tlon, that aplaion defined the relationship between Health snd Safety
1 1203 and Business and Professions Code sectlon 2393, It was de-
25 Ops. Cal. Atty, Gen, at page 204, that section 2393 is violated only
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when a fictltous same js vsed to Idencify the person of & practitivner and Is not
automatically violated by designation of the facility In which'he practices by a
fictitious title, Where o designation tefers to the establishment or facility, there is
no violation of the group practice provisions of section 2393,

A legisiative enactment suppotted this conclusion by specifically exempting
those physicians employed by & community clinic from the provisions of section
2393, Amended by urgency legislation effective March 12, 1974 (Stats, 1974, ch,
62), sectlon 2393 now states the requirements for a permit to use a fictitlovs name
as follows In relevant pace: .

"{b) The place or establishment, or the portioh thereof, in which the
applicant or applicants practice, is owned or leased by the applicant or
applicants, and the practice conducted at such place of establishment, or
portion therenf, is wholly owned and entirely controlled by the applicant
or applicants provided, however, that whexe the applicant ls~worklag for a
community clinic, as defibed in subdivision (a) of Section 1203 of the
Heslth and Snfety Code, which contracts with or employs individual
licensed physicians and surgeons to sender medical care, this subdivision
shall not apply.

“(c) The name under which the applicant or applicants propose '
operate contins ar least one of che following - designations: ‘medical
group, ‘medical clinke, ‘podincrists’ group,’ ‘podiatey group,’ ‘pudiatrists’
clinic,' or ‘pudiatry clinic’; provided, howevet, that where the applicant
is working for a community clinic, as defined in subdivislon (a) of
Section 1203 of the Health and Safety Code; and is subject to the sune
litnitations of 'Title 17, California Adminlstrative Code, Section 161, this
subdlvision shall not apply. In no cese shall the name under; which the
applicant or applicants propose to operate contain the name ol names of
any of the physiciuns wotking for or employed by the commuanlty clinle”

The intent of the Legislature appears to be stated in the recital of facts
constituting the necessity of desighatlng the section 2393 amendment as an urgency
statute, Section 2 of Stats, 1974, ch, 62, states as follows:

“eow ow ) .

“There are several medical-free clinlcs which are being challenged
on theit use of the designation ‘clinlc’ and without such use they are
unable to effectively inform those cltizens who are in need of thelr
services about the availability of the setvices which they offer. In order
that these medical-free clinics may achieve their goals it is necessary that
this act go Into immediate effect.”

‘The foregoing discussion of the statutory and judicial authorities in this aren
leads us to conclude that a community clinic may employ a licensed physicisn and
surgeon. )

We are also asked under what circumstances 4 community clinic may lawfully
emplov o licensed nhesicion and sureenn  Accordinelv, we refer apsiti ta the




statement quoted above, designating the section 2393 amendment as urgency
legislation, Xt appeats the Legislature intended thar these clinics should serve u
specific group, thae is, “those citizens who ate in need of thelr services.” That
these clinics should linic thelr services to u particulsr group ulso uppears o be
necessary by the discinction drawn in People v. Pucific Health Corp., supra, between
a profic corporation and a philanthropic associacion, the latter described as follows
at page 160: ", . . medical service is rendered to a limlted and particular group
a8 a result of cooperarlve associntion through membership in the fraternal or
other associncion, or a5 # result of employment by some corporation which has
an interest in.the health of its employees.” See also, 25 Ops. Cal, Atty, Gen. 198,
205-206 (1955); 54 Ops. Cal, Auy. Gen, 126, 127 (1971); 55 Ops. Cal. Acty.
Gen, 324, 327 (1972); 55 Ops. Cal, Auty. Gen, 39, 40 (1972). Genemlly, this
requitement Is easily met as most commualty clinics are intended to provide
health care to persons of a particular income level, occupational group, or geo-
graphic ntea.

Thete remalng some doubt whether a community clinic may requite charges
or fees. Business and Professions Code section 2008, quoted above, provides
that nio charges shall be made by charitable clinics for professional services. Henlth
wnd Safety Code sectlon 1203 (a), above, provides:

“, . . any charges for advice, diagnosis, treatment, medicines, drugs,
appliances, or apparatus-concerning bodily and mental disease and injuries

are based on ability of the patient to pay ot such services are given withont

chazge.”

The former section is prohibitlve, while the latter is permissive.

Althougl 17 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen, 211 (1951) was published before the
amendment of Health and Safety Code sectlon 1203(a), ic does offer some
guidance. That opinlon stated thar & charge of an adminjstiative fee did not
prevent classification of a clinic as charitable if the charge bore a proper relation-
ship to actual administrative costs.

Until legislatlve enactments bring Business and Professions Code section
2393 and Flealth and Safety Code section 1203(a) into hatmony, we can tesolve
this doubt by stating that a community clinic should chatge only those fees based
on the patlent's ability to pay or the sexvices should be yendered withour charge,

Notwithstandlng the Issue of fees, we can set our the following circumstances
under which a community clinic may eraploy a physician and surgeon:

1. The clinic must be licensed pursuant to section 1203(s) and operated as
2 nonprofit corporation.

2, The clinic should limit its services o members of a specific group, defined
by such characteristics s facome, occupational stacus, or voluncary association,

3. Churges, if any, should he based on the ablility of the patient to pay.

—————

Opinion No. CY 74-289—Mny 8, 1975

SUBJECT: FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE—Government Code section !
ot sequire usslstant county wminisuative officer to file finuncial
statement,

" Requested by: COUNTY COUNSBL, YOLO COUNTY

Opinion by: BVBLLE '], YOUNGER, Attotney General
Richard C. Creeggan, Deputy .

“The Honorable Chrtles R. Mack, County Counsel of Yolo Ce
requested an opinlon on the following question:

Is an asslstant county administiative officer required by Governm.
section 3700 (Moscone Governmental Conflict of Interests and Disclosur
fle a Anancial disclosute statement?

Out conclusion is:

An assistant county administeative officer is not required by Governxy
section 3700 to file a Anancial disclosure statement,

ANALYSIS
Your request states that Yolo County has by ordinance estubli
office of County Executlve under Governtent Code sectlon 24000, subdivi¢
designating an administrative officer as a conaty officer. The pzoblem
concecns the applicabillty of section 3700, a part of the Moscone Gove

. Conflict of Ynterests snd Disclosure Act, to a deputy or assistant of suc

Section’ 3700 requites those persons enumerated in subdivision (a;
to file in Aptil: of each year a financinl disclosure statement, This suk

. which specifically includes county chief administeative officers, reads as

“Chis sectlon is applicable to constitutional officers, county su
visots and chief administrative officers, mayors, city council memk
members of planning commissions and planning oflicers of counties
citles, and managets and chief administeative officers of general law
charter cities,” (Emphasis added.)

While the provisions of the Moscone Governmental Conflict of
and Disclosute Act are to be lberally construed to fully protect th
interest (§ 3602), section 3700, subdivision (1), does not mencion o d
assistant county administrative officer, It therefore appenrs that such posith
not intended ta be covered by that section, npplylng the familiar rule of con
thit where a statute enumerates those things upon which it is to apen
to be consttued as excluding from lts effect all those not especially me

1 All sectlon references ate to the Government Cods unless otherwise Indicates




Plamsned Parenthoon Aiffiates of Saflfomia

From: ‘ Kneer, Kathy <kathy.kneer@PPACCA.ORG>

Sent: Friday, July 17, 2015 3:27 PM

To: .Robert Sumner

Subject: Update from Planned Parenthood re: video attack

Planned
Parenthood’

Ak No msther whed,

Dear Robert,

By now you may have heard about or have seen a heavily edited video of Dr. DeborahNucatola, senior director of
medical services for Planned Parenthood Federation of America, which was released this week by an organization calling
itself the Center for Medical Prograss. We'wanted you to hear directly from us that the claims bemg made are clearly
outrageous and untrue,

As you know, Planned Parenthood’s top priority is the'compasslonate care that we provide to close to 1 million
Californians every year. In the video, the staffer speaks In a way that does not reflect the compassion or care that we_
know you expect. This Is unacceptable to us and we apologize for her tone and her statements,

In health care, It's common practice for patients to have the option to donate tissue to scientific résearch that can help
lead to medical breakthroughs, su_ch as treatments and cures for serious diseases, Four of seven California Planned
Parenthood affiliates have relationships with bona fide research centers that conduct lifesaving, cutting edge stem cell -

- and other research that is aimed at curing heart disease, some cancers, Alzheimer’s and other genetic diseases. Neither

Planned Parenthood nor our patients financially benefit from these donations.

Planned Parenthood affiliates which participate in the programs rigorously follow all state and federal laws. We obtain
consent from patlents using the highest ethical and legal standards, Some affillates which participate in donation
programs do receive a modest fee, but that is for administrative and transportatioh costs. The allegation that Planned
Parenthood in any way profits from these donations Is absolutely untrue.

This heavily edited video was created and promoted by a well-funded group whose sole purpose is to damage Planned
Parenthood’s reputation and to prevent us from providing preventive and reproductive health services that women
need and deserve - health services such as breast and cervical cancer screenings, STD testing and treatment, birth
control and sexual health education, We know their real agenda, and they have never been concerned with protecting
the health and-safety of women, Thelr misston is to ban abortion completely and cut women off from care at Planned
Parenthood and other health centers,

Sadly we do not beheve this is the end to their charges against Planned Parenthood ffyou have any questions or seek
additional information, please do not hesitate to call us

Sincerely,

Kathy Kneer




President and CEQ
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of CA




From: ' Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA ORG>

Sent: - " Tuesday, July 21, 2015 9:42 AM
To: Jill Hablg; Robert Sumner
Subject: Planned Parenthood: videos
JIl and Robby

A second video was released today, We believe we are fully compliant with all federal and state laws and are
investigating the situation, Please feel free to reach out to me if you have any questions or concetns.

Beth

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of Californla | 555 Capltol Mall, Suite 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814
" 916.446.5247 ext. 102 office | 926.441.0632 fax | || NS co'
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The contents of this e-mail imessage, Including any attachments, are lntended solely for the use of the person or ant:ty to whom the -
mall was addressad, 1t contains information that may be protected by the attornay-cliant privilegs, work—product doctring, or other
privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and faderal law. If you are not the intended reciplent of this
message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message ls strictly prohibited. If yol have
received this message in error, or gre not the named recipient(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply emmall or by phone at
{918) 446-5247 ext, 108 and delete this message from your comptiter. Thank you.
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‘From: . o : RObert Sumner . ’ ’ fe, . o , ) LI :
. Sent:- , . '+ Tuesday, March 29, 2016 429 PM. P AR %

- To:. : ' - Remero, Ghristina E ; AR
Subject:' ' + REL c§r[ with Robert Sumner(AGs Offb:e) RE AB 1671 (Illegal Video Tapmg) e e
JiLHablg@do [gg,gg x . L e
From: Romero, Chrlstlna [mgilto‘gh:istmg,Romg g@EEAgCA,oa ]

Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:28 PM
To: Robert Sumner !
Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Tapmg)

Absolitely] If you send me her email | canadd her to the'invite @

* Christina Romero, Legislative Director

. Subject: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's-Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Tapmg)

. Where: In person: 555 Capitol Mall Over the phone.

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of Callfornia | 555 Capitol Mall, Sulte 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814
916-446-5247 _[ 916-441-0632 fax_ . B

Planned

Fﬁaramthmmd‘“
T A, M matlarwivg,

Ppoed Paeenthomd Atilistes of Culliomis

From: Robert Sumner [mallto:Robert. Sumner@do[ ca.gov] .

Sent! Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:27 PM
To: Romero, Christina. - . ' .
Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG s Off:ce) RE AB 1671 (Illegal VldEO Tapmg)

Cool if I Invite Jill Hablg in case she can jo_in?

----- Qriginal Appolntment-----

From: Romero, Christina . cC O G
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4.26 PM .
To: Romero, Christina; Robert Sumnet! Parker, Beth; PPAC Line

When: Friday, April 08, 2016 3:30 PM-4:00 PM (UTC-

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This comraunication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally
privileged information. It is solely for the use of the infended recip1ent(s) Unauthorized interception, review,

" use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate apphcable laws including the Electronic Communications

Privacy Act. If you are not the 1ntended recipient, please oontact the sender and destroy aII copies of the

. cofnmumcahon
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XAVIER BECERRA,
Attorney General of California
ROBERT MORGESTER
Senior Assistant Attorney General
JOHNETTE V. JAURON
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 183714
455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000
San Francisco, CA 94102
Telephone: (415) 703-1662
Fax; (415) 703-1234
E-mail: Johnette.Jauron@doj.ca.gov
Attorneys for the State of Calzfomia

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
SAN FRANCISCO SUPERIOR COURT

1 THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF Case No.
'CALIFORNIA,
CRIMINAL COMPLAINT
Plaintiff,
_ Date:
\£ : ‘ Time:
Dept:
‘ Judge:
DAYVID ROBERT DALEIDEN and ‘
SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT,
Defendants.

: XAVIER BECERRA, ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, upon
oath of the undefsigned, information and belief complain against the Defendants, DAVID
ROBERT DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, for the crimes as follows:

COUNT1

..On April 6; 2014, in the County of San Francisco, in the State of California, defendants
DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT did commit a felony in violation of
Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a
confidential communication, by ;néans ofan eIectronfc amplifying and recording device,

eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 1.

1

Daleiden Complaint SF2016300608




W o I N WL MW =

] NN NN N N R el b jer b el Xl R
mgmmﬁuwﬁomm.\xmm.&mmx—xo

COUNT2 |

On April 6, 2014, in the County of San Frﬁnciso_o, in the State of Californié, defendants
DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did commit a felony in violation of
Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a
confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device,
eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and bOE 2. .

- COUNT 3

Oﬁ. April 7, 2014, in the County of San Fra}ncisco, in the State of éaﬁfornia, defendants

DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did commit a felony in violation of

Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all partiestoa |-

confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device,

eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 3.
| COUNT 4 :

On April 7, 2014, in the County of San Francisco, in the State of California, defendants
DAVID DALEIDEN, and SANDRA. SUSAN MERRITT, did commit a felony in violation of
Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a
confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device,
eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between théniselves and DOE 4,

COUNT'5

On April 8, 2014, in the County of San Francisco, in the State of California, defendants

DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA. SUSAN MERRITT, did commit a félony in violation of

Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to
confidential commumcatxon, by means of an electronic amphfymg and recording dev1ce
eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 5.
) COUNT 6
On April 8, 2014, in the County of San Francisco, in the State of California, defendants
DAVID DALEIDEN a;ld SANDRA, SUSAN MERRITT, did comumit a felony' in violation of

Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intent%onally and without the consent of all parties. toa

Daleiden Complaint SF2016300608
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confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recordiﬁg device,
eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 6.
| | COUNT7 |

On April 8, 2014, in the County of San Francisco, in the State of California, defendants
DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did cc‘)mmit a felony in violation of
Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a
confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, '
eavesdrop and record the c0n£idential communication between themselves and DOE 7

COUNT 8

On April 8, 2014, in the County of San Francisco, in the State of Californis, defendants
DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did commit.a feloﬁy in violation of
Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a
confidential communiéation, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device,
eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 8.

COUNT9 |

On July 25, 2014, in the County of Los Angeles, in the S't'ate of California, deféndants
DAVID DALEIDEN ar;d SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did commit a felony in violation of
Penal Code section 632(a) in thaé each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a
confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device,
eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE9.

| COUNT 10

On February 6, 2015, in the County of Los Angeles, in the State of C:{lifornia, defendants
DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did corﬁmit a felox;y in violation of
Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and withbut' the consent of all parties to a
confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recoi‘ding device,
eavesdrop and record the confidential communication betwe‘en.themselves and DOE10.

I
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- COUNT 11. _

On February 6, 2015, in the County of Los Angeles, in the State of Californis, defendants '
DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did commit a felony in viclation of
Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a
confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying'and recording device, |
eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 11.

COUNT 12 .

. On May 22, 2015, in'the Co‘untg./ of El Dorado, in the State of California, defendants
DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did commit a felony in violation of
Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally aﬁd without the consent of all parties to a
confidential co‘mmdnication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device,
eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 12. .

‘ COUNT 13

On May 22, 2015; in the County of El Dorado, in the State of California, defendants
DAVID DALEIDEN and'SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did commit a felony in violation of
Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally dnd withoutlthe consent of all partiestoa
confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device,
eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 13,

COUNT 14

On May 22, 2015, in the County of El Dorado, in the State of California, defendants
DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did commit a felony in violation of
Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a
confidential communication, by means of an electrpnic amplifying and recording device, |
éavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 14.
| COUNT 15 | |

| On and between Octobef' 9, 2013 and July 22, 2015, in the Counties of San Francisco, El
Dorado, and Los Angeles in the State of California, the.crime of CONSPIRACY, in violation of
Penal Code section 182(a)(1) a felony, was comTitted by DAVID ROBERT DALEIDEN AND

Daleiden Complaint SF2016300608
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SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, who did willfully and unlawfully conspire' together to commit the
crime of Recording a Confidential Communications, 632(5) of tﬁe California Penal Code, a
feloﬁy, pursuant to énd fdf the purpose of carrying out the objects and purposes of the aforesaid
conspiracy, defenda{nté committed the following overt act(s): . |

1. On orabout October 1, 2013, DAVID DALEIDEN accessed and took documents
from Stem Express email system using a pgssword from a terminated Stem Express employee;

2.  OnQctober 11, 2013, DAVID DALEIDEN filed Biomax Procurement Services,.
LLC, as a Business Entity in the State of California, with the Agent of process as Philip Cronin
and CEO as Sﬁsan Tennenbaum,; -

3.  Onand between Noverﬁber 27, 2013 and Marcﬁ 27, 2014, individuals who
rep_resented themselves as Biomax employees corresponded with employ;ees of the National

Abortion Federation (NAF) using the emajl address of bigmaxprocurementservices@gmail.com
aﬁd susan@biomax.com, to apply for exhibit space at the San Francisco NAF conference as
Brianna Allen and Susan Tennenbaum; ' , a !

4.  On February 5, 2014, DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT signed
an Exhibitor Agreement listing Susan Tennenbaum as CEO of BioMax, Robert Sarkis as Vice
President, and a $3235 registration fee paid using Philip Croniﬁ’s VISA card; _

5. Omnand betwéen April 5, 2014 and April 8, 2014, defendants DAVID DALEIDEN
and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT posed as BioMax employees to gain access to the NAF
confer\ence' in San Francisco, where they secretly video recorded conference speakers, vendors
and attendees; |

)
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6. Onand between July 25, 2014 and October 3, 2915, defendants DAVID DALEIDEN
and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, posing as BioMax employees, set up and sectetly video
recorded private meetings with health care professionals in Century Citﬁ (Los Angeles), Pasadena

(Los Angeles), El Dorado (El Dorado), and San Francisco.

' A . Respectfully Submitted,
Dated: March 28,2017

XAVER BECERRA
Attorney General of California

/”7 7 —
uRon

JOANETTE V. JAURON
Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Plaintiff

Daleiden Complaint SF2016300608




Affidavit in Support of Arrest Warrant
City and County of San Francisco

. I, BRIAN CARDWELL, declare:

' That I am a California Peace Officer per California Penal Code section.830.1, employed
as a Special Agent by the California Department of Justice (DOJ), Bureau of Investigation (BI),

“eCtime Unit (eCU), and I allege and state the following:

1. Summary of Probable Cause -

On December 2, 2015, the CA DOT received a request to investigate whether David
DALEIDEN, his organization, the Center for Medical Progress (CMP), and any co-conspirators,
broke California laws regarding the surreptitious audio/video recordings of healthcare and
biomedical services employees in California. DALEIDEN alleged publicly and to law
enforcement that the employees were transferring aborted fetal tissue for profit in violation of
California law. Special Agents from B initiated an investigation into DALEIDEN and his co-
conspirators, o :

During the course of this investigation, agents from BI learned that DALEIDEN created a
phony fetal tissue procurement company, BioMax Procurement Services (BioMax), for the sole
purpose of gaining access to various conferences hosted by Planned Parenthood, the National
Abortion Federation (NAF) and others affiliated with women’s healthcare services. DALEIDEN
created a website, www.bjomaxps.com, misrepresenting the company as a legitimate biomedical
research service. He, and at least two others, used fraudulently created California driver’s -
licenses (CDLs) in the name of Robert Sarkis (DALEIDEN), Susan Tennenbaum (Sandra
MERRITT) and Briana Allen (Briana BAXTER) to obtain a BioMax vendor booth at the NAF
conference in San Francisco, California, April 5 through April 8, 2014, While at the San
Francisco conference, DALEIDEN, posing as Robert Sarkis, and MERRITT, posing as Susan
Tennenbaum, used covert video/audio equipment to secretly record conversations they initiated
with eight conference attendees. ‘ '

From July 2014, through September 2015, DALEIDEN and MERRITT exploited the
vetting procedures and connections they made as BioMax representatives to induce meetings
with six individual hea]theare and biomedical research providers in Los Angeles, California, and
El Dorado, California. DALEIDEN and MERRITT, while wearing concealed audio/video digital
recording devices, secretly recorded the meetings they initiated under false pretenses. Several of
the secretly filmed video segments were edited and subsequently released for public viewing via
CMP’s website in July of 2015, Immediately afterward, several of the healthcare providers who

had been named and identified in the edited videos, began receiving personal death threats,
' 1




The relevant ideniifying information for the 14 victims is contained in the "Confidential
Attachment" incorporated herein. Declarant requests that the "Confidential Attachment" be
ordered sealed pursuant to California Rule of Court 243.1(d) in order to protect the confidential
personal information of the individuals, (See generally Pen. Code, §§ 293.5 and 964)

II. DOJ Invest_gatlon
A. The Sham Corporation: BioMax Procurement Servxces

DALEIDEN has admitted that in October of 2013, he communicated via FaceBook with
Holly O’DONNELL, a recently terminated employee of Placerville biotech: firm StemExpress. !
O’DONNELL gave DALEIDEN the password to her former employer’s email account,
DALEIDEN admitted using the password to access the StemExpress internal systemm and take -
documents, read emails and download attachments containing confidential data, That stolen
confidential data was subsequently published online and appears to be the source for
manufactured promotional matetials proferred by DALEIDEN in the name of BioMax

. Procurement Services,

Through their attorney, NAF provided DOJ emails regarding the registration BioMax
Procurement Services submitted for the 2014 NAF Conference in San Francisco. In those emails,

representatives using the emails biomaxprocurementservices@gmail.com and

susan@biomaxps.com communicated the request to exhibit at the conference as a vendor. A

February 7, 2014 email introduces Robert Sarkis as the new BioMax VP of Operations, with an
associated email of bob@biomaxps.com.

NAF also provided DOJ additional conference materials submitted by BioMax
Procurement Services as part of the registration process for the NAF conference. An Exhibitor
Agreement signed on February 5, 2014, with the name Susan Tennenbaum, CEO of BioMax
Procurement Services, was supported by two photocopied California Driver’s Licenses in the
names of Susan Tennenbaum and Robert Daoud Sarkis. The con.fe1ence registration, purchased
as a commercial firm with an exhibit booth and attendance at extra educational events,
documents payment of $3235 from the Visa card of Phillip Cronin.

Article of Incorporation for BioMax, L.L.C., were filed in California on October 11,
2013, with a registered Agent of Process as Philip Cronin. Phillip Cronin provided DOJ emails
1ega1d1ng the early development of the BioMax idea from DALEIDEN. In those emails, Cronin
agleed to act as Agent of Process for BioMax until Daleiden told him he could resign in

! paleiden Dep, 286:8-288:12, Dec, 30, 2015, stemExpress LLC, et al. v. Dalefden, et al., Case No.BC589145 (Ca.

Sup. Ct.)




anticipation of the next phase ofhis project. The first such email on August 26,2013, came from
david.daleiden@gmail.com. In that email, DALEIDEN introduced hirself and asked Cronin to
participate ag Agent of Process in his new corporation. After several additional emails and
meetings, Cronin agreed to serve as agent after receiving the representation from an individual
named Katie Short that “David & Co. don't expect there to be anything served, because their
corporation is not actually going to be conducting any business. They are going to toy with
conducting business, but stop well shot of signing any contracts or the like.” Cronin filed a
resignation as Agent of Process on Tuly 7, 2015 at the instigation of DALEIDEN, who sent an
email on July 3, 2015, telling Cronin that he “may wish to resign now because the project was
drawing to a close.”

According to the internet domain history of the website Biomaxps.com, it was created
from the same IP address as the CMP website through registrar BlueHost on September 2,2013.
The website registrant setting, & Domain Privacy Service, was changed to David Daleiden on
Elkhom Blvd in Sacramento on October 5, 2015. The pnvacy setting was replaced on October
24, 2015.

During the investigation, DOJ BI agents served a search warrant at DALEIDEN’s
residence at 8400 Edinger P107, Huatington Beach, California, and discovered printed paper
copies of the same fake CDL’s that were presented by BioMax to NAF for the 2014 conference.
" Also in the residence was promotional documentation for BioMax, BioMax Procurement

Services business cards in the name of Robert Sarkis and Susan Tennenbaum, sophlsucated
recording equipment, and several thousand gigabytes of digital evidence.

Because DALEIDEN’s attorney has claimed that material subject to attorney client
privilege would be intermingled within all but the video recordings, all evidence seized by search
warrant on April 5, 2016 was forensically acquired and imaged, but not searclied. I have
reviewed only those video files acquired from the digital evidence seized from DALEIDEN’s
residence, just over 2,300 video files, and I have determined that there are fourteen (14) victims
of DALEIDEN’s and MERRITT’s conduct within California: recording a confidential
conversation without knowledge or consent, a felony, in violation of Penal Code section 632,

B. Eig'ht San Francisco Victims

On August 29, 2016, | extracted just over 2,300 video files from the digital evidence )
seized from DALEIDEN’s residence, and started reviewing the videos in an attempt to identify
individuals who were swreptitiously recorded by DALEIDEN and MERRITT. On September




15,2016, I completed reviewing the videos and identified several victims who DALEIDEN and
or MERRITT secretly recorded. I personally viewed the video files I was authorized to access. 2

In reviewing the digital video evidence, I saw several individuals who appear to have
been recorded without their knowledge in the sequestered conference area at the April 2014 NAF
Conference in San Francisco at the Westin St. Francis hotel. Using the names the victims used to
introduce themselves in the recordings, and in reviewiné the file names themselves, I was able to
identify and locate eight individuals.

I reviewed a video ﬁle which appeared to have been taken of a conversation W1th DOE 1
at the NAF conference on Apnl 6,2014. On January 9, 2017, I talked with DOE 1 regarding the
April 2014 NAF Conference in San Francisco. She stated that she remembered talking with
Robert Sarkis at the BioMax booth in the vendor area of the conference. She said that she did
have an expectation of privacy in the conversation in that she would not have had it in public,
She did not know she was being recorded and did not consent to it.

I reviewed a video file which appeared to have been taken of a conversation with DOE2 -
at the NAF conference on April 6, 2014. On November 10, 2016, I contacted DOE 2 and
informed him that I believed he had been sizrrjcptiﬁously filmed at the April 2014 NAF
Conference in San Francisco. I asked DOE 2 if he recalled meeting DALEIDEN who
represented himself as Robert Sarkis, an employee of BioMax. DOE 2 said he did not remember
the conversation, but felt the conference was a private place where he could discuss matters in
private with other conference attendees. He had no knowledge of the recording and d1d not
- consent to it havmg been taken

I reviewed a video file which appeared to have been taken of a conversation with DOE 3
at the NAF conference on April 6,2014. OnNovember 10,2016, I contacted DOE 3 and
informed her about the investigation. Itold DOE 3 that I believed she was surreptitiously
recorded by DALEIDEN at the NAF conference hosted in San Francisco CA in April 2014, I

~asked DOE 3 if she recalled mesting DALEIDEN who represented himself as Robert Sarkis, an
employee of BioMax. DOE 3 stated a man approached her at the conference who told her he
worked for a fetal tissue procurement company, but she did not recall his name. DOE 3 said she
absolutely felt the conversation was confidential, and that is why confer ence attendees are vetted
before being allowed into a NAF confelence, so attendees do not have to worry about issues such
as being secretly recorded. DOE 3 stated she did not know shé was being recorded and believed
the conference was a private place where conference attendees could communicate privately,

) am aware of the provisions of Penal Code section 633.5 under which recording Is authorized under limited
circumstances, and | did not observe any of those enumerated circumstances to be present.

4




I reviewed a video file which appeared to have been taken of a conversation with DOE 4
at the NAF conference on April 6, 2014. On November 16, 2016, I talked with DOE 4, an
employee of a California medical clinic, regarding the investigation, I asked DOE 4 if she
recalled speaking with DALEIDEN, who posed as Robert Sarkis, an employee of BioMax. DOE-
4 stated she was at the NAF conference hosted in San Francisco, CA in April 2014, and recalled
talking to DALEIDEN. DOE 4 stated DALEIDEN approached her at previous conferences and
inquired about tissye procurement. DOE 4 stated she felt all the conversations she had with
DALEIDEN, including the one in San Francisco, were confidential, DOE 4 stated she did not
i know DALEIDEN was recording her and did not give him permission to do so.

1 reviewed a video file which appeared to have been taken of a conversation with DOE 5
at the NAF conference on April 6, 2014. On.November 17, 2016, I talked with DOE 5 and
informed her about the investigation. I asked DOE 5 if she recalled speaking with DALEIDEN,
who posed as Robert Sarkis, an employee of BioMax. DOE 5 stated she was at the NAF
conference in San Francisco in April 2014, and recalled talking with DALEIDEN and MERRITT
at the BioMax booth. DOE 5 said DALEIDEN was interested in fetal tissue procurement, and
she believed the conversation was private. DOE § said she did not give DALEIDEN permission
to record her and already knew about the recording because video of her had been released on
the internet. DOE 5 said after the video release, individuals protested at her facility, with her

*name written on signs. For her safety, DOE 5 had to hire secunty

- Y reviewed a video file which appeared to have been taken of a conversation with DOE .6
at the NAF conference on April 6,2014. On Novernber 16, 2016, I talked with DOE 6 regarding
the investigation. I asked DOE 6 if he recalled speaking with DALEIDEN, who posed as Robert
Sarkis, an employee of BioMax. DOE 6 stated he was at the NAF conference hosted in San

. Francisco, CA in April 2014, and recalled talking to DALEIDEN at the BioMax booth. DOE 6
stated DALEIDEN approached him at several conferences, and at times was assertive with his
questioning. DOE 6 stated he did not give DALEIDEN permission to record him and felt the -
conversation he had with DALEIDEN in San Francisco was confidential.

I reviewed a video file which appeared to have been taken of a conversation with DOE 7
at the NAF conference on April 6, 2014. On November 10, 2016, I contacted DOE 7, and
informed her that I believed she had been surreptitiously filmed at the April 2014 NAF
Conference in San Francisco. I asked DOE 7 if she recalled meeting DALEIDEN who
represented himself as Robert Sarkis, an employee of BioMax. DOE 7 said she did not
remember him, but that she felt the conference was a private place where she could discuss
matters in private with other conference attendees. She did not know the video had been taken
.and did not give her permission for the conversation to be recorded.




Ireviewed a video file which appeared to have been taken of a conversation with DOE 8

at the NAF conference on Aptil 6, 2014, On January 19, 2017, I talked with DOE 8 regarding the
* April 2014 NAF Conference in San Francisco. DOE 8 vaguely remembered having a
conversation with DATEIDEN at the BioMax booth, and stated it was a private conyersation
among her peers, and not a conversation she would have had in public, She did not know she was
being recorded and did not give anyone permission to record it.

C. Three Los Angeles Victims

I reviewed video obtained from the seized digital evidence in which DALEIDEN and
MERRITT can be seen utilizing undercover audio/video recording devices during a mesting with
DOE 9 at aestaurant on July 25, 2014, In the video, DALEIDEN and MERRITT posed as,
Satlkis and Tennenbaum, employees of BioMax, and met with physician DOE 9 at the K1aft
restaurant, 10100 Constellation Blvd., Century City, CA.

On September 2, 2015, DOE 9 reported to Los Angeles Police Department in Report

" Number 15-916205, that she realized the meeting had been recorded after she began receiving
numerous death threats via email. DOE 9 believed she received death threais because excerpts
of the video were released for public viewing on CMP’s website on July 14, 2015. On
December 18, 2015, agents from Bl interviewed DOE 9 who stated she believed the conversation
at the restaurant was confidential, and the video was taken without her knowledge or consent.

I reviewed video obtained from the seized digital evidence in which DALEIDEN and
MERRITT can be seen utilizing undercover audio/video recording devices during a meeting with
physician DOE 10 and clinician DOE 11 on February 6, 2015. In the V1deo, DALEIDEN and
MERRITT posed as Sarkis and Tennenbaum, met with DOE 10 and DOE 11 at the Bistro
restaurant, One Colorado, 41 Hugus Alley, Pasadena, CA.

On August 25, 2015, clinicians DOE 10 and DOE 11 reported to the Pasadena Police
Department in Report Number 15-011054, that they had been secretly recorded by DALEIDEN,
DOE 10 and DOE 11 did not learn the meeting was recorded wntil CMP released edited portions
of the video on their website in July of 2015. At the restaurant meeting initiated by Biomax,
DOE 10 and DOE 11 believed they were meeting Robert Sarkis, VP of BioMax, regarding
biomedica] tissue donations. Unbeknownst to DOE 10 and DOE 11, the meeting was secretly
recorded without their permission via audio and video, Pasadena Detective Edgar Sanchez
conducted follow-up into copies of two fake CDL’s presented to DOE 10 and DOE 11 inthe
name of Sarkis and Tennenbaum. Detectives independently showed DOE 10 and DOE 11 photo
lineups of DALEIDEN and MERRITT, who positively 1de11t1f1ed them as the two posing as
BioMax representatives Sarkis and Tennenbaum.




D. The El Dorado Conduct

On May 21, 2015, DALEIDEN reported to the El Dorado County Sheriff’s Department
(EDSO) that Placerville biotech company StemExpress was selling human fetal tissue for profit,
In Report EG 1506682, DALEIDEN admitted to secretly recording employees of Planned
Parenthood, and provided to EDSO a thumbdrive of documents stolen from StemExpress which
he claimed proved his allegation that StemExpress transferved fetal tissue for profit. During the

"meeting, Detective Prencipe specifically inquired about the consent of the employees he
recorded. DALEIDEN responded that his surreptitious recordings had occurred in “1 party
consent” states, and that he knew California was a 'two party consent state for recording. After an
investigation including at least four separate employee intexrviews, the El Dorado Sheriff’s
Department determined that there was no violation of California law by StemExpress.

I reviewed video obtained from the digital evidence seized from DALEIDEN in which
DALEIDEN and MERRITT can be seen utilizing undercover audio/video recording devices
during a meeting with three StemExpress employees on May 22, 2015, one day after
DALEIDEN reported the allegation about StemExpress to El Dorado. In the video, DALEIDEN
and MERRITT posed as Sarkis and Tennenbaum, and met with DOE 12, DOE 13 and DOE 14.
The meeting took place at Bistro 33, 4364 Town Center Boulevard, El Dorado Hills, CA.

On July 19, 2015, according to EDSO Report EG 1506163, DOE 12 reported receiving
multiple death threats over the course of the previous week. She told EDSO that StemFxpress is
a Placerville biotech company specializing in transferring biomedical research specimens.
Although StemExpress had no affiliation with Planned Parenthood, her business was named as
having conducted stem cell research in allegations released on the CMP website.

On May 24, 2016, I interviewed DOE 12 regarding her meeting with DALEIDEN and

" MERRITT on May 22, 2015. She confirmed that the andio/video recording of this meeting was

. done without her consent. She stated that she realized DALEIDEN had secretly recorded her

conversation at Bistro 33 when she recognized his voice in the edited videos released by CMP,

She stated that she recognized his face in an interview he gave on the Bill O’Reilly show, and
recognized many of the same questions he posed to the other secretly recorded victims.

On November 2, 2016, I contacted DOE 13 regarding the meeting she had with
DALEIDEN on May 22, 2015, which DALEIDEN secretly recorded. I informed DOE 13 that I
" reviewed a statement she had made and wanted to discuss the meeting she had with DALEIDEN
and MERRITT. DOE 13 stated she initially met DALEIDEN, posing as Robert Sarkis, and
MERRITT, posing as Susan Tenmenbaum, at an earlier women’s health conference in Baltimore,
Maryland. The two presented themselves as employees of BioMax Procurement Services, and
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expressed interest in collaborating with StemExpress. DOE 13 stated she told DOE 12 about the
possible collaboration and coordinated a meeting with DALEIDEN and MERRITT. '

DOE 13 statsd on May 22,2015, at around 4:30 PM, DOE 12, herself and DOE 13, met |

" who they believed to be Sarkis and Tennenbaum from BioMax, at Bistro 33, located at 4364

Town Center Boulevard, El Dorado Hills, California, DOE 13 stated the restaurant was not
crowded and they were seated in an area of the restaurant that contained no other customers.
DOE 13 told me she did not believe other customers could overhear or record their conversation,
and believed the conversation was confidential. DOE 13 said she did not give DALEIDEN or
MERRITT permission to record the1r meeting.

On November 7, 2016, I spoke with former StemExpress employee DOE 14, who said he .
and DOE 12 and DOE 13 believed they were mesting Robert Sarkis of BioMax to discuss the
possibility of BioMax working with StemExpress. The meeting occurred on May 22, 2015 at
around 4:30 PM, when DOE 12, DOE 13 and himself met the people he believed to be Robert
Sarkis (DALEIDEN) and Susan Tennenbaum (MERRITT) to discuss the possibility of BioMax
working with StemExpress with tissue procurements. The meeting was held at restaurant Bistro
33 in El Dorado Hills and, at the time, the restaurant was sparsely populated with customers.
DOE 14 said the booth they were seated in was away from other customesrs and he believed other
patrons could not overhear their conversation. DOE 14 said he believed the meeting was private
and that no one could have recorded their discussion. DOE 14 said he did not give DALEIDEN
or MERRITT permission to record their meeting. Itold DOE 14 that I watched an unedited

‘video of the meeting, which I located on DALEIDEN’s computer, and noted that when a

custorner was eventually seated in a booth next to their booth, DOE 14 mentioned to DOE 12
that someone was sitting behind her in an effort to keep the conversation private,

I, Conclusion

1 assert there is probable cause to believe that DALEIDEN and MERRITT entered into an
agreement to create a fictitious business for the sole purpose of gaining access to individuals
employed in the healthcare and biomedical research industry to surreptitiously record private
meetings in violation of Penal Code seciion 182/632, a felony. Additionally, I assert there is
probable cause to believe that DALEIDEN and MERRITT, on 14 separate occasions in the
counties of San Francisco, Los Angeles and El Dorado, did covertly record confidential
conversations with individuals who had an expectation of privacy in their conversation in
violation of California Penal Code section 632(a), a felony.

Therefore, I request that a warrant be issued ordering the arrest of David DALEIDEN and
Susan MERRITT for the attached alleged felony violations charged in the accompanymg Felony
Complamt
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Brian Cardwell
Special Agent

COURT ORDER

Based upon a review of the above declaration this Court finds that there exists an overriding
interest that overcomes the right of public access to the record; the overriding interest supports
sealing the record; a substantial probability exists that the overriding interest will be prejudiced if
the record is not sealed; the proposed sealing is nauowly taflored; and no less restrictive means
exist to achieve the overriding interest. :

Therefore it is ordered that the following portion of the declaration identified as the
"Confidential Attachment" be sealed and not be made part of the public record until further order
of this Court or any other competent court.

DATED: 3@%4’3}« JUDGE: % e~

. CARSL YAGEY
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Subject:
" Location:

‘.;.=";::‘ LorStart o
vy ENd

Recurrence:
Meeting Status:

Organizer:
Required Attendees:

Call }e: 9th Circuit CPC Cases

"'Wed 2/10/2016 12:00 PM -
Wed 2/10/2016 12:30 PM :

(none)

Meeting organizer

il Hablg : "

Beth Parket; Kathleen Radez; Joshua Klem, Jona’chan M Elsenberg, Salgado, Dlana, Janill .

Rlchards




- Start:
. End:

Subject:
-Location:

Recurrence:”

- Meeting Status:

Organizer:
Required Attendees:

Categories:

JH to dial within window of 4:30 -

Jill Habig ,

iiiil iiii xiarie'r i Jill Habii '

* Wed 11/4/2015 4:30 PM
+ Wed 11/4/2015 500 PM

(noﬁé)
Meeting organizer

Jill Habig -
Parker, Beth (beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG)

Green Category

S5pm
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Subject: -
" Location: .. _

"St'art:

o Bndr

.

"Recurrence:

Organizer:

.

e ‘. . .(none‘)' gt e

CALL: Beth Parker .

Mon 11/30/2015 5:00 PM
- = Mon 11/30/2015 5:30 PM

’

JII Habig -




From: . Parker, Bsth <beth.pafker@PPACCA.ORG »

Sant: Tuesday, July 21, 2015 9:42 AM
To! Jill Habig; Robert Sumner
Subject: Planned Parenthood: videos
Jilt and Robby

‘ A second video was refeased today. We believe we are fully compliant with all federal and state laws énd are

investigating the situation. Please feel free to reach out to me if you have any questions or concerns.

Beth

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of Californta | 555 Capltol Mall, Sulte 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814

| 916.446.5247 —l $16,441.0632 fax | [N <=

' ﬁ@aﬂn ’
Parent Ew

A Bt Menestieewiet,

Flitod Barentnod Aiuie ob Sty

The contents of this e-mail message, including any atiachments, are Intended solely for the use of the person or @ntlty o whom the e-
mall was addressed, It contains information that may be pratected by the attorney-client privilege, wark-product doctrine, or other
privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable staté and federal law. If you are not the intended reciplent of this
message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message Is stristly prohiblted. f yol have
recaived this message In error, or are not the named rediplant(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply &-mall or by phone at
(916) 448.5247 ext. 108 and delete this message from your computer. Thank you,

i




From: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

Sent: Tuesday, February 16, 2016 6:00 PM
To: Jill Habig

Cc: Melissa Goodman

Subject: Re: Livingwell brief

Thank' you for sharing, Jill.

Beth Parker
Sent from my iPhone .

On Feb 16, 2016, at 5:56 PM, Jill Habig <jilLhabig@doj.ca.gov> wrote:

Beth and Melissa, .
Attached is the brief we filed today, We did not make the conduct argument, and focused on
intermediate scrutiny under Pickup. We continued to make our commercial speech argument,
but made every effort to distinguish between the FACT Act and more burdensome laws that
would not warrant rational basis review. Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks,
Jill

Jill E. Habig

Special Counsel to the Attorney General
California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D, Harris
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA 94102

415-703-1008
jill.habig@doj.ca.gov

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential

. and/or legally privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s).
Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable
laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient,
please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.

<DOJ Brief 2.16.16.pdf>




From; Melissa Goodman <MGoodman@ACLUSQOCAL.ORG>
Sent: Tuesday, February 16, 2016 6:47 PM

To: Jill Habig

Cc: Beth Parker

Subject: Re: Livingwel| brief

Thank you sharing J ijl and for your efforts. |

M

Sent from"my iPhone

On Feb 16, 2016, at 5:56 PM, Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote:

Beth and Melissa,

Attached is the brief we filed today. We did not make the conduct argument, and focused on
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
California Department of Justice _
Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA 94102

415-703-1008
jilL.habig@doj.ca.gov

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

<DOJ Brief2.16.16.pdf>




From: . © Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

“Sent: . ' Wednesday, February 17, 2016 4:38 PM
To: Jill Habig; Melissa Goodman
Subject: RE: Livingwell brief
Thanks Jill

‘From: Jill Hablg [mallto:lill. hablg@dol.ca.gov]
" Sent: Wednesday, February 17, 2016 4:35 PM

To: Meligsa Goodman <mgoodman@aclusocal.org>
Cc: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.QRG>

Subject: Re: Livingwell brief

And here's the AWF brief.

JE, Hablg ‘
Special Counsel to the Attorney General
California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala DD, Harris
455 Goldegn Gate Ave,, Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA 94102 .

415-703-1008
il“_hms@dsi_%ggx

From: Melissa Goodman <MGoodman LUSOCAL.ORG>
Date: Tuesday, February 16, 2016 at 6:47 PM
To: Jill Hablg <iill.habis@dol.ca.gov>

Cc: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca. org>
Subject Re: lemgwell brief

) Thank you sharing Jill and for your efforts.

'M.

sent from my iPhone .

On Feb 18, 2016, at 5:56 PM, JIll Habig <lill.hablg@doi.ca;eov> wrote:

_ Beth and Melissa,

Attached Is the brief we filed today. We did not make the conduct argument, and focused on intermediate
scrutiny under Pickup, We continued to make our commercial speech argument, but made every effort to
distinguish between the FACT Act and more burdensome laws that would not warrant rational basis

review. Plaase let me know If you have any questions.

Thanks,
J

Jill E. Habig
Special Counsel to the Attorney General




California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D, Harris
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA. 94102 '

415-703-1008
jill.habig@doj.ca.gov

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally
privileged information. it is solely for the use of the Intended reciplent(s), Unauthorized interception, review,

« use or disclosure Is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications
Privacy Act. If you are not the Intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the
communication, ‘

<DQJ Brief 2.16.16.pdf>

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
Information. Itls solely for the use of the intended recipient(s), Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, If you are not the Intended
reciplent, please contact the sender and dastroy all copies of the communication. o ’




From: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>
Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2016 10:50 AM

To: - . Jill Habig

Subject: RE: Whole Woman's Health

Jill

I think I can get that for you using a zipcode analysis of dur patients. Let me find out. When do you need it? Interesting
you ask as | was just on a webinar about Whole Women's Health and this issue came up.

Beth

From: Jill Habig [mailto:ill.habig@dol.ca.govl
Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2016 10:48 AM

To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>
Subject: Whole Woman's Health

Beth, :

Does PP happen to have any data regarding the number of out-of-state patients that come to CA for reproductive healthcare
and whether it has increased in recent years? I'm interested in whether we have something concrete we could point to as the
CA impact of TRAP laws in other states, Let me know your thoughts.

Thanks!
Jill

Jill E. Habig .

Special Counsel to the Attorney General
California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA 94102

415-703-1008
jill habig@doj.ca.gov

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all coples of the communication.




From: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>
Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2016 10:59 AM

To: Jill Habig

Subject: Re: Whole Woman's Health

Apparently there is this bizarre argument that women can go to other states. Of course, traveling from Texas to ,
California is only for the rich, I will see what I can find out.

Beth Parker
Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 3, 2016, at 10:54 AM, Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote:

If it’s not too difficult, I'm thinking about using it for press purposes when we talk to reporters
about the case this week and then later when the decision comes down. We got a couple reporter
questions after oral argument yesterday that seemed to indicate they had assumed the ruling
wouldn’t have any effect on CA because we’re pro-choice, so I’ve been thinking about ways to
challenge that assumption beyond just saying that pro-choice leadership isn’t guaranteed

forever. If you have zipcode analysis, it might be fascinating to see how many women have
come from TX since the law went into effect. I remember Sue Dunlap mentioning anecdotally
about TX women coming to PPLA, but I'm not sure how large the volume is.

Jill E. Habig

Special Cou.nsel to the Attorney General
California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris

455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA. 94102

415-703-1008

jill.habig@doj.ca.gov

From: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org>
Date: Thursday, March 3, 2016 at 10:49 AM

To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@dol.ca.gov>
Subject: RE: Whole Woman's Health

Jill




I think | can get that for you using a zipcode analysis of our patien;csA Let me find out. When do you
need it? Interesting you ask as | was just on a webinar about Whole Women’s Health and this issue
came up. '

Beth

From: Jill Habig [mailto:jill.hablg@dol.ca.gov]
Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2016 10:48 AM

To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>
Subject: Whole Woman's Health

Beth,

Does PP happen to have any data regarding the number of out-of-state patients that come to CA for
reproductive healthcare and whether it has increased in recent years? lfm interested in whether we have
something concrete we could point to as the CA impact of TRAP laws in other states. Let me khow your
thoughts,

Thanks!
Jl

Jill E. Habig .

Special Counsel to the Attorney General
California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA 94102

 415-703-1008

jillhabig@doj.ca gov

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally
privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review,
use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications
Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the senderand destroy all copies of the
communication.

- CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential

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
Sent: . o : Thursday, March 03, 2016 11:54 AM
To: . . Jill Hablg
Subject: " RE:Whole Woman's Health
-

| already have zipcode lists from one affillate for 2012 and 2015 so we are analyzing that, Another affiliate told me they
see patients regularly from Arizona and heard a patient had flown in from Texas,

From: Jill Hablg [matito:jilL.habig@dol.ca.zov]
Sent: Thisrsday, March 03, 2016 10:54 AM

To: Parker, Beth <peth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>
Subject: Re; Whole Woman's Health

If It's not too difficult, I'm thinking about using it for press purposes when we talk to reporters about the case this week and

then later when the declsion comes down. We got a couple reporter questions after oral argument yesterday that seemed to -

Indicate they had assumed the ruling wouldn't have any effect on CA because we're pro-choice, so I've been thinking about

_ ways to challenge that assumption beyond just saying that pro-choice leadership Isn’t guaranteed forever. If you have zipcode

analyss, |t might be fascinating to see how many women have come from TX since the law went Into effect.. | remember Sue
Dunlap mentioning anecdotally about TX women coming to PPLA, but I'm not sure how large the volume is.

Jill E. Habig
Special Counsel to the Attorney General

California Depastment of Justice

Office of':Attomey General Kamala D. Harrls

455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500
San Francisco, CA 94102~ . o g S
4157034008 < . ‘ ' - ,

iillhabie@doi.ca.cov

From: Beth Parker <beth, parker@ppacca.org>
Date: Thursday, March 3, 2016 at 10:49 AM

Tos Jill Hablg <jill.hablg@doj.ca.gov>
Subject: RE: Whole Woman's Health

3l

_ Ithink l can get that for you using a zipcode analysis of our patlents Let me find out. When do you need It? Interestmg

you ask as-| wasjust on a webinar about Whole Women s Health and this Issue came up.
: : 1




Beth

From: Jill Habig [mallto:jill.habiz@doj.ca.gov]

Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2016 10:48 AM.

To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>
Subject: Whole Woman's Health

Beth, . :

Does PP happen to have any data regarding the number of cut-of-state patients that come to CA for reproductive healthcare
and whether It has increased In recent years? I'm interested in whether we have something concrete we could point to as the
CA impact of TRAP laws In other states. Let me know your thoughts,

Thanks!
Jill

Jill B. Habig !

Speoial Counsel to the Attorney General -

California Department of Justice

Office of ‘Attorney General Kamala D, Harris

455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500 : . .
San Prangisco, CA 94102 . ' i . _ S ' . St

415-703-1008 - ‘
jill.habig@doj.cn.gov

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged

- information. It Is solely for the use of the Intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohlbltéd and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, If you atie not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all coples of the communication. .

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents méy contaln confidential and/or lagally privileged
Information, It Is solely for the use of the intended reciplent(s). Unauthorized interceptlion, review, use or disclosure Is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not'the intended
recipient please contact the sender and destroy aII copies of the communication.




From: - Parker, Beth < beth.parker@ PPACCA.ORG>

Sent: ' Thursday, March 03, 2016 3:21 PM
To: Jill Habig

Subject: I :ip code data
Attachments: ‘ Zip Codes [JJi2012 vs 2015.xisx
Follow Up Flag: Follow Up-

Flag Status: Flagged

Jil

Here is the zipcode analysis for ||| I ~s vou predicted, the number of the out of state patients has
increased since 2012, but so have the general patlent numbers. We are collecting information from the other affiliates.

Bgth
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From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Jill

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>
Friday, March 04, 2016 1:29 PM

Jill Habig :

McCune, Mary

Qut of state patients for -

Here Is a record of out of state patients for the first 2 months fof JJJj 1t is 69. 1f you annualized i, it would be in the

range of 414 visits per year

Beth

Alabama
Arizona

- Colorado
Florida
Georgia
Winois
Maryland

Massachusetts

Mississippi
Montana
Nevada

North Carolina

NULL

Ohio

Oregon
Pennsylvania

South Carolina

Texas

Utah

Washington
2016-2
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Alaska
Arlzona
California )

L2
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Colorado 1

Indiana 1

Kentucky 1

Louisiana 1 1

Maryland ' 1

Michigan 1

Mississippi ‘ 1

Missouri 2 1.

Nevada 1

New York ) 1

Ohio 1

Oregon . . 1

Pennsylvania o ’ 1 1

South Carolina 1

Texas 2 2

Utah 2

Washington 1 1
20163
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New Jerse
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From: Parker, Beth <beth,parker@PPACCA.ORG>
Sent: Friday, March 04, 2016 4:24 PM

To: . Jill Habig

Subject: I o:tients from out of state

For A2, 188 patients in 2015. 60 of them went to R

In terms of “kept appointments”, these are the main stats:

107 total ABs from AZ. We believe these numbers are underreported.

beis

“Row La

: . MAB .
CA 10,601 7,358 248,244 266,203
MX (Mexico) ' 92 70 169 331
- ] s 4 12

I B e 10

R 1 - 1

I @ o 1

All Other . ‘ 4 10 14

AZ 58 49 189 296
- ] 52 & o

35 20 55

] 1 1

I 3. 8 om

Ali Other 13 90 103

TX , ' 10 6 69 85
AR 1 1

I ‘ 10 s u

1] ER 1

-] 2 4 6

All Other 3 60 63

WA : 3 '3 60 66
R 11 2

T e 2 2

I L1 4 5

1 . 1

All Other ' 1 54 55

NV 10 2 51 63
I 5 3 3




3 3

5 4 9

» 2 2

All Other 2 39 41

Here's some numbers on AZ patients:

. 2014 2013
Total patients from AZ 108 126
Patients from AZ that ,
got an AB 62 71

57% 56%
Patients from AZ that ,.
did not get an AB 46 55

43% 44%

All but 1 patient in 2014 paid with cash for their AB procedure. The other one had private insurance.




From: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2016 11:19 AM

To: Jill Habig

Subject: Bill language AB 1671 - amendments to Penal Code 632
Attachments: AB 1671 updated 3.pdf

Jill

Attached is the language for AB 1671, proposéd ameridments to Penal Code section 632. | look forward to your
thoughts about this. .

Beth

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Courisel
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of Caifornia | 555 Capitol Mall, Sulte 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814

g16.446.5247 | | 216.441.0632 fax || N

it YT :

The contents of this e-mail message, including any attachments, are intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom the e-
mail was addressed. It contains information that may be protected by the attorney-client privilege, work-product doctrine, or other
privilages, and may be restrioted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intendsd recipient of this
message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this message in error, or are not the named recipient(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mall or by phone at
(916) 448-5247 oxt. 108 and delete this message from your computer. Thank you.
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AMENDMENTS TO ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 1671

Amendment 1
In the title, in line 1, after “act” insert;

to émend Section 632 of the Penal Code,

N Amendment 2
On page 1, before line 1, insert:

SECTION 1. Section 632 of the Penal Code is amended to read:

632, (a)Bvery-Aperson who, intentionally and without the consent of all parties
to a confldential-eemmunieation; by communication, does any of hall
be punished pursuant to subdivigion (b); -

1) By means of any electronic amplifying or recording device, eavesdrops upon
ot records the confidential communication, whether the communication is cartied on
among the parties in the presence of one another or by means of a telegraph telephone,
or other device, except a-radio; radio.

(2) Uses, attempts to use, discloses, or attempts fo disclose, in any mannet, o
for ose, the contents of any confidential communication knowing or havi
reason to know the information was obtained in violation of paragraph (1),

(3) Aids, agrees with, employs, or conspires with any person ot persons o

unlawfully do= permit, or cauge o be done any of the acts described in this subdivision, '

ation of subdivision (a) shall be punished by a fine not exceeding two
thousand five hundred dollars-($2;560%; (32.500) per violation, or imprisonment in-the
a county jail not exceeding one year, or n the state prison, or by both that fine and
imprisonment. If the person has previously been convicted of a violation of this section
or Section 631, 632.5, 632.6, 632.7, or 636, the person shall be punished by a fine not
exceeding ten fhousand dollars{-$~1-6—999)— ($10,000) pet violation, by imprisonment

in-the g county jail not exceedmg one year, ot in the state prison, or by both that fine

~ and imprisonment.

e i i ” meang an individual, business
association, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, or other legal entity,
and an individual acting or purporting to act for or on behalf of any government or
subdivision thereof, whether federal, state, of local, but excludes an individual known
by all parties to a confidential communication to be overhearing or recording the
oommunication. .

1 y
commumcation cazried on in circumstances as may reasonably indicate that any patty
to the communication desires it to be confined to the parties thereto, but excludes a
communication made in a public gathering or in any legislative, judicial, executive or
administrative proceeding open to the public, or in any other ciroumnstance in which

o
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the parties to the communication may reasonably expect that the communication may
be overheard or recorded. '

' g?) Except as proof in an action ot prosecution for violation of this section, no
evidence obtained as a result of eavesdropping upon or recording a confidential
communication in violation of this section shall be admissible in any judicial,
administrative, legislative, or other proceeding,

fﬁ} .

(£) This section does not apply (1) to any public utility engaged in the business
of providing communications services and facilities, or to the officers, erployees or
agents thereof; whete the acts otherwise prohibited by this section are for the purpose
of construction, maintenance, conduct or operation of the services and facilities of the
public utility, or (2) to the use of any instrument, equipment, facility, or service
furnished and used pursuant to the tariffs of a public utility, or (3) to any telephonic
communication system used for communication exclusively within a state, county,
city and county, or city correctional facility.

{g) This section does not apply to the use of hearing aids and similar devices, .
by persons affficted with impaired hearing, for the purpose of overcoming the
impairment to permit the hearing of sounds ordinarily audible to the human ear.

(h) Paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) does not apply to any member of the media
who uses, attempts to use, discloses, or attempts to disclose, 8 confidential

communication if all of the following are ttue:
{1) The communication is truthful and regardi matter o lic conce
(2) The communication was obtained lawfully by the member of the media and

not obtained by him or her in viclation of paragraph (1) of subdivision (a).
(3) The person did not know who was responsible for obtaining the information,

SEC.2. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to Section 6 of
Article X1 B of the California Coustitution because the only costs that may be incurred
by a local agency or school district will be incurred because this act creates a new
crime or infraction, eliminates a crime or infraction, or changes the penalty for a crime
or infraction, within the meaning of Section. 17556 of the Government Code, or changes
the definition of a crime within the meaning of Section 6 of Article XIII B of the
* California Constitution.

' Amendment 3
On page 1, strike out lines 1 to 5, inclusive

-0 -




From; ' Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 5:05 PM

To: Jill Habig

Subject: RE: Bill language AB 1671 - amendments to Penal Code 632

Jill

Thanks for coming over to our offices this morning The Supreme Court case cite is Bartnicki v. Vopper, 532 US 514
(2001).

Beth

From: Jill Habig [mallto:iill. habig@doi.ca.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2016 11:32 AM

To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>
Subject: Re: Bill language AB 1671 - amendments to Penal Code 632

Taking a look now. You mentioned a case that was a potentlal obstacle. Can you remind me whatthat was?

Jill E. Hablg

Special Counsel to the Attorney General
California Departmenf of Justice

Office of Attorney GeneraleamaIa D. Harris
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA 94102

415-703-1008

lill.Lhablg@dol.ca.gov

From: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org>
Date: Tuesday, March 8, 2016 at 11:19 AM

To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doi.ca.gov>
Subject: Bill language AB 1671 - amiendments to Penal Code 632
Jill

Attached Is the language for AB 1671, proposed amendments to Penal Code section 632. | look forward to your
thoughts about this.




Beth

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814

916.446. 5247— | 916.441.0632 fax |

The contents of this e-mail message, including any attachments, are intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom the e-
mail was addressed, It containg Information that may be protected by the attorney-client privilege, work-product doctring, or other
privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law, If you are not the intended recipient of this
message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this message in error, or are not the named recipient(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by phone at
(916) 446-5247 ext, 108 and delste this message from your computer. Thank you.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with [ts contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure Is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.
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From: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

Sent: Wednesday, March 16, 2016 10:34 AM

To: Jill Habig | ' .
Subject: Right of Privacy in Confidential Communications draft language (2).docx
Attachments: Right of Privacy In Confidential Communications draft language (2).docx
Jill

Here's the rewrite of the video tape bill. Let me know what you think.

1

Beth




Right of Privacy in Confidential Communications

Existing law authorizes civil and criminal penalties when confidential communications are
tapped, recorded, intercepted or received willfully and without the consent of all parties. The
law was enacted after the proliferation of new devices and eavesdropping techniques created a
serious threat to the free exercise of personal liberties. It was designed to protect the right of
privacy of the people of California. Existing law creates an exceptlon for the use of listening
devices and techniques by law enforcement to investigate criminal conduct. In addition, it does
not prohibit one party to a confidential communication from recording the communication to
obtain evidence of commission of certain serious, enumerated crimes.

Existing law also imposes civil and criminal penalties on individuals, not parties to the
communication, who willfully disclose the contents of a telegraphic or telephone message
without the consent of the participants.

This bill will expand the scope of liability to encompassthesewheinclude a prohibition on the
intentionally use or disclosure ofe the contents of any wire, oral or electronic communication
obtained without the consent of all parties when-they-krew-or-had-reason-te-know-the

information-wasby the party who taped the confidential communication ebtained-without
consent. This updates the law to account for the harm created by the broad dissemination over
the internet. It aligns the law on unauthorized recording of confidential communications with
the law on misappropriation of trade secrets. And it aligns California law with the law of other
states that prohibit interception and disclosure of confidential wire, oral or electronic
communications.

CHAPTER 1.5. Invasion of Privacy [630 - 638.53]
(‘Chapter 1.5 added by Stats. 1967, Ch. 1509. )

630.

The Legislature hereby declares that advances in science and technology have led
to the development of new devices and techniques for the purpose of
eavesdropping upon private communications and that the invasion of privacy .
resulting from the continual and increasing use of such devices and techniques has
created a serious threat to the free exercise of personal liberties and cannot be
tolerated in a free and civilized society. .

The Legislature by this chapter intends to protect the right of privacy of the people
of this state.

The Legislature recognizes that law enforcement agencies have a legitimate need to
employ modern listening devices and techniques in the investigation of criminal
conduct and the apprehension of lawbreakers. Therefore, it is not the intent of the
Legislature to place greater restraints on the use of listening devices and
techniques by law enforcement agencies than existed prior to the effective date of
this chapter.

(Added by Stats. 1967, Ch. 1509.)




631.

(a) Any person who, by means of any machine, instrument, or contrivance, orin
any other manner, intentionally taps, or makes any unauthorized connection,
whether physically, electrically, acoustically, inductively, or otherwise, with any
telegraph or telephone wire, line, cable, or instrument, including the wire, line,
cable, or instrument of any internal telephonic communication system, or who
“willfully and without the consent of all parties to the communication, or in any
unauthorized manner, reads, or attempts to read, or to learn the contents or
meaning of any message, report, or communication while the same is in transit or
passing over any wire, line, or cable, or is being sent from, or received at any place
within this state; or who uses, or attempts to use, in any manner, or for any
purpose, or to communicate In any way, any information so obtained, or who aids,
agrees with, employs, or conspires with any person or persons to unlawfully do, or
permit, or cause to be done any of the acts or things mentioned above in this
section, is punishable by a fine not exceeding two thousand five hundred dollars
($2,500), or by imprisonment in the county jail not exceeding one year, or by
imprisonment pursuant to subdivision (h) of Section 1170, or by both a fine and
imprisonment in the county jail or pursuant to subdivision (h) of Section 1170. If
the person has previously been convicted of a violation of this section or Section
632, 632.5, 632.6, 632.7, or 636, he or she is punishable by a fine not exceeding
ten thousand dollars ($10 000), or by imprisonment in the county jail not exceeding
one year, or by imprisonment pursuant to subdivision (h) of Section 1170, or by
both that fine and imprisonment.

(b) This section shall not apply (1) to any public utility engaged in the business of
providing communications services and facilities, or to the officers, employees or .
agents thereof, where the acts otherwise prohibited herein are for the purpose of
construction, maintenance, conduct or operation of the services and facilities of the
public utility, or (2) to the use of any instrument, equipment, facility, or service
furnished and used pursuant to the tariffs of a public utility, or (3) to any telephonic
communication system used for communication exclusively within a state, county, -
city and county, or city correctional facility.

(¢) Except as proof In an action or prosecution for violation of this section, no
evidence obtained in violation of this section shall be admissible in any judicial,
administrative, legislative, or other proceeding.

(d) This section shail become operative on January 1, 1994.

(Amended by Stats. 2011, Ch. 15, Sec. 428. Effective April 4, 2011. Operative
October 1, 2011, by Sec. 636 of Ch. 15, as amended by Stats, 2011, Ch 39, Sec, '
68.)

632.
(a) Every person who, mtentlonally and without the consent of all parties to a
confidential communication: .

(1) by means of any electronic amplifying or recording device, eavesdrops
upon or records the confidential communication, whether the communication is




carried on among the parties in the presence of one another or by means of a
telegraph, telephone, or other device, except a radio;

(2) uses; or attempts-to-usediscloses, in any manner, or for any purpose, the
- | contents of any confidential communication obtained by that party krewing-or
, havﬁvweaseﬁ-fe%ew%heﬂﬁfefmaaeﬁ-was—ebéamed—/n violation of (a)(1);or

(34) aids, agrees-with—employs, or conspires with any person or persons to
untawfully do, permit, or cause to be done any of the acts or things mentioned
above in this section,

shall be punished by a fine not exceeding two thousand five hundred dollars
($2,500) per violation, or imprisonment in the county jail not exceeding one year,
or in the state prison, or by both that fine and imprisonment. If the person has
previously been convicted of a violation of this section or Section 631, 632.5,
632.6, 632.7, or 636, the person shall be punished by a fine not exceeding ten
thousand dollars ($10,000) per violation, by imprisonment in the county jail not
exceeding one year, or in the state prison, or by both that fine and imprisonment.

(b) The term “person” includes an individual, business association, partnership,
corporation, limited liability company, or other legal entity, and an individual acting
or purporting to act for or on behalf of any government or subdivision thereof,

. whether federal, state, or local, but excludes an individual known by all parties to a
confidential communication to be overhearing or recording the communication.

(c) The term “confidential communication” includes any communication carried on
in circumstances as may reasonably indicate that any party to the communication

" desires it to be confined to the parties thereto, but excludes a communication made
in a public gathering or in any legislative, judicial, executive or administrative
proceeding open to the public, or in any other circumstance in which the parties to
the communication may reasonably expect that the commumcatlon may be
overheard or recorded.

(d) Except as proof in an action or prosecution for violation of this section, no
evidence obtalned as a result of eavesdropping upon or recording a confidential
communication in violation of this section shall be admissible in any judicial,
administrative, legislative, or other proceeding.

(e) This section does not apply (1) to any public utility.engaged in the business of
providing communications services and facilities, or to the officers, employees or
agents thereof, where the acts otherwise prohibited by this section are for the
purpose of construction, maintenance, conduct or operation of the services and
facilities of the public utility, or (2) to the use of any instrument, equipment,
facility, or service furnished and used pursuant to the tariffs of a public utility, or
(3) to any telephonic communication system used for communication exclusively -
within a state, county, city and county, or city correctional facility.




(f) This section does not apply to the use of hearing aids and similar devices, by
persons afflicted with impaired hearing, for the purpose of overcoming the
impairment to permit the hearing of sounds ordinarily audible to the human ear.

(Amended by Stats. 1994, Ch, 1010, Sec. 194. Effective January 1, 1995.)




From: Salgado, Dlana <diana.salgado@ppfa.org>

Sent: Tuesday, April 19, 2016 8:59 AM

To: Jill Habig

Ce: Parker, Beth

Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege
Hi Jill -

I'm emailing about the NIFLA case challenging the FACT Act, which is now on appeal in the 9th Circuit. My
understanding is that that case (unlike the two prior cases) challenges both the disclosure requirement for
licensed facilities and the disclosure requirement for unlicensed facilities. I've been in conversation with
Physicians for Reproductive Health about whether to submit an amicus brief in the NIFLA case. I was hoping
we could have a call to discuss the current thinking on that.

Unfortunately, the deadline for amicus briefs is April 21. Would you have time fbr a quick call today or
tomorrow? Iam free to talk pretty much at any time. I'm also cc'ing Beth Parker on this email since she is
hoping to join as well (but said we should go ahead and schedule a time that works for you and she will join, if
she can). -

Thanks.

~Diana

Diana O. Salgado

Senlor Staff Attorney

Public Policy Litigation & Law

Planned Parenthood Federation of Ametrica
212-261-4399

This e-mail is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is
confidential and/or legally privileged. If you are not the intended reciplent, you are hereby notified that any
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is

strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-
muil ancl destroy all copies of the original message.

On Fri, Feb 5,2016 at 3:21 PM, Jill Habig <iill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote:
Ok let's set the date/time for 2/10 at 12pm. 'll send around a call-in number. Thanks alll

Jill E. Habig

Special Counsel to the Attorney General
California Department of Justice .
Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA 94102




415-703-1008
jillhabig@doj.ca.gov

From: "Salgado, Dlana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org>

Date: Wednesday, February 3, 2016 at 7:19 AM

To: Beth Parker <beth.parker acca.org>

Cc: Jill Habig <[ill.habig@doj.ca.gov>, Janill Richards <Janill.Richards@doj.ca.gov>, Kathleen Radez

<Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>, Joshua Klein <joshua.Klein@doj.ca.gov>, Jonathan M Eisenberg
<Jonathan.Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov>

Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest priv:lege

Thanks, everyone.
| am free on 2/5 between 1-3, on 2/8 between 1-3, and on 2/10 between 11--2.

Looking forward to the call.

Diana O. Salgado

Senior Staff Attorney

Public Policy Litigation & Law

Planned Parenthood Federation of America
212-261-4399

This e-mail is for the sole use of the Intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPEA, which is confidential
and/or legally privileged. If vou are not the intended reciplent, you are hereby notified thai any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking of any action in rellance on the contents of this e-mall information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-
muail in error, please Immediately notlfy the sender by reply e-mail and destroy ail copies of the origingl message.

On Tue, Feb 2, 2016 at 9:17 PM, Parker, Beth <beth.parker@ppacca.org> wrote:

. Adding Diana Salgado from PPFA to this chain.

From: Jill Habig [mailto:jill.habig@doj.ca.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, February 02, 2016 6:15 PM

To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

Ce: Janill Richards <Janill Richards@doj.ca.gov>; Kathleen Radez <Kathleen Radez@doj.ca.gov>; Joshua
Klein <Joshua Klein@doj.ca.gov>; Jonathan M Eisenberg <Jonathan.Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov>

Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Beth,

I’'m ce’ing my colleagues from DOJ who would like to join the call. To propose a few times, how about 2/5 between 1-3pm,
2/8 after 1pm, or 2/10 between 11-2? Any of those windows work? ‘




Thanks,

Jill

Jill E. Habig

Special Counsel to the Attorney General

California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D, Harrig |

455 Goldén Gate Ave.; Ste 14500 ‘ 8

San Francisco, CA. 94102

415-703-1008

jill habig@doj.ca.gqov

From: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org>

Date: Tuesday, February 2, 2016 at 2:28 PM

To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.cd.gov>

Subject: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Jill

Who do yéu want to be on the call about the ninth circuit briefing in the CPC cases with the PPFA attorney
handling the Arizona case? We should try to set the call up as soon as possible.

Beth

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814

916.446.5247 | I | 9164410632 = | | NN

3




The contenis of this e-mail message, including any attachments, are intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom the e-
mall was addressed, It contains information that may be protected by the attorney-client privilege, work-product doctrine, or other
privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient of this
message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message Is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this message in error, or are not the named recipient(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by phone at
916) 446—5247 ext. 108 and delete this message from your computer. Thank you,

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you ate not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication,

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information. It is solely for the use of the intended reciplent(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may viclate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the Intended
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.,




From: : Salgado, Diana <diana.salgado@ppfa.org>

Sent: ‘ Wednesday, April 20, 2016 7:34 AM

To: Jili Habig

Ce: - . Parker, Beth

Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Thanks for getting back to me, Jill. Any time between 10-1 PST works best for me and Beth, If that doesn't
work for you, let me know what time does and I'm sure I can make it work,

Thanks.

Diana O. Salgado

Senior Staif Attorney

Public Policy Litigation & Law

Planned Parenthood Federation of America
212-261-4399

This e-mail is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is
confidential and/or legally privileged. [fyou are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-muil in evror, please immedidtely notify the sender by reply e-
mail and destroy all copies of the original message.

On Tue, Apr 19, 2016 at 11:52 PM, Jill Habig <iill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote:

Diana,

I'm happy to talk tomorrow. We would certainly welcome amicus participation since this case raises some new
issues. Attached Is our brief. Let me know when you have time tomorrow.

Thanks,
Jill

From: "Salgado, Diana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org>

Date: Tuesday, April 19, 2016 at 8:58 AM

To: Jill Habig <jill. habig@doj.ca.gov>

Cc: Beth Parker <beth.parker acca.org>

Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Hi Jill -

I'm emailing about the NIFLA case challenging the FACT Act, which is now on appeal in the 9th Circuit. My understanding Is
that that case (unlike the two prior cases) challenges both the disclosure requirement for licensed facilities and the disclosure
requirement for unlicensed facilities. I've been in conversation with Physicians for Reproductive Health about whether to '
submit an amicus brief in the NIFLA case. | was hoping we could have a call to discuss the current thinking on that.




Unfortunately, the deadline for amicus briefs is April 21, Would you have time for a quick call today or tomorrow? | am free to
talk pretty much at any time. I'm also cc'Ing Beth Parker on this emall since she is hoping to join as well (but said we should go
ahead and schedule a time that works for you and she will join, if she can).

Thanks.

-Diana

Diana O. Salgado

Senior Staff Attorney

Public Policy Litigation & Law

Planned Parenthood Federation of America
212-261-4399

This e-mail Is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is confidential
and/or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information Is strictly prohibited. If you have recelved this e-
mailin error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message.

On Fri, Feb 5, 2016 at 3:21 PM, Jill Habig <iill.habis@doj.ca.gov> wrote:
Ok let’s set the date/time for 2/10 at 12pm. I'll send around a call-in number. Thanks all}

Jill E. Habig

Special Counsel to the Attorney General
California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D, Harris
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA 94102

415-703-1008
iill.habig@doj.ca.gov

From: "Salgado, Diana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org>

~ Date: Wednesday, February 3, 2016 at 7:19 AM

To: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> .

Ce: Jill Habig <lill.habig@dol.ca.gov>, Janill Richards <Janill.Richards@doj.ca.gov>, Kathleen Radez
. <Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>, Joshua Klein <Joshua.Klein@doi.ca.gov>, Jonathan M Eisenberg
<Jonathan.Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov>

_Subject: Re: 9th circult CPC cases - common interest privilege
Thanks, everyone.

| am free on 2/5 between 1-3, on 2/8 between 1-3, and on 2/10 between11--2.

Looking forward to the call.

Diana O, Salgado
Senior Staff Attorney
Public Policy Litigation & Law




Planned Parenthood Federation of America
212-261-4399

This e-mail is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is confidential
and/or legally privileged. If you are not the intended reciplent, you are hereby notifted that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking of ony actlon in refiance on the contents of this e-mail information Is strictly prohibited. If you have recelved this e-
mail in grror, please Immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all coples of the orlginal message.

On Tue, Feb 2, 2016 at 9:17 PM, Parker, Beth <beth.parker@ppacca.org> wrote:

Adding Diana Salgado from PPFA to this chain.

From: Jill Habig [mailto:jill.habig@doj.ca.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, February 02, 2016 6:15 PM

To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

Cec: Janill Richards <Janill.Richards@doj.ca.gov>; Kathleen Radez <Kathleen Radez@doj.ca.gov>; Joshua
Klein <Joshua.Xlein@doj.ca.gov>; Jonathan M E1senberg <Jonathan. Elsenberg@d03 £8.80V>

Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest prwﬂege

B'eth,

I'm ¢c’ing my colleagues from DOJ who would like to jointhe call. To propose a few tlmes, how about 2/5 between 1- 3pm,
2/8 after 1pm, or 2/10 between 11-2? Any of those windows work?

Thanks,

Jilt

Jill E. Habig

Spectal Counsel to the Attorney General
California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D, Harris
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA 94102

415-703-1008




jill.habig@doi.ca.gov

From: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org>

Date: Tuesday, February 2, 2016 at 2:28 PM

To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov>

Subject: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Jill .

‘Who do you want to be on the call about the ninth circuit briefing in the CPC cases with the PPFA attorney
handling the Arizona case? We should try to set the call up as soon as possible.

Beth

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 | Sacramento, CcA 95814

916.446.5247 [ | 916.441.0632 £a | D EEEEEENRENEN

The contents of this e-mall message, including any attachments, are intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom the e-

. malf was addressed. lt containg information that may be protected by the attorney-client privilege, work-product doctrine, or other
privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient of this
message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message Is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this message in error, or are not the named reclpient(s), please notify the sender immedietely by reply e-mail or by phone at
(916) 446-5247 ext. 108 and dslete this message from your computer. Thank you.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged -
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
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prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. Ifyou are not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication,

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confldential and/or legally privileged
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws Including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended
reciplent, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication,

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidentlal and/or legally privileged
information. It Is solely for the use of the Intended recipient(s), Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws Including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication..




From: . Salgado, Diana <diana.salgado®ppfa.org>

Sent: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 11:17 AM

To: ‘ Jill Hablg '

Ce: Parker, Beth ,

Subject: Re; 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

That works for me. I can circulate a conference number shortly.

Diana O. Salgado

Senior Staff Attorney

Public Policy Litigation & Law

Planned Parenthood Federation of Ameérica
212-261-4399 ' .

This e-mail is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is
confidential andlor legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-
mail and destroy all copies of the original message.

On Wed, Apr 20,2016 at 2:11 PM, Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote:
How about 11:307

From: "Salgado, Diana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org>
Date: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 at 7:34 AM o .

To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov>

. Ce: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org>

Subject: Re: 9th clrcuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Thanks for getting back to me, Jill. Any time between 10-1 PST works best for me and Beth, If that doesn't work for you, let me
know what time does and I'm sure | can make it work.

Thanks.

Diana Q. Salgado

~ Senior Staff Attorney

Public Policy Llitigation & Law
Planned Parenthood Federation of America
212-261-4399 -




This e-mail is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains Information beloriging to PPFA, which is confidential
and/or legally privileged., If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified thot any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking of any action in refiance on the contents of this e-mail information Is strictly prohibited. If you have recelved this e-
mail in error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message.

On Tue, Apr 19, 2016 at 11:52 PM, Jill Habig <jill.habig@do].ca.gov> wrote:

Diana,

I'm happy to talk tomorrow. We would certainly welcome amicus participation since this case raises some new
lssues, Attached is our brief. Let me know when you have time tomorrow.

Thanks,
Jill

From: "Salgado, Diana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org> ' 3
Date: Tuesday, April 19, 2016 at 8:58 AM

To: Jill Habig <jill.habie@doj.ca.gov>

" Cc: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org>

Subject: Re: 9th citcuit CPC cases - common interest privilege
Hi il -

I'm emailing about the NIFLA case challenging the FACT Act, which is now on appeal in the 9th Circuit. My understanding is
that that case (unlike the two prior cases) challenges both the disclosure requirement for licensed facllities and the disclosure
requirement for unlicensed facilities. I've been in conversation with Physicians for Reproductive Health about whether to
submit an amicus brief in the NIFLA case. | was hoping we could have a call to discuss the current thinking on that.

Unfortunately, the deadline for amicus briefs Is April 21. Would you have time for a quick call today or tomorrow? |am free to
talk pretty much at any time. I'm also cc'ing Beth Parker on this emall since she Is hoping to Join as well (but said we should go
ahead and schedule a time that WOrks for you and she will join, if she can).

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
ond/or legally privileged. if you are not the intended reciplent, you are hereby notifled that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking of any action in relfance on the contents of this e-mail Information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-
mall In error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all coples of the original message.

On Fri, Feb 5, 2016 at 3:21 PM, Jill Habig <Jill.habig@dol.ca.gov> wrote:
Ok let’s set the date/time for 2/10 at 12pm. I'll send around a call-In number. Thanks alll

Jill E. Habig
Special Counsel to the Attorney General




California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D, Hatris
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500 -

San Francisco, CA 94102

415-703-1008
jill.habig@doj.ca.gov

From: "Salgado, Diana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org>

Date: Wednesday, February 3, 2016 at 7:19 AM

To: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org>

Cc: Jill Habig <|ill.habig@dol.ca.gov>, Janill Richards <janill.Richards@doj.ca.gov>, Kathleen Radez

<Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>, Joshua Kleln <Joshua.Klein@doj.ca.gov>, Jonathan M Eisenberg
<Jonathan.Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov>
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Thanks, everyone.
1 am free on 2/5 between 1-3, on 2/8 between 1-3, and on 2/10 between 11--2.

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

and/or legally privileged, if you are not the Intended reclplent, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking of any action in' reliance on the contents of this e-mall information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this ¢-
maoil in error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-maif and destroy all copies of the original message.

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

To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA .ORG>

Ce: Janill Richards <Janill.Richards@doi.ca.gov>; Kathleen Radez <Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>; Joshua
Klein <Joshua.Klein@doj.ca.gov>; Jonathan M Eisenberg <Jonathan.Eisenberg@doi.ca.gov>

Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Beth,




I’'m cc’ing my colleagues from DOJ who would like to join the call. To propose a few times, how about 2/5 between 1-3pm,

2/8 after 1pm, or 2/10 between 11-2? Any of those windows work?

Thanks,

Jill

Jill E. Habig

Special Counsel to the Attorney‘General
Califo;nia Department of Justice

Office of Attorne& General Kamala D. Harris
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA 94102

415-703-1008

jill hebig@doj.ca.gov

o

From: Beth Parker <beth.parketr@ppacca.org>

Date: Tuesday, February 2, 2016 at 2:28 PM

To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov>

Subject: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

\
Y

Jill

Who do you want to be on the call about the ninth circuit briefing in the CPC cases with the PPFA attorney
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

916.446.5247 | 916.441.0632 fox | INRREEENENN

The contents of this e-mail messags, including any attachments, are intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom the e-
mail was addressed. It contains informatiof that may be protected by the attomey-client privilege, work-product doctrine, or other !
privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient of this
message, be acdvised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this message in error, or are not the named recipient(s), pleass notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by phone at
(818) 446-5247 ext. 108 and delets this message from your computer. Thank you.

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

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privilegeﬁf

information. Itis solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is

prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended
_recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confi‘dentigl and/or legally privileged
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.-

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information, It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized Interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are hot the intended
reciplent, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication,




From: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

Sent: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 11:20 AM

To: Salgado, Diana; Jill Habig

Subject: RE: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege
Me too

From: Salgado, Diana [mailto:diana.salgado@ ppfa.org]

_ Sent: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 11:17 AM

To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov>
Cc: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

That works for me. I can circulate a conference number shortly.

Diana O. Salgado

Senior Staff Attorney

Public Policy Litigation & Law

Planned Parenthood Federation of Amenca
212-261-4399

This e-muail is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is
confidential and/or legally privileged. [f you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in ervor, please immediately nolzfy the sender by reply e~
mail and destroy all copies of the original message.

On Wed, Apr 20,2016 at 2:11 PM, Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote:
How about 11:307 .

From: "Salgado, Diana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org>
Date: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 at 7:34 AM

To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov>

Cc: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org>

Subject: Re: Sth circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Thanks for getilng back to me, Jili. Any time between 10-1 PST works best for me and Beth. If that doesn't work for you, let
me know what time does and I'm sure | can make it work.

Thanks,




Diana Q. Salgado

Senior Staff Attorney

Public Policy Litigation & Law

Planned Parenthood Federation of America
212-261-4399

This e-mail is for the sole use of the intended reciplents and contalns information befonging to PPFA, which is confidential
and/or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-muil information Is strictly prohibited. {f you have
recejved this e-mall in error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy oll coples of the orlginal
message. '

On Tue, Apr 19, 2016 at 11:52 PM, Jill Habig <jlll.habig@doi.ca.gov> wrote:

Diana, '
I’'m happy to talk tomorrow. We would certainly welcome amicus participation since this case raises some new
issues. Attached is our brief. Let me know when you have time tomorrow. '

Thanks,
Jill

From: "Salgado, Diang" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org>

Date: Tuesday, April 19, 2016 at 8:58 AM

To: Jill Habig <jill. habig@doj.ca.gov>

Cc: Beth Parker <beth.parker acca.org> |

Subject: Re: 9th clrcuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

HiJill -

I'm emailing about the NIFLA case challenging the FACT Act, which is now on appeal in the 9th Circuit. My understanding is
_that that case (unlike the two prior cases) challenges both the disclosure requirement for licensed facilities and the
disclosure requirement for unlicensed facilities. I've been in conversation with Physicians for Reproductive Health about
whether to submit an amicus brief in the NIFLA case. | was hoping we could have a call to discuss the current thinking on
that.

Unfortunately, the deadline for amicus briefs is April 21. Would you have time for a quick call today or tomorrow? | am free
to talk pretty much at any time. I'm also cc'ing Beth Parker on this emall since she is hoping to join as well (but sald we
should go ahead and schedule a time that works for you and she will join, if she can).

Thanks.

-Diana

Diana O. Salgado

Senior Staff Attorney

Public Policy Litigation & Law

Planned Parenthood Federation of America
212-261-4399




This e-mail Is for the sole use of the Intended reciplents and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is confidential
and/or legally privileged. If vou are not the intended reciplent, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution or taking of any action in refiance on the contents of this e-mail information Is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this e-mail In error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-muail and destroy ail caples of the original
message.

On Fri, Feb 5,2016 at 3:21 PM, Jill Habig <jill.hablg@do].ca.gov> wrote:
Ok let’s set the date/time for 2/10 at 12pm. V'l send around a call-in number. Thanks alll

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

To: Beth Parker <beth. Qarker@pgacca org>
Ce: Jill Habig <jill.hablg@doi.ca.gov>, Janill Richards <Janill. Rlchards@dol ca. go V>, Kathleen Radez

<Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>, Joshua Klein <Joshua Klein@doj.ca.gov>, Jonathan M Eisenberg

<Jonathan.Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov>
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Thanks, everyone.
{ am free on 2/5 between 1-3, on 2/8 between 1-3, and on 2/10 between 11--2.

Looking forward to the call.

Diana O. Salgado

Senlor Staff Attorney -

Public Policy Litigation & Law

Planned Parenthood Federation of America
212-261-4399

This e-mall Is for the sole use of the intended reciplents and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is confidential
andyor legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all coples of the onginal
message.

On Tue, Feb 2, 2016 at 9:17 PM, Parker, Beth <beth.parker@ppacca.org> wrote:
| Adding Diana Salgado from PPFA to this chain.




From: Jill Habig [mailto:jill.habig@doj.ca.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, February 02,2016 6:15 PM

To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

Ce: Janill Richards <Janill.Richards@doj.ca.gov>; Kathleen Radez <Kathleen. Radez@doi ca.gov>; Joshua
Klein <Joshua Klein@doj.ca.gov>; Jonathan M Elsenberg <Jonathan.Fisenberg@doj.ca.gov>

Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common intetrest privilege

Beth,

I’m cc’ing my colleagues from DOJ who would like to join the call, To propose a few times, how about 2/5 between 1-
3pm, 2/8 after 1pm, or 2/10 between 11-2? Any of those windows work?

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
“handling the Arizona case? We should try to set the call up as soon as possible.

Beth

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 | Sacramento, CAs 95814

916.446.5247 | I | 9164410632 tax | ||

The contents of this e-mail message, including any attachments, are intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom the
e-mail was addressed. It contains information that may be protected by the attorney-client privilege, work-product doctrine, or
other privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient of
this message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message Is strictly prohibited. If you
have recelved this massage In error, or are not the named reciplent(s), please notify the sender immediatsly by reply e-mail or by
phone at (916) 446-5247 ext. 108 and delete this messaga from your computer. Thank you.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you ate not the
intended recipient, please contact the serider and destroy all copies of the communication.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
Information, It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all coples of the communication.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information. It Is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s), Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure-is
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prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the Intended
reciplent, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information, It Is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are nhot the intended
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all coples of the communication.




T e P VD00 P S O M O

From: Salgado, Diana <dlana.salgado@ppfa.org>
Sent: . Wednesday, April 20, 2016 11:22 AM

To: . Parker, Beth

Ce: ' Jill Habig

Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Here's a conference number we can use:

Diana Q. Salgado

Senior Staff Attorney

Public Policy Litigation & Law

Planned Parenthood Federation of America
212-261-4399

This e-mail is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belongihg to PPFA, which is
confidential and/or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you ave hereby notified that any
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is
strictly prohibited. If you have veceived this e-meil in evror, please mzmedxately notify the sender by reply e-
mail and destroy all copies of the original message.

On Wed, Apr 20, 2016 at 2:19 PM, Parker, Beth <beth.parker@ppacca.org™> wrote:

Me too

From: Salgado, Diana [mallto:diana.salgado@ppfa.org]

. Sent: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 11:17 AM

To: lill Habig <jill.habig@do].ca.gov>
Cc: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases ~ common interest privilege

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
confidential and/or legally privileged. ]f you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is
strictly prohibited. Jf you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the sender by 7cp[y e~
mail cmd destroy all copies of the original message.

1

On Wed, Apr 20, 2016 at 2:11 PM, Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote:

How about 11:30?

From: "Salgado, Diana" <diana,salgado@ppfa.org>
Date: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 at 7:34 AM

To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov>
Cc: Beth Parker <beth.parker acca.org>
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - commion interest privilege

Thanks for getting back to me, Jill. Any time between 10-1 PST works best for me and Beth. If that doesn't work for you, let
~ me know what time does and I'm sure | can make it work.

Thanks.

Diana O. Salgado -

Senior Staff Attorney

Public Policy Litigation & Law

Planned Parenthood Federation of America <
212-261-4399

This e-mail Is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is confidential
and/or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is strictly prohibited, If you have
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recefved this e-malil In error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-mall and destroy all coples of the original
message.

" On Tue, Apr 19, 2016 at 11:52 PM, Jill Habig <jill.habig@dof.ca.gov> wrote:

Diana,

I'm happy to talk tomorrow. We would certainly welcome amicus participation since this case ralses some new
issues. -Attached is our brief. Let me know when you have time tomorrow.

Thanks,

Jin

From: 'fSalgado, Diana" <diana.salgado fa,org>
Date: Tuesday, April 19, 2016 at 8:58 AM

To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov>

Cc: Beth Parker <beth.parker acca.org>
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Hi Jilt -

'm emailing about the NIFLA case challenging the FACT Act, which is now on appeal in the 9th Circult. My understanding is
that that case (unlike the two prior cases) challenges both the disclosure requirement for licensed facilities and the '

" disclosure requirement for unlicensed facilities. I've been in conversation with Physicians for Reproductive Health about

whether to submit an amicus brief in the NIFLA case. | was hoping we could have a call to discuss the current thinkingon -
that.

Unfortunately, the deadline for amicus briefs is April 21. Would you have time for a quick call today or tomorrow? | am free
to talk pretty much at any time. I'm also cc'ing Beth Parker on this email since she is hoping to join as well (but said we
should go ahead and schedule a time that works for you and she will join, if she can).

Thanks.

-Diana




Diana Q. Salgado

Senior Staff Attorney

Public Paolicy Litigation & Law

Planned Parenthood Federation of America
212-261-4399

[

This e-mail is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which Is confidential
and/or legally privileged. If you are not the intended reciplent, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution or tuking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-muail information is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this e-mail in error, please Immediately notify the sender by reply e-maif and destroy all copies of the original
message.

On Fri, Feb 5, 2016 at 3:21 PM, Jill Habig <iill.habig@ddi.ca.gov> wrote:

Qk let’s set the date/time for 2/10 at 12pm. Il send around a call-in number. Thanks alll

Jill E, Habig

" Special Counsel to the Attorney General
(;Jalifo;'nia Department of Justice
Of:ﬁce of Att‘omeybGeneral Kamala D. Hatris
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500

San Francisco, CA 94102

415~703-1008

jilt.habig@doj.ca.gov

From: "Salgado, Diana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org>

Date: Wednesday, February 3, 2016 at 7:19 AM

To: Beth Parker <beth.parker acca.org>

Cc: Jill Habig <Jill.hablig@do].ca.gov>, Janill Richards <Janlil.Richards@do].ca.gov>, Kathleen Radez
<Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>, Joshua Klein <Joshua.Klein@doj.ca,gov>, Jonathan M Eisenberg

<Jonathan,Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov>
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege




Thanks, everyone.
| am free on 2/5 between 1-3, on 2/8 between 1-3, and on 2/10 between 11--2.

Looking forward to the call.

Diana O. Salgado

Senior Staff Attorney-

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
and/or legally privileged. If you are not the Intended recipient, you are hereby notlfied that any disclosure, copying,
distribution or taking of uny action in refiance on the contents of thls e-mall information Is strictly prohibited, If you have
received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-muil and destroy all copies of the original
message.

On Tue, Feb 2, 2016 at 9:17 PM, Parker, Beth <beth.parker@ppacca.org> wrote:

Adding Diana Salgado from PPFA to this chain.

From: Jill Habig [mailto:jilL.habig@doj.ca.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, February 02, 2016 6:15 PM

To: Parker, Beth <bgth.parker@PPACCA.ORG>

Ce: Janill Richards <Janill.Richards@doj.ca.gov>; Kathleen Radez <Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>; Joshua
Klein <Joshua.Klein@doj.ca.gov>; Jonathan M Eisenberg <Jonathan.Bisenberg@doj.ca.goy>

Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege

Beth,

I’m cc’ing my colleagues from DOJ who would like to join the call. To propose a few times, how about 2/5 between !~
3pm, 2/8 after 1pm, or 2/10 between 11-2? Any of those windows work?




Thanks,

Jill

Jill E. Habig

Special Counsel to the Aitorney General

California Department of Justice

Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris

455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500 )

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

Beth .

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California | 555 Capito] Mall, Suite 510 | Sacramento, CA 95814

916.446.5247 | 16 441 0632 2= |




wam A Barentiond Afiates prowiay

The contents of this e-mail message, including any attachments, are intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom the
e-mail was addressed. 1t contains information that may be protected by the attorney-client privilege, work-product doctrine, or
other privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient of
this message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message Is strictly prohibited, If you
have received this message in error, or are not the named recipieni(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-malil or by
phone at (916) 446-5247 ext. 108 and delete this message from your computer. Thank you.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information, It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information. It is solely for the use of the intended reciplent(s). Unauthorized Interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information. It Is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended
reclpient, please contact the sender and destroy all coples of the communication. '

~ CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged

information. It is solely for the use of the intended reciptent(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure {s
prohtbited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. if you are not the intended
reciplent, please contact the sender and destroy all coples of the communication.
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